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Y E A R S

COVER RATIONALE
The cover design for our 2019 Annual Report reflects the central
role Danajamin plays in the market whilst approaching our purpose
in a responsible and sustainable manner. By growing the trust
and confidence that we have created in our ecosystem, we have
achieved positive multiplier effects on the economy.
Since our inception in 2009, we have been proudly championing
the ambitions of viable Malaysian corporates by enabling access
for their funding needs. Our 10th Year Anniversary Annual Report
Cover marks how far we have come in the last decade, our principal
strengths and growth, and what lies in store for us in the future as
a key catalyst to the development of Malaysia.
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VISION
To help deserving Malaysian
corporates access
funding opportunities in
order for them to
contribute towards
sustainable economic growth
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MISSION
We create trust and
confidence between
corporates and investors with
our financial guarantee
We achieve this by:

Maintaining
stakeholders’
confidence in our
organisation

Matching clients’
funding needs with
investor appetite

Complementing
banks in finding
optimal financial
solutions for clients

Attracting and
developing an
engaged and
competent
workforce who live
our core values
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DANAJAMIN
AT A
GLANCE
• Danajamin guarantees liquidity support for a structured transaction in Malaysia that
securitises progress billings of multiple development projects by Exsim Development
Sdn Bhd (Awarded Triple A by The Asset for Best Securitisation / Most Innovative Deal
in 2020).

Annual Report 2019

42 clients

10.5

RM

billion (cumulative)

over 12 sectors

22.7

RM
TOTAL
GUARANTEE
AMOUNT ISSUED

TOTAL
REDEMPTIONS

• Danajamin guarantees liquidity support for Trinity Group’s first Sukuk Issuance.
The AA3-rated Tranche 1 IMTN marks Danajamin’s third transaction involving the
securitisation of progress billings of property development projects in Malaysia.

billion (cumulative)

through risk-sharing
participation
with partner banks

23 active clients

4.22

• First participation in ASEAN Green Socially Responsible Investment (SRI) Sukuk
Programme through Pasukhas Green Assets Sdn Bhd guarantee (Awarded Triple A
by The Asset for Best ASEAN Green SRI Sukuk in 2020).
• Danajamin guarantees Brecon Synergy RM160 million of RM200 million Islamic
Medium Term Notes. This guarantee represents Danajamin’s support towards the
education industry where the proceeds shall be utilised to part-finance the acquisition
cost of King Henry VIII College located in Cyberjaya.

TOTAL MARKET
IMPACT

RM

6.28

billion

RM

billion (cumulative)

of which
RM5.29 billion from
19 graduated clients

OUTSTANDING
GUARANTEE
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HOW WE HAVE PERFORMED
DANAJAMIN’S TOTAL OUTSTANDING GUARANTEE EXPOSURE BY SECTORS (%)
Agriculture
Toll Roads &
Highways
Construction &
Building Material

4%
16%
19%

Real Estate

Total Outstanding
Guarantee
Exposure by Sector

13%

(including Fronting)

11%

RM4.22
BILLION

10%
Property
Development

Consumer
Related
Products

8%
9%

12%

Education
Oil & Gas
Related
Activities

Power
As at 31 December 2019

AWARDS AND ACCOLADES
THE TRIPLE A ASSET AWARDS 2020
Sukuk Guarantor of the Year
Pasukhas Green Assets RM17 million green
Sukuk
Best ASEAN Green SRI Sukuk

ISLAMIC FINANCE NEWS (IFN)
DEALS OF THE YEAR 2017
RM1 billion Sukuk programme
Best
Structured
Finance
SkyWorld Development Group

Deal

ISLAMIC FINANCE NEWS (IFN)
DEALS OF THE YEAR 2015
-

Purple Boulevard Sukuk Ijarah Programme
Real Estate Deal of the Year

THE TRIPLE A ASSET AWARDS 2015

THE TRIPLE A ASSET AWARDS 2017

Purple Boulevard Sukuk Ijarah Programme
Best Securitisation Sukuk

Exsim Capital Resources RM420 million
Musharaka and Murabaha Sukuk
Best Securitisation/Most Innovative Deal

RM1 billion Sukuk programme
Best
Structured
Finance
SkyWorld Development Group

ISLAMIC FINANCE NEWS (IFN)
DEALS OF THE YEAR 2017

BPAM Bond Market Awards 2016

Purple Boulevard Sukuk Ijarah Programme
Structured Finance Landmark Deal

Danajamin Nasional Berhad
Special Award

RAM LEAGUE AWARDS 2015

ISLAMIC FINANCE NEWS (IFN)
DEALS OF THE YEAR 2015

RM350 million bond programme by West
Coast Expressway Sdn Bhd
Project Finance Benchmark Deal

RM500 million Tier 2 Subordinated Sukuk
Murabahah
Commodity Murabahah Deal of the Year

Deal

Purple Boulevard Sukuk Ijarah Programme
Ijarah Deal of the Year

-

RAM LEAGUE AWARDS 2015
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5-YEAR PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS
Net Earned Premiums (RM’ million)
86.4

Investment Income (RM’ million)

89.9
81.8

81.8

94.5

100.7

71.7
64.0
57.7
42.3

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

Profit Before Tax (RM’ million)
119.3

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

Total Assets (RM’ billion)
2.74

2.75

2.79

2017

2018

2019

125.5
114.2

117.6
2.00

2.09

2015

2016

12.9

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

Shareholders’ Equity (RM’ billion)
1.68

1.79

Number of Total Clients

1.80

42

1.58

37

1.46
33
28

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2015

30

2016

2017

2018

2019
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WHO WE ARE

WE ARE DANAJAMIN
The announcement on the creation
of a national financial guarantee
institution (Danajamin) was first
made during the Second Economic
Stimulus Package on 10 March 2009.
On 15 May 2009, Danajamin
commenced its operations.

50%

50%

Minister of
Finance
Incorporated

The drive behind the formation
of Danajamin was to provide
credit enhancements to facilitate
corporations with viable businesses
to enable access to the Malaysian
Corporate Bond market.
Over the years, our role has expanded
beyond the Malaysian Corporate
Bond market in line with market needs
which now sees Danajamin offering
our credit enhancement product for
financing facilities.

CORPORATE
INFORMATION

SHAREHOLDING
STRUCTURE

Brief History

Credit Guarantee
Corporation
Malaysia Berhad

Registered Office
Level 18, Menara Allianz Sentral
203, Jalan Tun Sambanthan
Kuala Lumpur Sentral
50470 Kuala Lumpur
Tel : +603 2265 0800
Fax : +603 2265 0900
Website : www.danajamin.com
Company Secretary
Cik Azizahwati Binti Ishak
(MAICSA 7060684)

Danajamin is

by both
RAM Rating Services Berhad and
Malaysian Rating Corporation Berhad

Auditors
Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers
Level 10, 1 Sentral, Jalan Rakyat
Kuala Lumpur Sentral
50470 Kuala Lumpur
Actuarial Services
KPMG Actuarial Pty Ltd

OUR REGULATORY FRAMEWORK
Financial Services Act 2013
This Act provides for the regulation and supervision of financial institutions, payment systems and other relevant entities
and the oversight of the money market and foreign exchange market to promote financial stability and for related,
consequential or incidental matters.
Insurance (Financial Guarantee Insurance) Regulations 2001
These Regulations which came into operation on 2 January 2001 prescribe the minimum paid up capital
and contingency reserves required to be maintained by a licensed financial guarantee insurer.
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WHAT WE OFFER

BOND/SUKUK

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE INSURANCE (FGI)

The FGI is a form of credit enhancement, and with it, the bonds/Sukuk that are
guaranteed by Danajamin throughout its tenure will be rated AAA, the highest
rating accorded to bonds/Sukuk.

INVESTOR GUARANTEE (IG)
The IG is an alternative guarantee approach in which an FGI can be purchased
by investors from Danajamin to protect against the risk of default / credit event
in relation to bond/Sukuk that is issued based on their own credit profiles and
is enlisted under Danajamin’s Investor Guarantee Programme.

FINANCING FACILITIES

FINANCING FACILITIES GUARANTEE (FFG)
The FFG is an alternative guarantee approach to support viable Malaysian
corporates access to funding beyond the Malaysian Corporate Bond market.
The guarantee is provided on loan/financing given by the financial institutions
to the borrowers, against the risk of default.

Danajamin Nasional Berhad
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FINANCIAL GUARANTEE INSURANCE (FGI)
The general structure of the FGI provided by Danajamin is shown in the diagram below:

5.

4.

Receives funding

Invest

CAPITAL
MARKET

6.

Pays coupon/
profit & principal

1.
Structure FGI
facility for
bonds/Sukuk
issuance

2.

Receive coupon/
profit & principal

3.

CORPORATE
ISSUER

Payment of
guarantee fee

7.

Guaranteed bonds /
Sukuk issued
with AAA credit
enhancement

INVESTORS

8.

In the event of
default, payment
of guaranteed
amount within 10
business days

Benefits of the FGI
•

Issuers are more assured of a successful bond/Sukuk issuance as the AAA rating reflects the
irrevocable and unconditional guarantee provided by Danajamin

•

Investors have an opportunity to invest in the guaranteed AAA-rated papers and are assured
that Danajamin will pay the principal and up to one coupon/profit payment should the issuer
fails to do so

11
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WHAT WE OFFER
INVESTOR GUARANTEE (IG)
How Does It Work?
1. Issuer applies to Danajamin to enlist its bond/Sukuk programme onto the IG Programme.
2. The issuer’s application will be put through Danajamin’s internal credit assessment and if approved, will be enlisted into
the IG Programme.
3. Once the programme is enlisted, Danajamin will stand ready to provide the IG to any investor who wishes to subscribe.
4. In the event of a default, the investor can call on Danajamin’s guarantee up to the amount of the IG purchased.
The general structure of the IG facility is illustrated in the diagram below:

3.

Pays Guarantee Fee

INVESTOR 1
(IG BUYER)

INVESTOR 2
(IG BUYER)

BOND
PROGRAMME 1

2.

INVESTOR 3

4.

Provides
Protection

ISSUER

INVESTOR 1
BOND
PROGRAMME 2
INVESTOR 2

1.

Upfront and Enlistment Fees

Benefits of the IG
•

Promotes rating diversity – the subject bond/Sukuk will be issued on a standalone basis as
compared to a guaranteed bond under FGI facility

•

Flexibility for investors – investors are given the flexibility of deciding whether protection is
required. The amount and duration of the purchase of the IG will also be at the discretion of
the investors
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FINANCING FACILITIES GUARANTEE (FFG)
The general structure of the FFG facility is illustrated in the diagram below:

1.

2.

Provide
funding
requirement

Provide
guarantee
facility

BORROWER

4.

3.

Pay principal and
interest/profit

Pay guarantee
fee

LENDING/
FINANCIAL
INSTITUTION

5.
Payment of principal
(in the event of default)

Benefits of the FFG
•

Borrowers would stand to benefit from better access to financing from potential lending
institutions at a reasonable cost

•

Lending institutions would be able to manage their credit and default risk when extending
financing to potential borrowers. At the same time, the FFG can potentially be a capital
management tool for lending institutions

13
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WHAT WE OFFER
HOW TO OBTAIN DANAJAMIN’S FINANCIAL GUARANTEE

FINANCIAL
GUARANTEE
INSURANCE
(FGI)

INVESTOR
GUARANTEE
(IG)

FINANCING
FACILITIES
GUARANTEE
(FFG)

DANAJAMIN

TRANSACTION PARTIES

Evaluates transaction/project

Issuer appoints Principal
Advisor, Rating Agency &
other advisers for fundraising

Structures principal
terms & conditions
Approval and issuance of
offer letter

Principal Advisor structures
principal terms & conditions
of bonds/Sukuk

DANAJAMIN

TRANSACTION PARTIES

Evaluates transaction/project

Issuer appoints Principal
Advisor, Rating Agency &
other advisers for fundraising

Structures principal
terms & conditions
Approval and issuance of
offer letter

Principal Advisor structures
principal terms & conditions
of bonds/Sukuk

DANAJAMIN

TRANSACTION PARTIES

Evaluates transaction/project

Borrower approaches
Financial Institutions
for financing facilities

Structures principal
terms & conditions
Approval and issuance of
offer letter

Financial Institution structures
principal terms & conditions of
financing facilities
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APPROVAL/APPLICATION

DOCUMENTATION/EXECUTION

Client receives
indicative Issue Rating from
Rating Agency, if applicable

Finalisation and execution of
legal documentation

Principal Advisor
lodges application with the
Securities Commission

Compliance with
issuance conditions

APPROVAL/APPLICATION

DOCUMENTATION/EXECUTION

Client receives
indicative Issue Rating from
Rating Agency, if applicable

Finalisation and execution of
legal documentation

Principal Advisor
lodges application with the
Securities Commission

Compliance with
issuance conditions

APPROVAL/APPLICATION

DOCUMENTATION/EXECUTION

Borrower receives
offer letter from
Financial Institution

Finalisation and execution of
legal documentation
Compliance with
issuance conditions

Issuance of
FGI/Kafalah
policy to
Beneficiary
Issuance of
Danajamin’s
guaranteed
bond/Sukuk

Issuer
enlisted into
IG Programme
Issuance of
bond/Sukuk
under IG Programme
Investor approaches
Danajamin to
obtain IG policy

Issuance of
FFG/Kafalah
policy to
Beneficiary
Borrower draws
down on financing
facilities
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL
CREDIT EVALUATION & MONITORING
Danajamin’s resilient track record is founded on robust credit management and governance. These safeguard the
sustainability of our business, and enhances investor confidence in us. As part of Danajamin’s credit management
and governance, due diligence is taken when evaluating and monitoring client progress and performance.
We take a rigorous holistic approach in our assessment of potential issuers. These encompass :
•
•
•
•
•

credit and viability evaluation,
structuring of the financial package,
deliberations at the credit approval stage,
ensuring that the facility documentation properly reflect the approved financial terms, and
thorough account management – post-issuance

to ensure adherence to the financing terms thus allowing early alerts of potential problems and appropriate remedial
management in managing the quality of our portfolio.
Together, our Client Coverage, Client Solutions, as well as the Risk Management function, have established an effective
and sound credit evaluation and monitoring process.

CLIENT COVERAGE

APPROVALS

Business origination &
initial credit evaluation

CLIENT SOLUTIONS
Deal structuring &
evaluation

Annual review
(minimum requirement)
Management
Underwriting
Committee

Determine account
management and
monitoring strategy
Proceeds utilisation tracking
& review
Development/construction
progress tracking &
business/financial review

RISK MANAGEMENT
FUNCTION
Independent credit
assessment
Concentration limits
> single customer and
sectoral

CLIENT SOLUTIONS

Monitor & review
Board
Underwriting
Committee

Risk-based pricing

MONITORING
LOOP

(1) covenants
(2) build-up requirements
Joint site visits/discussions
with clients and independent
consultants etc

Danajamin Nasional Berhad
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Every new client relationship originates with Client Coverage. Afterwards, a preliminary credit evaluation process will be
undertaken by Client Solutions, which involves:

Conducting site visits to
gain better understanding
of client’s business
operations and assets.

Appointing subject matter
experts to assess project
technicalities, when
deemed necessary.

Utilising appropriate
credit rating tool to
assess and rate clients.

Creditworthiness checks
with domestic and
international
financial databases.

Compliance with
Bank Negara Malaysia’s regulations
and requirements such as
Anti-Money Laundering, Anti-Terrorism
Financing and Proceeds of
Unlawful Activities Act 2001
and Single Customer Limit.

Performing analysis
on industry,
operations, financial
performance and
cashflow projections.

Based on the preliminary credit evaluation, a credit proposal
will be forwarded by Client Solutions to the Risk Management
function for an independent credit assessment. The Risk
Management function will review inherent risks across the client’s
business profile while identifying emerging risks. Danajamin also
has in place concentration limits based on internally established
sectoral and single customer limits. Pricing, based on the client’s
risk profile, is also determined at this stage.

Monitoring activities include analysis of industry, operations,
financial performance, review of cashflow projections, tracking
of proceeds utilisation, development or construction progress,
compliance with covenants and build-up requirements in
relation to the issuance. Client Solutions would also conduct
site visits and discussions with clients, independent consultants,
external solicitors, external auditors and monitoring
accountants.

The credit proposal together with the credit risk comments will
then be tabled to the Management Underwriting Committee
for approval and subsequently to the Board Underwriting
Committee for endorsement.

The Management Underwriting Committee and Board
Underwriting Committee are regularly updated on the
performance of the client.

Upon approval, Client Solutions will proceed with the
documentation process up to the point of issuance of the
guarantee policy.
Post-issuance, the account will continue to be monitored by
Client Solutions throughout the tenure of the guarantee, and
acts as the interface for any client requests or issues resolution.

While we are aware that defaults are part and parcel of
our business, we believe that we have put in place strong
underwriting policies and processes which ensure the good
quality of our portfolio at the inception. This is supplemented
by the robust monitoring of our issuers throughout the tenure
of their issuances, helping them meet all their obligations
to the bondholders. Our governance structures ensure that
Danajamin adheres to all regulatory requirements, risks are
identified and managed accordingly.
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HOW WE MANAGE OUR CAPITAL, RISK AND LIQUIDITY
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
KEY OBJECTIVES
To satisfy regulatory capital
requirement at all times
and maintain adequate
buffer above regulatory
capital levels

To identify immediate action
plans to be implemented to
restore capital to the
appropriate level

Recognising the importance of effective capital management, Danajamin
maintains a strong and robust capital position with sufficient buffer to meet its
guarantee obligations to investors as well as for regulatory requirement purposes.

Risk-Based Capital Framework (RBCF)
Effective 1 January 2015, Danajamin adopted the RBCF for Insurers as
prescribed by Bank Negara Malaysia. Under this Framework, Danajamin
is required to maintain a capital adequacy level that commensurate with its risk
profile.
To-date, the Capital Adequacy Ratio of Danajamin is well in excess of 300%, well
above the minimum capital requirement of 130% under the RBCF as regulated
by Bank Negara Malaysia.

Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP)
The ICAAP forms part of Danajamin’s Risk Management Framework for
managing all risk exposures and is designed to reflect the size, nature
and complexity of Danajamin’s operations, in a timely and effective manner.
Under ICAAP, Danajamin ensures there is adequate capital to meet its capital
requirements on an ongoing basis. Other key elements, include Board and
Senior Management oversight, comprehensive risk assessment, setting of
internal target capital levels, conducting periodic stress testing, having in place
a robust and sound capital management plan as well as ongoing monitoring,
monthly reporting and review of its capital position.
As part of Danajamin’s Capital Management plan and diversification initiative,
Danajamin has also established a Sukuk programme which provides an alternative
to the Company in sourcing additional capital.

Key Features of the ICAAP
• A clearly defined and robust process for risk identification, assessment,
monitoring and management.
• Setting of Danajamin’s target capital level in accordance with risks
associated with its current and projected financial positions on a 3-year
rolling cycle.
• Strong understanding of Danajamin’s overall risk profile and a clearly
defined risk appetite statement that commensurates with its key short
and long term risk drivers.
• Clear strategy for managing capital levels, including under stressed
scenarios.
• Clear delineation of responsibility of BOD and Senior Management.

To determine the Individual
Target Capital Level and
trigger level for further
action

Key Components Under ICAAP
• Individual Target Capital Level (ITCL)
Danajamin’s capital assessment methodology
ensures that it operates at capital levels
well above the annually set ITCL and over a
rolling capital planning horizon of at least
three years. The ITCL reflects the overall
risk tolerance and appetite set by the
Board of Directors, based on Danajamin’s
risk profile and risk management practices.
Periodic Stress Testing, which includes multi
period stress testing, is performed annually
on a range of financial positions to assess the
adequacy of the ITCL set. In accordance with
Bank Negara Malaysia’s guidelines, the stress
test scenarios are calibrated in line with the
risk tolerance/appetite of Danajamin.
• Capital Management Plan
Danajamin ensures that an appropriate
level and quality of capital is maintained to
commensurate with the extent of risks in the
business via a robust capital management
plan. The plan is reviewed periodically and
incorporates management action trigger
levels to ensure its capital levels are restored to
the appropriate levels. The maintenance of an
adequate level of capital creates confidence
in Danajamin’s financial strength and provides
assurance to existing and prospective
policyholders, investors, rating agencies and
regulators.
• Monitoring
In line with governance practice, close
monitoring of the capital adequacy level is
performed through regular reporting to the
Management and the BOD, and the reports
are submitted to the Regulator as required.
Finally, the independent review will be carried
out to ensure the integrity of the ICAAP
framework.

Danajamin Nasional Berhad
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RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK
The diagram below illustrates the risk management framework currently in place at Danajamin.

Risk Identification
Risk factors that may have a potential impact to
Danajamin are identified in a key risk register. The key
risk register is reviewed every two months for new
potential risks.

Risk Treatment
Together, the Senior Management and the Chief Risk
Officer will recommend the appropriate treatment (e.g.
mitigation controls) for each of the identified risks and
will monitor the implementation of mitigation controls.
Thereafter, the managed residual risk is mapped to a
residual risk map.

Risk Reporting
All inherent and residual risks will be tabled to the
Management Risk Committee for recommendation to
the Board Risk Committee.

Risk Evaluation
Each risk factor identified will be assessed to
determine the probability of occurrence and impact
in terms of actual or estimated loss to Danajamin. The
probability and financial impact rating for each of the
identified risk factors are determined and thereafter
mapped to an inherent risk map.

Risk Monitoring
The identified risks will be monitored and any
developments or changes will be reported
immediately. Key risk factors are closely monitored
and presented in a Key Risk Indicator Dashboard
together with the tracking of the Risk Appetite
Statement to the Management Risk Committee and
Board Risk Committee every two months.

LIQUIDITY MANAGEMENT
Liquidity refers to Danajamin’s ability to meet its obligation when required to do so.
Demands for funds can typically be met through Danajamin’s internal funds. Danajamin’s
business model requires the Company to, from time to time, pay claims as and when
the obligation arises. Hence, liquidity management is a crucial function in ensuring that
obligations are met in a timely manner.
As part of Danajamin’s internal liquidity monitoring and
assessment, the Company has in place a Liquidity Framework
to ensure that potential claims obligations can be met at
any time. The Liquidity Framework uses the stress testing
results which is in line with BNM’s Guidelines on Stress
Testing as a basis to determine potential claim obligations
and ensure that there is sufficient liquidity to meet these
obligations. The Liquidity Framework also further outlines
the management actions required in the event that there is
a shortfall.

In line with that, Danajamin has a stringent Investment Policy
and ensures that a significant amount of assets are kept in
liquid investments such as deposits, government securities
and government guaranteed securities. To gain further
comfort, repurchase facilities with financial institutions are
in place to provide additional liquidity lines when required.

20
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OUR RATINGS

COMPANY RATINGS

RATING AGENCY

RATING / CLASSIFICATION

RATING RECEIVED

Long-term Insurer Financial
Strength Rating

AAA

Short-term Insurer Financial
Strength Rating

P1

Outlook

STABLE

Insurer Financial
Strength Rating

AAA

Short-term
Counterparty Credit Rating

MARC-1

Outlook

STABLE

RAM Rating Services Berhad
as of 4 July 2019

Malaysian Rating Corporation Berhad
as of 31 July 2019

SUKUK MURABAHAH
PROGRAMME RATINGS

RM2.0 billion Sukuk Murabahah
Programme:
Senior Sukuk

AAA/STABLE

Subordinated Sukuk

AA1/STABLE

RAM Rating Services Berhad
as of 4 July 2019

RM2.0 billion Sukuk Murabahah
Programme:
Senior Sukuk

AAAIS/STABLE

Subordinated Sukuk

AA+IS/STABLE

Malaysian Rating Corporation Berhad
as of 31 July 2019

Danajamin Nasional Berhad
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DESCRIPTION OF THE RATINGS ACCORDED
RAM Rating Services Berhad (RAM)
Long-term Insurer Financial Strength Rating

AAA

A financial guarantee insurance company rated AAA has a superior capacity to meet its financial
obligations to policy/contract holders and other creditors. This is the highest long-term insurer financial
strength rating assigned by RAM.

Short-term Insurer Financial Strength Rating

P1

A financial guarantee insurance company rated P1 has a strong capacity to meet its short-term financial
obligations to policy/contract holders and other creditors. This is the highest short-term insurer financial
strength rating assigned by RAM.

Debt-based Sukuk

AAA

The Senior Sukuk is equated to Danajamin’s long-term Insurer Financial Strength rating. A sukuk rated
AAA has superior safety for payment of financial obligations. This is the highest long-term Issue Rating
assigned by RAM to a debt-based sukuk.

AA 1

The Subordinated Sukuk is rated 1-notch below Danajamin’s long-term Insurer Financial Strength rating
of AAA to reflect the subordination of the securities to the Company’s senior unsecured obligations.
A sukuk rated AA has safety for payment of financial obligations. The issuer is resilient against adverse
changes in circumstances, economic conditions and/or operating environments.

Malaysian Rating Corporation Berhad (MARC)
Insurer Financial Strength Rating

AAA

An institution rated AAA has an exceptionally strong capacity to meet its financial commitments and
exhibits a high degree of resilience to adverse developments in the economy, and in business and
other external conditions. These institutions typically possess a strong balance sheet and superior
earnings record.

Short-term Rating

MARC-1

An institution rated MARC-1 reflects the counterparty’s very strong capacity to meet its short-term
obligations not exceeding a year under financial contracts. This is the highest short-term rating
assigned by MARC.

Debt-based Sukuk

AAAIS

The Senior Sukuk is equated to Danajamin’s long-term Insurer Financial Strength rating. Extremely
strong ability to make payment on the instrument issued under the Islamic financing contract(s).

AAIS

The Subordinated Sukuk is rated 1-notch below Danajamin’s long-term Insurer Financial Strength rating
of AAA to reflect the subordination of the securities to the Company’s senior unsecured obligations.
Very strong ability to make payment on the instrument issued under the Islamic financing contract(s).
Risk is slight with degree of certainty for timely payment marginally lower than for instruments accorded
the highest rating.

22
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

GROWING
THE COMPANY FURTHER

Our achievements and the
success of the companies
we have helped underscore
that Danajamin has stayed
relevant and commercially
viable, especially during times
of crisis.

MD YUSOF BIN HUSSIN
Chairman

Dear Stakeholders,
I am extremely honoured to present my Statement for Danajamin Nasional Berhad’s 2019 Annual Report. What makes this
report more meaningful is that it commemorates 10 years of our establishment. As Malaysia’s first and only Financial Guarantee
Insurer established on 15 May 2009, we were given the mandate to provide financial
guarantee to viable businesses and act as a catalyst in further developing the Malaysian
bond/sukuk market, a mandate representing the foresight and strategic thinking of the
government. This has led to the growth of many successful Malaysian companies and
contributed to the economic development of our country.
Throughout the 10 years since, we have continued to fulfil the objectives of our mandate
and, in so doing, contribute towards the economic aspirations of the nation. In line
with market needs, our role has also expanded beyond the Malaysian Corporate Bond
market, which now sees Danajamin offering our credit enhancement product for financing
facilities.

Y E A R S
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

2019
GUARANTEED BONDS/SUKUK

RM10.5
Billion

MARKET IMPACT (CUMULATIVE)

RM22.7
Billion

Creating Trust and Confidence

2019 Business Achievements

Through our product offering, companies are able to tap
the financial market, demonstrate their ability to meet the
required financing obligation and in the process, gain the
trust and confidence of investors, which will allow them to
subsequently raise funding on their own once they graduated.
On this note, we are proud to highlight that to date 19 of our
clients have fully redeemed their bond/sukuk issuance, some
earlier than planned.

As at 31 December 2019, we guaranteed over RM10.5 billion
bonds/sukuk with a cumulative market impact of RM22.7
billion, of which RM12.6 billion represents risk-sharing
portion with banks.

Our achievements and the success of the companies we have
helped underscore that Danajamin has stayed relevant and
commercially viable, especially during times of crisis. With our
financial guarantee, we have thus generated the confidence
of investors and facilitated our clients to successfully deliver
on their business objectives. Our role in the functioning
capital markets and in the business environment, is thus a
crucial one, a role we are proud to play.
As we celebrate our 10th year anniversary, we are moving
towards a new era, one that will see us pursue our aspirations
with increased focus and agility as we continue to take
advantage of potential growth opportunities and maximise
value for all our stakeholders. Our theme for this report,
“Creating Trust and Confidence” thus represents our
commitment to deliver consistent sustainable future growth
for our shareholders, stakeholders and the country.

To date, our total client stands at 42 issuers from 12 diverse
sectors ranging from Oil and Gas, Construction and Building
Materials, Infrastructure to Property Development sector,
among others.
I would like to highlight two unique deals during the year.
The first represents Danajamin’s first foray into Green Sukuk
in support of environmentally sustainable infrastructure
projects in Malaysia. With the debut of the world’s first
Green Sukuk in Malaysia back in July 2017, it is exciting for
Danajamin to support the growth of Green Sukuk in line
with the Government’s initiative to strengthen the country’s
position as the main catalyst for Syariah-compliant green
instruments. The second distinctive deal marked Danajamin’s
support towards the education industry. We truly believe
that the best sustainable future for decades to come, rests
in the abilities and capabilities of our children. With these
guarantees, we hope to instil investor confidence and plant
the seeds of tomorrow through their business objectives, as
well as to contribute meaningfully to our nation’s society and
economy.

Growth and success are not
measured only in terms of numbers.
As a responsible corporate citizen,
we also place importance in giving
back to our society.
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Despite an uncertain and challenging market environment, our long-term
plan will continue to concentrate on achieving growth and sustainability
both for Danajamin and our clients. In terms of product and client focus,
we expect to extend our product spectrum to strengthen our business
outreach to mid and upper mid-corporate markets in the pipeline.
Giving Back to Society
Growth and success are not measured only in terms of
numbers. As a responsible corporate citizen, we also place
importance in giving back to our society. As such, our CSR
has always been aligned to our developmental mandate
where we undertake activities that contribute to the nation’s
aspiration and its future.
Two flagship CSR initiatives for the year worth mentioning are
Danajamin100 and Danajamin Mighty Run. Danajamin100
focuses on the development of Malaysia’s youth through a
leadership enrichment programme that aims to develop
and maximise the potential of Malaysia’s future leaders
by providing selected Form 4 students exposure to a
variety of well-designed engagements to optimise their
leadership promise and potential. Spread over 3 years,
the programme activities and training modules focus
on character building, leadership, communication, and
professional skills.

Despite an uncertain and challenging market environment,
our long-term plan will continue to concentrate on achieving
growth and sustainability both for Danajamin and our clients.
In terms of product and client focus, we expect to extend our
product spectrum to strengthen our business outreach to mid
and upper mid-corporate markets in the pipeline. The finer
details of Danajamin’s strategies for growth can be found in
the Managing Director / Chief Executive Officer’s Statement
section of this Annual Report.
Acknowledgements

Our other flagship CSR initiative is the Danajamin Mighty
Run supporting the autistic community through collaboration
with the National Autism Society of Malaysia (NASOM).
In 2019, we successfully raised a total of RM65,000 to
support improvement in education and awareness
programmes for NASOM. The run which was introduced
in 2016, is aimed to raise public awareness of autism and
the challenges faced by parents in raising autistic children.

We owe a debt of gratitude to the many parties who have
supported us through both challenging and profitable times.
On behalf of the Board of Directors, I would like to convey my
heartfelt gratitude to all our shareholders, stakeholders and
investors for their tireless support and confidence. Please join
me in bidding farewell to two of our Directors, Dato’ Azian
Mohd Noh and Ariffin Hew, who retired this year. We truly
appreciate their worthy contributions and support during
their years of service to Danajamin. In addition, personally
and as the Chairman of the Danajamin Board, I would like to
thank all my fellow Board members for sharing their expertise
and wise counsel in steering Danajamin. My gratitude also
goes to our management team and all our employees for their
ongoing dedication. Importantly, we thank all the relevant
parties in the Ministry of Finance, Bank Negara Malaysia
and Securities Commission Malaysia for their guidance and
support.

Going Forward

Thank you.

Guided by our dedication to achieving results, we are now
expanding on our strengths and cultivating new capabilities
that will carry us to the next stage to ensure our continued
development and progress. The COVID-19 outbreak is a
human tragedy and has a growing impact on businesses
and the economy as a whole. But even though the global
public health crisis is under control and problems triggered
by COVID-19 ceases, business for many large companies will
not return to normal anytime soon.

Md Yusof Bin Hussin
Chairman
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STATEMENT FROM THE
MANAGING DIRECTOR/CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Dear Stakeholders,
I am privileged to report on Danajamin’s business performance and achievements
in my Statement for the 2019 Annual Report which also celebrates our
10th anniversary. Despite the challenging operating conditions in 2019, Danajamin
continued on its trajectory of steady growth, strengthening our financial position
and business portfolio. We also continued to fulfil the mandate entrusted to
us upon our establishment, to help deserving businesses access the financial
market, enabling them to grow and contribute towards the sustainable economic
growth of the country.
Business Performance
Despite the challenging economic conditions, we successfully facilitated new issuances worth RM586 million which saw
total guarantee issued for the year rose from RM9.9 billion (37 clients) to RM10.5 billion (42 clients). Through our risk
sharing partnerships, the new guarantee issuances contributed towards a total RM1.6 billion of new financing to the market,
thereby increasing our cumulative market footprint from RM21.1 billion to RM22.7 billion. While we were able to increase
the number of clients canvassed in 2019, unfortunately, we were not able to convert these potential deals early enough to
offset the loss of income from scheduled redemptions as well as earlier than planned redemptions of RM1.8 billion (2018)
and RM1.3 billion (2019).

We also continued
to fulfil the mandate
entrusted to us upon our
establishment, to help
deserving businesses
access the financial
market, enabling them
to grow and contribute
towards the sustainable
economic growth of the
country.

MOHAMED NAZRI OMAR
Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer

Income for the year was further weighed down by the provision of Claim Allowance amounting to RM80.4 million
due to technical default for one of our clients. Nevertheless, the income recognised from our investment portfolio
amounting to RM100.7 million helped cushioned the drop in guarantee-related income to arrive at profit before tax of
RM12.9 million. Unlike previous years, this is the first year that we recognised tax expenses as Danajamin is no longer
exempted from income tax. After taking the tax expenses into consideration, we ended the year with a lower profit after tax of
RM3.2 million, as compared to RM119.2 million last year.

COMMITTED TO ENABLING SUSTAINABLE

GROWTH
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STATEMENT FROM THE
MANAGING DIRECTOR/CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Strategies for Growth
Our strategic priorities for 2019 focused on expanding our
market outreach for the mid-sized company segment. To
achieve this, we continued to redefine and transform our
performance and operating model by focusing on internally
generated clients rather than depending on referrals from
external sources.
The change in our client-facing model entails the
segregation of functions between Client Coverage Division
that concentrates on client origination while Client Solutions
Division focuses on structuring and credit evaluation. Since
we implemented this change earlier this year, I am happy to
report that we saw a 40% rise in the number of canvassed
clients and 80% increase in number of approved deals.

2019

As we embarked on the transformation of the client-facing
model, we remained cognisant that some of these midtier corporates, especially those accessing the financial
market for the first time, would require more guidance
in understanding their financial position and funding
requirements. Due to this, we have taken on an extended
role particularly in terms of advisory and deal assessment
before they are even ready to submit their financing
application. This resulted in a longer gestation period for
our deal assessment process of between 6 to 12 months
to convert a potential deal, depending on the nature and
complexity of the deal. This means that most of the deals
worked on in 2019 can only be converted into issuance by
the next year at the earliest.

To further support our market outreach and meeting the
financing needs of mid-sized companies, we are proud to
introduce the pilot roll-out of our new product, the Financing
Facilities Guarantee (FFG). It is an alternative guarantee
approach for financing facilities intended to further expand
and realise the objective of our mandate while also serving
to address the financing needs of the mid-size company
segment.
With the FFG, businesses that are unable to secure the
desired funding either via the bond market due to size
considerations; or obtain financing facilities from lending
institutions due to unfavourable market conditions, longer
financing tenor (e.g. more than 10 years) or emerging
industries, will now be able to do so.
Three pilot deals were approved in 2019 with a total
guarantee size of RM140.3 million and total market impact
of RM375 million. The experience gained from the three
pilot deals provided us with the necessary feedback
towards refining our FFG business processes and relevant
operational issues.
We also continued to develop our human resource talent
further by enhancing their competence and skills for them to
contribute to our growth and sustainability. Our commitment
to talent development anchored in our core values is key to
retaining and ensuring that they remain industry-relevant.

NET EARNED PREMIUMS

RM42.3
Million
INVESTMENT INCOME

RM100.7
Million
PROFIT BEFORE TAX

RM12.9
Million

TOTAL ASSETS

RM2.79
Billion
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

RM1.80
Billion
CLIENTS
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Outlook and Prospects
In its 2019 Economic and Monetary Review, Bank Negara
Malaysia projected Malaysia’s 2020 GDP growth to be
between -2% and 0.5%. This was largely due to the effects
on the domestic economy by the COVID-19 pandemic,
sharp decline and volatile shifts in crude oil prices, and
continued supply disruption in the commodities sector.
Further, in the first and second quarters of 2020, the impact
from the COVID-19 pandemic on the global economy will
continue to spill over to Malaysia through lower tourism
flows, household spending and varying degrees of supply
chain disruptions.
On 27 March 2020, the Government unveiled a RM50 billion
Economic Stimulus Package aimed at assisting businesses
that are adversely impacted by the COVID-19 outbreak
to sustain their business operations and safeguard jobs.
This includes a RM50 billion Guarantee Scheme known as
Danajamin PRIHATIN Guarantee Scheme (DPGS) where
Danajamin will be the administrator and manager to the
DPGS on behalf of Syarikat Jaminan Pembiayaan Perniagaan
Berhad (SJPP), a wholly-owned company of Minister of
Finance Incorporated. On behalf of Danajamin, I would
like to express our heartfelt gratitude to the Government
for this opportunity. We sincerely appreciate the trust and

2019

On 27 March 2020, the
Government unveiled a RM50
billion
Economic
Stimulus
Package aimed at assisting
businesses that are adversely
impacted by the COVID-19
outbreak to sustain their business
operations and safeguard jobs.
confidence that has been placed on Danajamin in helping
the Government to combat the economic impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic.
Notwithstanding the challenges ahead, Danajamin will
strive to move forward, utilising our core strengths of proven
structuring capabilities, deep understanding of middle and
upper-middle corporates, existing market relationships,
strong risk assessment and post-issuance monitoring
capabilities. These strengths underpin our performance and
provide us with a strong foundation for continued growth,
and have also enabled us to successfully deliver on our
strategies. This will undoubtedly help us navigate through
the year 2020 and remain relevant.
Acknowledgements

TOTAL
GUARANTEE

TOTAL
MARKET IMPACT

RM140.3

RM375

CANVASSED
CLIENTS

APPROVED
DEALS

increase of
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40%

80%

Million
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Million

One of the key success factor for Danajamin is the
contribution of our people. I truly appreciate their untiring
passion and dedication in 2019 as well as over the last 10
years to support and deliver our mandate. I look forward to
our continued collective commitment as we move forward
into the next decade.
To conclude, on behalf of Danajamin management and
staff, I would like to express my deepest gratitude to
the Danajamin Board of Directors for their support,
encouragement and wise counsel. Our thanks also go to
our partners and investors for their unwavering support.
Finally, I would like to extend my deepest appreciation and
gratitude to all officials from the Ministry of Finance, Bank
Negara Malaysia, Securities Commission Malaysia and other
related regulatory authorities for their invaluable guidance
and support.
Thank you.
Mohamed Nazri Omar
Chief Executive Officer
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MD YUSOF BIN HUSSIN

MOHAMED RASHDI MOHAMED GHAZALLI

Independent Non-Executive Chairman

Independent Non-Executive Director

Md Yusof Hussin was appointed as an Independent NonExecutive Chairman of Danajamin on 23 August 2018.
He is also a member of the Board Underwriting
Committee.

Mohamed Rashdi Mohamed Ghazalli was appointed as a
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director of Danajamin
on 8 September 2014. He was then re-designated as an
Independent Non-Executive Director on 23 April 2018.

He commenced his career as an Accountant of Robur Tea
Co. Ltd., Australia in 1974 and subsequently joined Coopers
& Lybrand, Malaysia as an Audit Supervisor in 1975.
He joined Utama Wardley Merchant Bank as Senior
Manager of the Banking Division in 1978 and later
joined Harper Gilfillan Group in 1982 as Director of
Corporate and Finance Development. In 1987, he joined
Permodalan Nasional Berhad as General Manager of
Corporate Services Division until 1992. He then became
the Managing Director of Island & Peninsular Berhad
from 1993 to 1999.

He is the Chairman of the Board Remuneration and
Nomination Committee and a member of the Board Risk
Committee and the Board Audit Committee.

Md Yusof Hussin previously sat on the Board of Directors of
Malayan Banking Berhad, UMW Holding Berhad, Lafarge
Malaysia Berhad, Iskandar Investment Berhad and Credit
Guarantee Corporation Malaysia Berhad, to name a few.
He was also appointed as the Chairman of Small Debt
Resolution Committee for small and medium scale
industries from 2003 to 2015.

He is a management and technology consultant with over
30 years of experience in government and diverse industries
such as telecommunications, energy, transport, utilities,
manufacturing and financial services.
He began his career with Telekom Malaysia and then with
Sapura Holdings group. He later moved into consulting,
becoming a Partner of PwC Consulting (East Asia) as well as
IBM Consulting before retiring as IT & Consulting Advisor
with PricewaterhouseCoopers Malaysia. During his career,
he also worked abroad with Telecoms Australia in Melbourne
and Coopers & Lybrand in the United Kingdom.
He was previously on the Board of Directors of Malaysia
Venture Capital Management Berhad, Credit Guarantee
Corporation Malaysia Berhad and Mimos Bhd.

Qualifications:
• Bachelor of Economics, University of Tasmania
• Chartered Accountant and Certified Public Accountant.

Qualifications:
• Bachelor of Science (Honours) degree in Computation,
University of Manchester Institute of Science and
Technology, United Kingdom.

Present Directorship(s):
• TPPT Sdn Bhd (an associated company of Bank Negara
Malaysia).

Present Directorship(s):
• Sapura Energy Berhad
• Tune Protect Group Berhad
• BOS Wealth Management Malaysia Berhad (formerly
known as Pacific Mutual Fund Bhd)
• Tune Insurance Public Company Limited.

Board of Directors' Meetings

The Board meets at least six (6) times each financial year or more as circumstances dictate.
Board meetings and Board Committee meetings are scheduled in advance before the commencement of the new financial year to enable the Directors to plan
and accommodate the year’s meetings into their schedules. The Board requires all members to devote sufficient time to effectively discharge their duties and
to attend at least 75% of the Board meetings.
Special meetings of the Board and Board Committees maybe convened to consider urgent proposals or matters that require expeditious decisions or
deliberations by the Board and/or the Board Committees.
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SURESH MENON

CHOO YEE KWAN

Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

Independent Non-Executive Director

Suresh Menon was appointed as a Non-Independent NonExecutive Director of Danajamin on 11 May 2018. He is a
member of the Board Underwriting Committee, the Board
Remuneration and Nomination Committee and the Board
Investment Committee.
He played an instrumental role in the setting up of RAM
Holdings Berhad (RAM). For 18 years, he facilitated numerous
services and was on the forefront to ensure the agency
reached its pinnacle. He was a board member of RAM and a
member of its Rating Committee. His last position with RAM
was as an Executive Director.
He also participated in developmental projects with
international bodies namely the Asian Development Bank,
APEC Business Advisory Council and the Association of Credit
Rating Agencies in Asia (ACRAA). He was the Chairman of
the ACRAA Training Committee from 2001 until 2009. He
was also a member of the Main Committee of the Malaysian
Corporate Governance Index 2009, 2010 and 2011 for the
Minority Shareholder Watchdog Group.
Since 2010, he has been an Independent Capital Market
Consultant providing consultancy and training services to
financial agencies, World Bank and regulatory authorities in
many countries.
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Choo Yee Kwan was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of Danajamin on 22 May 2018.
He is the Chairman of the Board Risk Committee and the
Board Underwriting Committee. He is also a member of the
Board Investment Committee and the Board Remuneration
and Nomination Committee.
Choo Yee Kwan was amongst the pioneer group of
awardees to be conferred with an Associate Fellowship
by the Asian Institute of Chartered Bankers (AICB)
(previously known as Institut Bank-Bank Malaysia) in 1999.
He
was
appointed
to
the
Corporate
Debt
Restructuring Committee (set up under the auspices
of Bank Negara Malaysia) from 1999-2001. He
also served on the Education Committee of AICB
for 14 years (2000-2014); and was re-appointed in 2016.
Out of a total of 38 years in the banking and risk
management industry, Choo Yee Kwan had 16 years’
experience in Chief Risk Officer / Chief Credit Officer
roles in three different banks (including Maybank Group
and OCBC Bank Malaysia).
Choo Yee Kwan was appointed as a member of the University
Malaya Medical Centre Ethics Committee for two years
(2014-2015). He is a Chartered Banker and is currently
a Teaching Facilitator in the Asian Banking School.

Qualifications:
• Bachelor of Technology, University of Madras
• Masters in Business Management, Asian Institute of
Management, Philippines.

Qualifications:
• Degree in Economics (Hons.), University of Malaya
• Degree in Law (Hons.), University of London
• Barrister-at-Law (of Lincoln’s Inn), Bar of England and
Wales
• Chartered Banker, conferred jointly by the Chartered
Banker Institute of the United Kingdom and AICB
Malaysia.

Present Directorship(s):
• Credit Guarantee Corporation Malaysia Berhad
• Credit Bureau Malaysia Sdn Bhd.

Present Directorship(s):
• HSBC Bank Malaysia Berhad.
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DATUK CHE MOKHTAR BIN CHE ALI

ELAKUMARI KANTILAL

Independent Non-Executive Director

Independent Non-Executive Director

Datuk Che Mokhtar Che Ali was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of Danajamin
on 23 August 2018. He is a member of the Board
Underwriting Committee, the Board Remuneration and
Nomination Committee and the Board Audit Committee.

Elakumari Kantilal was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of Danajamin on 23 August 2018.
She is the Chairman of the Board Investment Committee
and the Board Audit Committee. She is also a member of
the Board Risk Committee.

He is the Founder Partner of Messrs Che Mokhtar & Ling.
He has been an Advocate and Solicitor of the High Court of
Malaya since 1983 and was a Magistrate and Deputy Public
Prosecutor. He possesses more than 30 years of experience
as a Legal Practitioner. He is a Notary Public appointed by
the Attorney General of Malaysia.

She started her career with the Accountant General’s office
in 1981 and served several ministries during her tenure in
civil service which, inter alia, included the Ministry
of Agriculture and Ministry of Finance’s Division on
Monitoring Government owned enterprises. She was
actively involved in the establishment of Khazanah
in 1994 and remained as part of its core management
team until she concluded her tenure in 2017 as Director of
Investment.

He was previously on the Board of Directors of Mass Rapid
Transit Corporation Sdn Bhd.

She has held a number of executive positions and
directorships across the investment and consultancy
sectors. She previously sat on the Board of Directors of
Opus International Consultants Limited from August 2017
to December 2017, UEM Builders Berhad from January
2015 to February 2016 and TIME Engineering Berhad
(now Dagang NeXchange Berhad) from October 2001 to
November 2013.

Qualifications:
• Bachelor of Laws (LLB), Victoria University of Wellington,
New Zealand
• Bachelor of Arts (B.A.), Victoria University of Wellington,
New Zealand.

Qualifications:
• Bachelor of Accounting, University Kebangsaan Malaysia
• Master of Science in Finance and Accounting, University
of East Anglia, United Kingdom
• Member, Malaysian Institute of Accountants
• International Institute for Management Development
(IMD), Switzerland
• Harvard’s Premier Business Management Programme.

Present Directorship(s):
• Brilliant Heritage Sdn Bhd.

Present Directorship(s):
• UEM Edgenta Berhad
• TIME dotCom Berhad
• Sistem Transit Aliran Ringan Sdn Bhd.
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MUHAMAD SHAHRIL OTHMAN

MOHAMED NAZRI OMAR

Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer

Muhamad Shahril Othman was appointed as a
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director of Danajamin
on 19 October 2018. He is a member of the Board
Underwriting Committee and the Board Remuneration
and Nomination Committee.
He is currently the Senior Private Secretary to Secretary
General of Treasury, Ministry of Finance. He started
his career with Hong Leong Bank Berhad in 2001
and subsequently served in civil service with the
Government of Malaysia for 16 years under several
Ministries
and
Government-linked
companies.
He was previously appointed as the Advisor
to Executive Director, The World Bank Group and
Affiliates, Washington DC, USA.
He was also a member of Perbadanan Padang Golf Subang
and Perbadanan Kemajuan Negeri Kedah.
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Mohamed Nazri Omar was appointed as the Managing
Director/Chief Executive Officer of Danajamin on 1 May 2014.
He was previously a Director, Client Coverage Division of
Danajamin since 8 November 2011.
Mohamed Nazri’s corporate career has been within the
financial industry particularly in the corporate banking and
capital markets. He began his career at Citibank Berhad
and subsequently served in Macquarie Bank Limited and
RHB Investment Bank Berhad (then known as RHB Sakura
Merchant Bankers Berhad).
Before joining Danajamin, Mohamed Nazri served in
several capacities at Kuwait Finance House (M) Bhd (KFH)
including Director of Investment Banking and Head of
Capital Markets and Advisory. Under these roles, he was
responsible for the origination and structuring of Shariah
compliant financing transactions as well as advising on
project finance structures and transactions. As one of the
pioneers at KFH, he was primarily involved in the setting up
of the KFH’s Corporate and Investment Banking Division.
Mohamed Nazri was appointed as Chairman of Prima Ekuiti
(UK) Limited effective 28 March 2019. He is also a member
of the Investment Panel of Kumpulan Wang Persaraan
(Diperbadankan) (KWAP) since 1 May 2016.

Qualifications:
• Bachelor of Business Administration (Hons) in Marketing,
Universiti Teknologi MARA, Malaysia and Masters
of International Economics & Finance, University of
Queensland, Australia.

Qualifications:
• Bachelor of Arts, Economics (Hons) and Government,
Cornell University, USA
• Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA).

Present Directorship(s):
• Bank Kerjasama Rakyat Malaysia Berhad
• Lembaga Perindustrian Kayu Malaysia (Alternate Director).

Present Directorship(s):
• Chairman of Prima Ekuiti (UK) Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of KWAP
• Investment Panel Member of KWAP.
Mohamed Nazri retired as the Managing Director of
Danajamin upon expiry of his directorship tenure on
30 April 2020. He continues to be the Chief Executive Officer
of Danajamin.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM
MOHAMED NAZRI OMAR
Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer

Please refer to his profile in the Directors’ Profile on page 33.

AMRI SOFIAN
Chief Corporate & Investment Officer

Professional Background:
Amri
Sofian
joined
Danajamin
on
15 November 2011 as Director, Finance.
He was later appointed as Director, Client
Management before assuming his current
role as Chief Corporate & Investment Officer.
Prior to joining Danajamin, Amri last served
as the Chief Financial Officer of RHB Islamic
Bank Berhad. Amri had also held the position
of Vice President – Head of Finance Shared
Services at RHB Bank Berhad. He received his
initial career experience as an external auditor

with PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC) where
he worked in the Audit and Business Advisory
Services department. During his 10-year stint
with PwC, Amri also served in PwC London
under a secondment programme.
Qualifications:
•• Fellow Member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants (FCCA)
•• Member of the Malaysian Institute of
Accountants (MIA)

JASON GOAY
Chief Risk Officer

Professional Background:
Jason
Goay
joined
Danajamin
on
20 September 2011. His corporate career
has been within the financial industry
over the last 25 years. He began his career
in 1994, spending 5 years in Arab-Malaysian
Merchant Bank Berhad (currently known as
AmInvestment Bank Berhad) and Perwira
Affin Merchant Bank Berhad (currently known
as Affin Investment Bank Berhad) where
he was involved in factoring, corporate
banking and capital markets work. Prior to
joining Danajamin, Jason served in HSBC

Bank Malaysia Berhad for 12 years in various
capacities in Risk Management including
in the areas of financial analysis, corporate
recovery, treasury credit risk, stress testing and
corporate credit approvals. His last position in
HSBC Bank was Senior Wholesale Credit Risk
Manager.
Qualifications:
•• Chartered Management Accountant
•• Associate member (ACMA) of the Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants (CIMA)

GERALD GOH
Director, Client Coverage

Professional Background:
Gerald
Goh
joined
Danajamin
on
9 October 2017. He brings with him
23 years of solid experience and proven
banking track record covering Investment
Banking, Corporate and Commercial Banking,
Trade Finance and Recovery in various financial
institutions including HSBC Bank Malaysia
Berhad, Hong Leong Bank Berhad and
Danaharta. Prior to joining Danajamin, Gerald

last served at AmInvestment Bank Berhad as
one of the Large Corporate Client Coverage
Heads.
Qualifications:
•• Bachelor of Business (Banking & Finance),
Monash University, Australia
•• Bachelor of Business (Management), Monash
University, Australia
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WEE YEE TAT
Director, Client Solutions

Professional Background:
Wee Yee Tat joined Danajamin on
18 April 2011. His career began in the
CEO’s office, before moving on as Associate
Director, Risk Management division. He was
then transferred to the Client Management
division where he is currently the head of the
division. Yee Tat’s career experience has been
within the debt capital market covering areas
such as credit risk, financial advisory and fundraising activities. He started his career as a
trader in Arab-Malaysian Merchant Bank after
which he joined Rating Agency Malaysia (RAM)

where he gained close to 5 years of credit
experience in the Infrastructure & Utilities
Division and Industrial Products Division.
He later left RAM to join a boutique financial
advisory firm that specialises in financial
advisory and fund-raising activities over the
next 4 years; covering local and regional
infrastructure projects such as toll roads and
power plants.
Qualifications:
•• Bachelor of Business Administration,
Finance, Multimedia University

in

JOYCE TEH
Director, Investment

Professional Background:
Joyce Teh joined Danajamin on 24 September
2012 and was later appointed as the Director
of Investment. She oversees the Investment
and Investors Relation functions of the
Company. Prior to assuming her current role,
Joyce was the Deputy Director of Investment
and had also previously covered the Finance
and Capital Management portfolios. Joyce
commenced her career as an external auditor
with PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC) for 6
years, where she provided audit and advisory
services to clients in the financial services
industry. She also served in RHB Bank Berhad

as the Head of Statutory and Management
Reporting and Hong Leong Financial Group as
the Head of Finance and Operations.
Qualifications:
•• Bachelor of Science, Applied Accounting,
Oxford Brookes University, UK
•• Master
of
Science,
Corporate
Risk
Management with Distinction, University of
Salford, Manchester, UK
•• Fellow Member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants (FCCA)

POORANI RAMACHANDRAN
Director, Finance

Professional Background:
Poorani Ramachandran joined Danajamin on
4 January 2010 as Director, Internal Audit
before assuming her current role as Director,
Finance in 2014. She oversees the functions of
Finance, Capital Management and Reporting,
Information Technology and Administration
of the Company. Poorani started her career
in KPMG Peat Marwick, Singapore as an
external auditor. Subsequently, she returned
to Malaysia and briefly served at Jerneh Asia
Berhad. Prior to joining Danajamin, Poorani
was the Chief Internal Auditor of ING Insurance
Berhad, ING Employee Benefits Berhad and
ING Funds Berhad. There she oversaw the
management and operations of the internal
audit operations and also supported other ING
regional entities.

Qualifications:
•• Bachelor of Commerce, in Accounting
and Finance (First Class Honours), Lincoln
University, New Zealand
•• Masters in Commerce, in Accounting, Lincoln
University, New Zealand
•• Fellow
Chartered
Accountant
(FCA),
Chartered
Accountants,
Australia
and
New Zealand
•• Member of the Malaysian Institute of
Accountants (MIA).
•• Certified Internal Auditor (CIA), Certified Risk
Management Assessment (RMA) and Quality
Assessment Certifications by the Institute of
Internal Auditors (IIA), United States
•• Chartered Banker, Asian Institute of Chartered
Bankers
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KAREENA KAUR
Deputy Director, Human Capital

Professional Background:
Kareena
Kaur
was
appointed
the
Head
of
Human
Capital
on
the
1 September 2019. Kareena has 15 years
of prior experience in banking and financial
services, covering areas such as employee
& industrial relations, recruitment, HR
audit, risk & compliance, and performance
management. Kareena functions as a liaison
between business leaders and HR to ensure
that HR services are aligned with overall
business objectives. Prior to joining Danajamin,
Kareena was the Human Resource Relationship
Manager for the retail banking division at

Hong Leong Bank Berhad, with previous stints
at CIMB Aviva Berhad, Kuwait Finance House
Berhad and Standard Chartered Bank Berhad.
Kareena was also previously an editor of the
All Malaysia Reports, published by Sweet &
Maxwell Malaysia.
Qualifications:
•• Bachelor of Laws (Honours), University of
London
•• Certificate in Legal Practice, Malaysia
•• Advocate & Solicitor, the High Court of Malaya

RIZWIL ISMAIL
Deputy Director, Corporate Strategy & Communications

Professional Background:
Rizwil Ismail joined Danajamin on 25 June
2018 as Deputy Director of Corporate
Strategy. She oversees the Corporate Strategy
and the Communications functions of the
Company. Rizwil commenced her career
as a consultant with PricewaterhouseCoopers
for 7 years, where she provided business
recovery services to clients in various
industries. Prior to joining Danajamin, she also
served in Malayan Banking Berhad as Head
of Strategy & Branding, Strategy &
Transformation for Global Banking and
Vice President of Corporate Planning &
Strategy at Cagamas Berhad. Prior to assuming

her current role, Rizwil was the Vice President
of Location Strategy & Operating Model
Lead for Global Banking and Markets Service
Centres, HSBC.
Qualifications:
•• Bachelor of Law (LLB Honours), University of
East Anglia, Norwich, UK
•• Master of Business Administration, Finance,
Manchester Business School, University of
Manchester, UK
•• Utter Barrister (of Grays Inn), Bar of England
and Wales, UK

JUNAIDAH ABDUL RAHIM
Director, Legal

Professional Background:
Junaidah Abdul Rahim was appointed
as Director, Legal of Danajamin on
4 December 2017. She brings with her
17 years of solid legal experience and
has practised in the areas of corporate,
securities law and banking and finance
law, with particular emphasis on capital
market and corporate finance transactions.
Junaidah also has significant experience in
Islamic finance work and general corporate
commercial work which include several highly
publicised listing and fund-raising exercises.
Prior to joining Danajamin, Junaidah was a
partner with Messrs Albar & Partners.

Qualifications:
•• Bachelor of Laws with Honours from Bond
University, Australia
•• Postgraduate Diploma in Legal Practice
from Bond University, Australia
•• Admitted as Advocate & Solicitor, High
Court of Malaya
•• Admitted as Solicitor, Supreme Court of
NSW, Australia
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ADRIAN TAY
Director, Enterprise Risk Management & Compliance

Professional Background:
Adrian
Tay
joined
Danajamin
on
12 January 2011. He was Director,
Corporate Strategy managing the Corporate
Strategy and Project Management Office
portfolios before assuming his current
role in April 2017. He had also served in
the CEO’s Office and managed the Investor
Relations and Communications portfolios.
Prior to joining Danajamin, Adrian served in
AmInvestment Bank Berhad for 16 years in its
key business divisions namely Debt Capital
Markets, Corporate Finance and Corporate
Banking. He commenced his career in
Corporate Banking. After gathering 5 years
of credit and debt experience, he served
in Corporate Finance and was involved in
primary (IPO) and secondary fund-raisings,
mergers & acquisitions as well as restructuring
transactions for another 5 years. He then

joined Debt Capital Markets where he served
6 years advising, structuring and implementing
fundraising solutions.
Qualifications:
•• Bachelor of Arts in Business Organisation from
Heriot-Watt University, UK
•• Fellow Member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants (FCCA)
•• Member of the Malaysian Institute of
Accountants (MIA).
•• Enterprise
Risk
Manager
Professional
certification, the Institute of Enterprise Risk
Practitioners
•• Certified Compliance & Ethics Professional
(International) Certification, the Society of
Corporate Compliance & Ethics, United States

JOHN BAPTIST JESU DOSS
Deputy Director, Credit Risk

Professional Background:
John Baptist was appointed Head of
the Credit Division on 6 January 2020.
He has had an extensive 30 years of experience
in banking encompassing credit evaluation
and approval, managing of impaired loans,
marketing and credit administration. Prior
to joining Danajamin, John was a Senior
Wholesale
Credit
Risk
Manager
with
HSBC Malaysia Bank Berhad. He had previous
stints with CIMB Bank Berhad, RHB Bank
Berhad, Mayban Discount Berhad, Affin Finance
Berhad and Public Bank Berhad. His key role
is to oversee the credit risk function, safeguard

the quality of our portfolio and to ensure
that underwriting proposals are within the
Risk Appetite of Danajamin.
Qualifications:
•• Master of Business Administration, University
of Southern Queensland, Australia
•• Bachelor of Laws (Honours), University of
London
•• Associate, Asian Institute of Chartered
Bankers

RAEVATHI PATHMANATHAN
Director, Internal Audit

Professional Background:
Raevathi Pathmanathan joined Danajamin on 8
December 2014. She has 19 years of internal
auditing experience. She commenced her
career in Internal Audit, AmBank Group
accumulating 15 years of experience in various
areas of specialisation namely Shared
Services, Commercial Banking and Regulatory
Compliance. Raevathi was also actively
involved in supervising and conducting
the Bank-wide Anti-Money Laundering and
Anti-Terrorism Financing review for regulatory
purposes.

Qualifications:
•• Bachelor of Arts (Hons) in Management
(Finance
Major,
Economics
Minor),
University Sains Malaysia, Pulau Pinang.
•• Certified Internal Auditor (CIA)
•• Advanced Certification in Anti-Money
Laundering and Anti-Terrorism Financing,
Asian Institute of Chartered Bankers
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ORGANISATION CHART

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
BOARD
RISK
COMMITTEE

MOHAMED NAZRI OMAR

CHIEF CORPORATE &
INVESTMENT OFFICER

CHIEF RISK
OFFICER 1

AMRI SOFIAN

JASON GOAY

BOARD
AUDIT
COMMITTEE

CLIENT
COVERAGE

CLIENT
SOLUTIONS

INVESTMENT

FINANCE

HUMAN
CAPITAL

CORPORATE
STRATEGY &
COMMUNICATIONS

LEGAL

ERM &
COMPLIANCE

CREDIT
RISK

INTERNAL
AUDIT 1

GERALD GOH

WEE YEE TAT

JOYCE TEH

POORANI
RAMACHANDRAN

KAREENA
KAUR

RIZWIL ISMAIL

JUNAIDAH
ABDUL RAHIM

ADRIAN TAY

JOHN BAPTIST 3

RAEVATHI
PATHMANATHAN

RELATIONSHIP
MANAGEMENT

ACCOUNT
MANAGEMENT

INVESTMENT

FINANCE

HUMAN
CAPITAL

STRATEGY &
PRODUCT
DEVELOPMENT

ENTERPRISE
RISK &
COMPLIANCE

CREDIT RISK

INVESTOR
RELATIONS

CAPITAL
MANAGEMENT
& REPORTING
INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGY

REWARDS &
BENEFITS

LEGAL
COMPANY
SECRETARIAL

COMMUNICATIONS

PORTFOLIO
RISK 2

AUDIT

SPECIAL
ASSETS 2

CREDIT
ADMINISTRATION

TALENT
DEVELOPMENT &
MANAGEMENT

ADMINISTRATION
TALENT
ACQUISITION

Note:
1

The Chief Risk Officer and Director, Internal Audit are independent roles and report directly to the respective Board Committees.

2

Portfolio Risk and Special Assets units report directly to the Chief Risk Officer.

3

Head of Credit Risk was appointed on 6 January 2020.
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OUR DIVISIONS

CLIENT COVERAGE
The role of the division is key in ensuring Danajamin’s
business growth. The division forms the first touch-point
with potential client. Upon initial credit assessment and
ascertaining the viability of the proposed transaction,
the Client Solution Division will initiate the origination
process. The division is also responsible for client
relationship management.

CLIENT SOLUTIONS
The division is responsible for all origination process
such as structuring, negotiation on term sheet, credit
evaluation, credit approval and documentation leading
up to guarantee policy issuance. Thereafter, the division
will continue to undertake the account monitoring
function.

FINANCE
The division comprises of four units under its umbrella:
Finance, Capital Management & Reporting, Information
Technology and Administration.
The Finance unit is responsible for financial reporting,
payments and investment middle-office operations.
The Capital Management & Reporting unit ensures
adherence
to
regulatory
capital
management
requirements, stakeholder management and reporting
(including regulators, shareholders and rating agencies)
are in order.
The Information Technology and Administration Units are
support units providing technological and administrative
support to ensure smooth operations in the organisation.
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INVESTMENT
Investment primarily oversees Danajamin’s investment
activities and management of the Company’s funds to derive
a reasonable return while preserving liquidity for any potential
guarantee claim payout. The division also provides a platform
to communicate, engage and enhance our relations with the
investors of guaranteed bonds/Sukuk.

HUMAN CAPITAL
Human Capital plays a strategic role in people management,
organisation culture and creating a workplace environment
that develops an engaged and competent workforce that
live our core values.

CORPORATE STRATEGY &
COMMUNICATIONS
The division comprises of the corporate strategy and
communications functions.
Corporate Strategy is responsible for developing and
executing strategic initiatives that deliver the objectives
of the Company. It undertakes strategic planning, project
management and product development activities.
Communications manages all communication activities
(media and public relations, content marketing, events)
related to the development and implementation of the
Company’s branding strategy.

INTERNAL AUDIT
The division is responsible for the internal audit and the
independent credit review functions.
The internal audit function undertakes regular reviews of
Danajamin’s operational processes premised on a risk-based
approach and reports on the adequacy and effectiveness
of the risk management, internal controls and governance
processes.
The independent credit review function undertakes credit
reviews to ensure that credit decision making remains
consistent with Danajamin’s overall credit risk management
arrangements and relevant legal and regulatory requirements.
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ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT
& COMPLIANCE
Enterprise Risk Management & Compliance
is responsible for ensuring that a robust risk
management framework is in place to manage and
minimise risks within Danajamin and to ensure that
the Company is in compliance with all relevant
regulations and policies.

CREDIT RISK
The division manages credit risk through a set of
stringent and comprehensive credit risk policies
and guidelines. The Credit Risk Division provides
independent assessments and ensures that all credit
proposals are subject to a robust credit evaluation
process.

LEGAL
The division is responsible for the legal, company
secretarial and credit administration functions. The
legal function supports Danajamin in all legal matters
pertaining to Danajamin’s business and operations.
The responsibilities of the company secretarial function
include advising on corporate governance matters;
administering all meetings of shareholders, Board of
Directors and its committees as well as Management
committees; and ensuring compliance with company
law and the constitution of Danajamin.
The credit administration function administers the
issuance of financial guarantee policies and monitors
financial guarantee facility related matters such
as tracking of reporting covenants and status of
guarantee fee payments.
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STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Board Responsibilities and Oversight

The Board acknowledges its key responsibilities and is committed in ensuring
that the principles of good corporate governance are applied in all aspects of
the Company’s operations.
Board Composition and Balance
The Board comprises seven (7) members, one (1) Independent Non-Executive Chairman, four (4) Independent Non-Executive
Directors and two (2) Non-Independent Non-Executive Directors.
Diversity in the Board’s composition is essential to facilitate good decision making as this enables different insights and
perspectives to be harnessed. The Board comprises members with various professional backgrounds including from the fields
of finance, accounting, legal, information technology and credit analysis, all of whom bring in-depth and diverse experiences,
expertise and perspectives to the Company’s operations.
Collectively, the Board brings a wide spectrum of business acumen, skills and perspectives necessary for good decision-making
process. The diversity and depth of knowledge offered by the Board reflect the commitment of the Company to ensure effective
leadership and oversight of the Company’s performance.
The Independent Non-Executive Directors provide unbiased and independent views to ensure the strategies proposed by the
Management are fully deliberated.
Board of Directors’ Meetings
The Board meets at least six (6) times each financial year or more as circumstances dictate.
Board meetings and Board Committee meetings are scheduled in advance before the commencement of the new financial year
to enable the Directors to plan and accommodate the year’s meetings into their schedules. The Board requires all members to
devote sufficient time to effectively discharge their duties and to attend at least 75% of the Board meetings.
Special meetings of the Board and Board Committees maybe convened to consider urgent proposals or matters that require
expeditious decisions or deliberations by the Board and/or the Board Committees.
Agenda and Management Papers are distributed in advance for all Board and Board Committees so that Directors have sufficient
time to review to facilitate full discussion at the meetings. Agendas of meetings that include, amongst others, minutes of meetings,
comprehensive management reports, project or investment proposals and supporting documents, will be disseminated to
Directors prior to the dates of the meetings. However, Management Papers that are deemed urgent may still be submitted to
the Company Secretary to be tabled at the meeting under any other matters subject to the approval of the Chairman.
All issues raised, key deliberations, decisions and conclusions, including dissenting views made at Board and Board Committee
meetings are recorded in the minutes of meetings. Where the Board is considering a matter in which a Director has an interest,
the relevant Director must immediately disclose the nature of his/her interest and abstain from participating in any discussion or
decision-making on the subject matter.
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The Board is advised and updated on statutory and regulatory requirements pertaining to its duties and responsibilities. As and
when the need arises, the Board is also provided with reports, information papers and relevant trainings, where necessary, to
ensure it is appraised on key business, operational, corporate, legal, regulatory and industry matters.
Whenever necessary, senior management and/or external advisors are invited to attend Board and Board Committee meetings
to provide clarification on agenda items so as to enable the Board and/or the Board Committees to arrive at a considered and
informed decision.
The Board has access to all information pertaining to the Company’s business and affairs through the senior management and
the Company Secretary to enable it to discharge its duties effectively.
The Board has adopted a schedule of matters specially reserved for its approval which include, amongst others,
reviewing and approving the following:
• Strategic/business plans and annual budget;
• New investments, divestments, mergers and acquisitions, corporate restructuring including the establishment of
subsidiaries, joint ventures or strategic alliances both locally and abroad where the sum or cost is considered
significant or material;
• Financial statements;
• Appointment of new Directors, CEO and Company Secretary;
• Material related party transactions; and
• Any form of borrowing or fund-raising exercise.

The following Directors have retired in 2019/2020:

Dato’ Azian Mohd Noh

Ariffin Hew

Mohamed Nazri Omar

Retired on
24 June 2019

Retired on
24 October 2019

Retired on
30 April 2020
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During the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the Board met nine (9) times to deliberate and consider a variety of significant
matters that required its guidance and approval. All Directors have attended at least 75% of the total Board meetings held during
the financial year.
Details of attendance of each Director during the financial year ended 31 December 2019 are as follows:

Number of
Meetings and
Attendance

Percentage of
Attendance

Md Yusof Hussin (Chairman)

9/9

100%

Mohamed Rashdi Mohamed Ghazalli

9/9

100%

Suresh Menon

9/9

100%

Choo Yee Kwan

9/9

100%

Datuk Che Mokhtar Che Ali

9/9

100%

Elakumari Kantilal

9/9

100%

Muhamad Shahril Othman

9/9

100%

Mohamed Nazri Omar
(retired on 30 April 2020)

9/9

100%

Dato’ Azian Mohd Noh
(retired on 24 June 2019)

4/4

100%

Ariffin Hew
(retired on 24 October 2019)

6/6

100%

Name of Directors

Roles and Responsibilities of the Chairman and the CEO
The roles and responsibilities of both the Chairman and the CEO are clearly separated with the positions being held by two
different individuals to ensure that an appropriate balance of role and authority is maintained.
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Chairman
The Chairman assumes the formal role of a leader and chairs all Board meetings, leads discussions among Directors and provides
leadership to the Board in its oversight of Management.
The Chairman facilitates the flow of information between Management and the Board, and in consultation with Management,
sets the agenda for each Board meeting. Other key roles of a Chairman are, among others, the following:
(i)

to ensure the smooth functioning of the Board, the governance structure and inculcating positive culture in the Board;

(ii)

to ensure appropriate procedures are in place to govern the Board’s operation and conduct;

(iii)

to ensure all relevant issues are on agenda for Board meeting;

(iv)

ensure that decisions are taken on a sound and well-informed basis including ensuring that strategic and critical issues are
considered by the Board;

(v)

to ensure the Board receives relevant information on timely basis;

(vi)

to ensure avenues are provided for all directors to participate openly in discussions and ensure that dissenting views can
be freely expressed and discussed;

(vii)

to ensure that the Board comes to a clear decision and resolutions are noted; and

(viii) to lead efforts to address developmental needs of the Board.
CEO
The CEO assumes the primary responsibility over the day-to-day management of the Company and the implementation of the
Company’s strategy. The CEO leads the Management in carrying out the corporate strategy and vision of the Company.
The key roles of CEO in leading the Management include, among others:
(i)

to ensure that the Company’s business and risk strategies, remuneration and other policies are effectively implemented in
accordance with the direction given by the Board;

(ii)

to ensure that a management structure that promotes accountability and transparency throughout the Company’s operations
is established;

(iii)

to ensure that the effectiveness and independence of control functions are preserved;

(iv)

promoting, together with the Board, a sound corporate culture within the Company which reinforces ethical, prudent and
professional behaviour;

(v)

to ensure that the Board is regularly updated with material information to allow the Board to carry out its oversight
responsibilities particularly on matters relating to:
•

the performance, financial condition and operating environment of the Company;

•

internal control failures, including breaches of risk limits;

•

legal and regulatory obligations, including supervisory concerns and the remedial actions taken to address them; and

•

ensuring that actual or suspected breaches of regulatory requirements or internal policies are addressed in a timely
and appropriate manner.
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Board Committees
The Board has established several Board Committees which operate within their respective clearly defined terms of reference
to assist the Board in executing its duties and responsibilities. Although the Board may delegate certain duties to the Board
Committees, it remains ultimately responsible for the decisions of the Board Committees.
The Board Committees established are as follows:
1.

Board Remuneration and Nomination Committee (“BRNC”);

2.

Board Audit Committee (“BAC”);

3.

Board Risk Committee (“BRC”);

4.

Board Underwriting Committee (“BUC”); and

5.

Board Investment Committee (“BIC”).

Pursuant to Paragraph 12.3 of the Corporate Governance (“CG”) Guidelines, each of the BRNC, BAC and BRC must comply with
the following:
(i)

have at least three (3) directors;

(ii)

have a majority of independent directors;

(iii)

be chaired by an independent director; and

(iv)

comprise directors who have the skills, knowledge and experience relevant to the responsibilities of that Board Committee.

The functions and terms of reference of the Board Committees are clearly defined as follows:
1.

BRNC
Composition
The BRNC shall comprise of at least three (3) members, all of whom must be Non-Executive Directors. As at
31 December 2019, the BRNC consists of the following three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors and two (2)
Non-Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Members
(i)

Mohamed Rashdi Mohamed Ghazalli (Chairman)

(ii)

Dato’ Azian Mohd Noh (ceased as a member on 24 June 2019)

(iii)

Suresh Menon

(iv)

Datuk Che Mokhtar Che Ali

(v)

Muhamad Shahril Othman

(vi)

Choo Yee Kwan (appointed as a member on 19 August 2019)

Meetings
Meetings are held at least once every financial quarter and on such other occasions as the BRNC Chairman deems necessary.
In the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the BRNC met eight (8) times, comprising four (4) scheduled meetings and
four (4) special meetings.
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The details of attendance of each BRNC member at the BRNC meeting during the financial year ended
31 December 2019 are as follows:
Number of
Meetings and
Attendance

Percentage of
Attendance

Mohamed Rashdi Mohamed Ghazalli

8/8

100%

Dato’ Azian Mohd Noh
(ceased as a member on 24 June 2019)

5/5

100%

Suresh Menon

8/8

100%

Datuk Che Mokhtar Che Ali

8/8

100%

Muhamad Shahril Othman

8/8

100%

Choo Yee Kwan
(appointed as a member on 19 August 2019)

3/3

100%

Name of Directors

Objectives
The function of the BRNC is to support the Board to do the following:
a.

To actively oversee the design and operation of the Company’s remuneration system in line with the requirements set
out in the CG Guidelines for directors, CEO and Key Senior Management Officers and ensuring that the Company’s
compensation package is competitive to enable the Company to attract and retain high calibre executives needed to
run and manage the Company successfully.

b.

To provide a formal and transparent procedure for the following in line with the requirements of the CG Guidelines:
(i)

appointment, removal, role and performance evaluation and development as well as fit and proper assessments
on members of the Board, members of the Board committees, the CEO, Key Senior Management Officers and
the company secretary; and

(ii)

the composition of the Board taking into account the need for the Board to have the appropriate balance and
size, and the required mix of skills, experience and other core competencies.

Quorum
Quorum necessary for transaction of business shall be a majority of the members at any one time.
Secretary
Company secretary or his/her nominee shall act as the Secretary to the BRNC.
Voting
Decision is by majority, with casting vote to the BRNC Chairman.
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Authority
The BRNC shall have the authority to:
a.

Have full, free and unrestricted access to any records, information, documents, internal auditors, external auditors and
employees of the Company in order to perform its duties and discharge its responsibilities; and

b.

Obtain independent professional advice and expertise at the Company’s expense on any matter within its terms of
reference.

Duties and responsibilities
a.

To periodically review the remuneration of directors on the Board, particularly whether remuneration remains
appropriate to each director’s contribution, taking into account the level of expertise, commitment and responsibilities
undertaken.

b.

To review and recommend to the Board the compensation, benefits and salary scale and terms and conditions for all
levels of employees of the Company.

c.

To review and recommend to the Board the overall budget for the annual bonus and salary increment for all levels of
employees of the Company.

d.

To consider and recommend to the Board concerning:

e.

(i)

suitable candidates for appointment as CEO and Head of Functions;

(ii)

the compensation and benefits package and the terms and conditions of service of the CEO and Head of
Functions; and

(iii)

suitable candidate for the appointment as the company secretary.

To review and approve the following:
(i)

the remuneration package of Heads of Division (other than the Chief Risk Officer and the Head of Division of
Internal Audit); and

(ii)

the promotions and appointments of all Heads of Division excluding the Chief Risk Officer and the Head of
Division of Internal Audit.

f.

To review the ongoing appropriateness and relevance of the remuneration policy ensuring that the input from the
control functions and the Board Risk Committee have been considered adequately.

g.

To consider and recommend to the Board concerning:
(i)

suitable candidates for appointment as Directors; and

(ii)

the re-appointment of any Non-Executive Directors at the conclusion of their specified term of office with due
regard to their performance and ability to contribute to the Board in light of knowledge, skills and experience
required.
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To establish a mechanism to assess on an annual basis the following and to review the results of such annual
assessment:
(i)

The effectiveness of the Board as a whole, the contribution of each Committee of the Board and the performance
of each individual director;

(ii)

The performance of the CEO, the Key Senior Management Officers and the company secretary; and

(iii)

The required mix of skills and experience and other qualities, including diversity and core competencies, which
Non-Executive Directors should bring to the Board.

i.

To consider and recommend to the Board measures to upgrade the effectiveness of the Board and Committees of
the Board.

j.

To assist the Board in the regular review of succession plans for the Board and the Board Committees.

k.

To ensure directors, the CEO, the Key Senior Management Officers and the company secretary are assessed against
the minimum fit and proper requirements under the CG Guidelines and the Fit and Proper Criteria Guidelines issued
by BNM at the time of appointment, on an annual basis or as and when circumstance changed that may affect the
ability to meet such minimum requirements.

l.

To consider any conflict of issues disclosed by proposed directors and if relevant or applicable, recommend solutions
(if any) on such disclosed issues of conflict of interest.

BAC
Composition
The BAC shall comprise of at least three (3) members, all of whom must be Non-Executive Directors. As at
31 December 2019, the BAC consists of the following three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Members
(i)

Elakumari Kantilal (re-designated as Chairman on 26 July 2019)

(ii)

Dato’ Azian Mohd Noh (ceased as Chairman on 24 June 2019)

(iii)

Ariffin Hew (ceased as a member on 24 October 2019)

(iv)

Mohamed Rashdi Mohamed Ghazalli

(v)

Datuk Che Mokhtar Che Ali (appointed as a member on 1 November 2019)

Meetings
Meetings are held at least once every financial quarter and such other occasions as the BAC Chairman deems necessary
or if requested by the internal auditors or external auditors. In the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the BAC met a
total of six (6) times as scheduled. The BAC met the external auditors twice in 2019 without the presence of Management.
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The details of attendance of each BAC member at the BAC meeting during the financial year ended
31 December 2019 are as follows:
Number of
Meetings and
Attendance

Percentage of
Attendance

Elakumari Kantilal
(re-designated as Chairman on 26 July 2019)

6/6

100%

Dato’ Azian Mohd Noh
(ceased as Chairman on 24 June 2019)

3/3

100%

Ariffin Hew
(ceased as a member on 24 October 2019)

5/5

100%

Mohamed Rashdi Mohamed Ghazalli

6/6

100%

–

–

Name of Directors

Datuk Che Mokhtar Che Ali
(appointed as a member on 1 November 2019)
Objective

The function of the BAC is to support the Board in ensuring that there is a reliable and transparent financial reporting
process within the Company.
Quorum
Quorum necessary for the transaction of business shall be a majority of members at any one time.
Secretary
Company secretary or his/her representative within the Secretarial Unit shall act as the Secretary to BAC.
Voting
Decision is by majority of members, with casting vote to BAC Chairman.
Authority
The BAC shall have authority to:
a.

Investigate any matter within its terms of reference;

b.

Have full, free and unrestricted access to any records, information, documents, internal auditors, external auditors and
employees of the Company in order to perform its duties and discharge its responsibilities; and

c.

Obtain independent professional advice and expertise at the Company’s expense on any matter within its terms of
reference.
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Duties and responsibilities
a.

To review the Company’s financial statements (including interim financial reports) for submission to the Board and
ensure compliance with disclosure requirements and any adjustments as suggested by the external auditors including
but not limited to the following:
(i)

changes in accounting policies and practices;

(ii)

compliance with laws, regulations and financial reporting standards;

(iii)

material variances or fluctuations; and

(iv)

validity of going concern assumptions.

b.

To review the reports of the Bank Negara Malaysia Examiners and any other relevant parties, including obligatory
reports to the BNM on matters covered under the Financial Services Act 2013 and ensure that supervisory issues
raised by BNM are resolved in a timely manner.

c.

In relation to the Company’s internal audit function:
(i)

To ensure the independence of the internal audit function.

(ii)

To assess the performance and effectiveness of the internal audit function and its compliance with BNM’s
Guidelines on Internal Audit function for Licensed Institutions.

(iii)

To review and approve the internal audit charter, the annual audit plan, scope (which includes conducting audit
on any areas as may be deemed necessary by the Head of Division of Internal Audit and/or the Chairman of the
BAC), procedures, frequency and budget for the internal audit function.

(iv)

To receive and review reports from the internal auditors and to review and monitor Management’s responsiveness
to the internal auditor’s findings and recommendations in particular:
(a)

to ensure that the Management is taking necessary corrective actions in a timely manner to address control
weaknesses, non-compliance with laws, regulatory requirements, policies and other areas identified by the
internal audit function; and

(b)

to note any significant disagreement between the Head of Division of Internal Audit and the rest of the
member of the Management, irrespective of whether these have been resolved, in order to identify any
impact such disagreement may have on the audit process or findings.

(v)

To review and approve the appointment, remuneration and dismissal of the Head of Division of Internal Audit.

(vi)

To review and approve the key performance indicators (“KPIs”) and undertake performance assessment for the
Head of Division of Internal Audit.

(vii)

To ensure the Head of Division of Internal Audit is assessed against the minimum fit and proper requirements
under the CG Guidelines and the Fit and Proper Criteria Guidelines issued by BNM at the time of appointment,
on an annual basis or as and when circumstance changed that may affect the ability to meet such minimum
requirements.

(viii) To ensure the adequacy of resources for the carrying out of the internal audit function.
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d.

To foster a quality audit of the Company by exercising oversight over the external auditors in accordance with the
expectations set out in the policy document on “External Auditor” issued by BNM, in particular:
(i)

To consider the appointment, reappointment, removal or resignation of the external auditors and their
remuneration and to make appropriate recommendations to the Board.

(ii)

To monitor and assess the objectivity, performance and independence of the external auditors including
approving the engagement of external auditors to provide non-audit services and assessing whether the
provision of such non-audit services by the external auditors would impair their independence.

(iii)

To monitor and assess the effectiveness of the external audit process in particular:
(a)

to review the nature and scope of the audit plan;

(b)

to review reports or findings of the external auditors including any major issues that arose during the
course of their audit that have subsequently been resolved and any unresolved audit issues; and

(c)

to meet with external auditors without the presence of the Management at least annually to discuss key
concerns and feedback.

(iv)

To review Management’s response to the external auditors’ findings and recommendations in particular to
ensure that the Management is taking necessary corrective actions in a timely manner to address such findings
and recommendations.

(v)

To engage on a regular and timely basis and to have open and honest communication with the external auditors
to ensure that the external auditors report to the BAC on significant matters.

e.

To review third party opinions on the design and effectiveness of the Company’s internal control framework.

f.

To review the following:
(i)

the adequacy and accuracy of the Chairman’s statement in the Directors’ Report;

(ii)

the adequacy and accuracy of corporate governance disclosures, preliminary announcements in relation to the
preparation of financial statements and interim financial reports; and

(iii)

any related party transactions and to update the Board on the same.

g.

To monitor compliance with the Board’s conflicts of interest policy (as formalised in the Board Charter).

h.

To meet with the BRC with a view of promoting alignment on the oversight function of the BAC and the BRC in terms
of effective coverage of all risks in particular:

i.

(i)

to ensure effective exchange of information between the BAC and the BRC; and

(ii)

to ensure that any material issues arising from the review of the effectiveness of the internal audit function relating
to matters which are within the remit of the BRC are communicated to such Committee for its consideration.

To do the following:
(i)

to ensure effective implementation of the Company’s Whistleblower Policy & Procedure as well as to oversee
the periodic reviews on the effectiveness of the same; and

(ii)

to monitor and investigate allegations reported and to determine the appropriate follow up action(s) to be
taken.

The Chairman of BAC or any one of its members shall be one of the persons designated as the “Primary Recipient”
in line with the Company’s Whistleblower Policy & Procedure.
j.

To carry out such other responsibilities as may be delegated by the Board from time to time.
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BRC
Composition
The BRC shall comprise at least three (3) members comprising Non-Executive Directors, of which one (1) member shall
also be a member of the Board Underwriting Committee. As at 31 December 2019, the BRC consists of the following
three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Members
(i)

Choo Yee Kwan (Chairman)

(ii)

Mohamed Rashdi Mohamed Ghazalli

(iii)

Ariffin Hew (ceased as a member on 24 October 2019)

(iv)

Elakumari Kantilal

Meetings
Meetings are held at least six (6) times during the financial year and on such other occasions as the BRC Chairman deems
necessary or if requested by the Chief Risk Officer. In the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the BRC met six (6) times
as scheduled.
The details of attendance of each BRC member at the BRC meeting during the financial year ended
31 December 2019 are as follows:
Number of
Meetings and
Attendance

Percentage of
Attendance

Choo Yee Kwan

6/6

100%

Mohamed Rashdi Mohamed Ghazalli

6/6

100%

Elakumari Kantilal

6/6

100%

Ariffin Hew
(ceased as a member on 24 October 2019)

5/5

100%

Name of Directors

Objective
The function of the BRC is to support the Board to ensure the risk management functions and practices of the Company are
conducted and discharged effectively to ensure management and mitigation of key risks and in line with the expectations
on risk management as set out in the policy document on Risk Governance issued by BNM.
Quorum
Quorum necessary for transaction of business shall be a majority of the members at any one time.
Secretary
Company secretary or his/her nominee shall act as the Secretary to the BRC.
Voting
Decision is by majority of members, with casting vote to the BRC Chairman.
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Authority
The BRC shall have the authority to:
a.

Investigate any matter within its terms of reference;

b.

Have full, free and unrestricted access to any records, information, documents, internal auditors, external auditors and
employees of the Company in order to perform its duties and discharge its responsibilities; and

c.

Obtain independent professional advice and expertise at the Company’s expense on any matter within its terms of
reference.

Duties and responsibilities
a.

To review and recommend to the Board the risk-taking strategies and risk management policies of the Company.

b.

To review the overall risk profile of the Company as per the Key Risk Register.

c.

To consider and set the risk appetite appropriate for the Company.

d.

In relation to the Chief Risk Officer/Chief Compliance Officer and the risk management function:
(i)

To ensure the independence of the Chief Risk Officer/ Chief Compliance Officer and the risk management
function.

(ii)

To review and approve the appointment, remuneration and dismissal of the Chief Risk Officer/Chief Compliance
Officer.

(iii)

To review and approve the key performance indicators (“KPIs”) and undertake performance assessment for the
Chief Risk Officer/Chief Compliance Officer.

(iv)

To ensure the Chief Risk Officer/Chief Compliance Officer is assessed against the minimum fit and proper
requirements under the CG Guidelines and the Fit and Proper Criteria Guidelines issued by BNM at the time of
appointment, on an annual basis or as and when circumstance changed that may affect the ability to meet such
minimum requirements.

(v)

To ensure adequacy of resources for the carrying out of the risk management function.

e.

To review the performance of the risk management function and the compliance management framework of the
Company and ensure compliance with BNM’s Guidelines on Risk Governance, Guidelines on Operational Risk and
Guidelines on Compliance.

f.

To approve contingency plans for dealing with potential high-impact risk events.

g.

To promote a risk-awareness culture in the Company.

h.

To assist with the implementation of a sound remuneration system and to examine whether incentives provided by
the remuneration system take into consideration risks, capital, liquidity and the likelihood and timing of earnings,
without prejudice to the tasks of the BRNC.
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To meet with the BAC with a view of promoting alignment on the oversight function of the BRC and the BAC in terms
of effective coverage of all risks in particular:
(i)

to ensure effective exchange of information between the BRC and the BAC; and

(ii)

to ensure that any material issues arising from the review of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal controls relating to matters which are within the remit of the BAC are communicated to such Committee
for its consideration.

j.

To review and recommend to the Board the appointment of the external actuary.

k.

To carry out such other responsibilities as may be delegated by the Board from time to time.

Joint BAC and BRC
The BAC and BRC jointly meet to ensure effective exchange of information between the BAC and BRC members so as
to enable effective coverage of all risk, including emerging risk issues that could have an impact on the Company’s risk
appetite and business plans. In the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the BAC and BRC jointly met two (2) times
and among the matters reviewed and discussed were business emerging risks and the overall Risk Management and
Internal Audit Plans of the Company in order to promote alignment on the oversight function of the BAC and BRC.
4.

BUC
Composition
The BUC shall comprise of at least three (3) members, all of whom must be Non-Executive Directors and the majority
of the members shall be Independent Directors. As at 31 December 2019, the BUC consists of the following three (3)
Independent Non-Executive Directors and two (2) Non-Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Members
(i)

Choo Yee Kwan (re-designated as Chairman on 1 November 2019)

(ii)

Suresh Menon

(iii)

Md Yusof Hussin

(iv)

Datuk Che Mokhtar Che Ali

(v)

Muhamad Shahril Othman

(vi)

Ariffin Hew (ceased as Chairman on 24 October 2019)

Meetings
Meetings are held at least once a month and on such other occasions as the BUC Chairman deems necessary or if
requested by the Management. In the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the BUC met thirteen (13) times; twelve (12)
scheduled meetings and one (1) special meeting.
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The details of attendance of each BUC member at the BUC meeting during the financial year ended
31 December 2019 are as follows:
Number of
Meetings and
Attendance

Percentage of
Attendance

Choo Yee Kwan
(re-designated as Chairman on 1 November 2019)

13/13

100%

Suresh Menon

13/13

100%

Md Yusof Hussin

13/13

100%

Muhamad Shahril Othman

10/13

77%

Datuk Che Mokhtar Che Ali

13/13

100%

Ariffin Hew
(ceased as Chairman on 24 October 2019)

11/11

100%

Name of Directors

Objective
To review and endorse (with power to veto) underwriting proposals approved by the Management Underwriting Committee.
Quorum
Quorum necessary for transaction of business shall be a majority of the members at any one time.
Secretary
Company secretary or his/her nominee shall act as the Secretary to the BUC.
Voting
Decision is by majority of members, with casting vote to the BUC Chairman.
Authority
The BUC shall have authority to:
a.

Have full, free and unrestricted access to any records, information, documents, internal auditors, external auditors and
employees of the Company in order to perform its duties and discharge its responsibilities; and

b.

Obtain independent professional advice and expertise at the Company’s expense on any matter within its terms of
reference.
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Duties and responsibilities
a.

5.

To review and, if appropriate, endorse matters approved by the Management Underwriting Committee in accordance
with the Company’s approved Delegated Authority Limit (DAL) Manual, which include, amongst others, the following:
(i)

underwriting proposals;

(ii)

variation requests relating to proposals underwritten;

(iii)

amendments to the Guidelines on Refinancing; and

(iv)

advance facility request and advance payment request.

b.

Where an underwriting proposal has been approved by the Management Underwriting Committee and the BUC
disagrees with the proposal, to exercise the power of veto.

c.

To review and monitor reports on the underwriting performance of the Company.

d.

To carry out such other responsibilities as may be delegated by the Board from time to time.

BIC
Composition
The BIC shall comprise at least three (3) members, all of whom must be Non-Executive Directors and the majority of the
members shall be Independent Directors. As at 31 December 2019, the BIC consists of the following two (2) Independent
Non-Executive Directors and one (1) Non-Independent Non-Executive Director.
Members
(i)

Elakumari Kantilal (Chairman)

ii)

Choo Yee Kwan

(iii)

Suresh Menon

(iv)

Dato’ Azian Mohd Noh (ceased as a member on 24 June 2019)

Meetings
Meetings are held at least four (4) times each financial year, on a quarterly basis, and on such other occasions as the BIC
Chairman deems necessary. In the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the BIC met four (4) times as scheduled.
The details of attendance of each BIC member at the BIC meeting during the financial year ended
31 December 2019 are as follows:
Number of
Meetings and
Attendance

Percentage of
Attendance

Elakumari Kantilal

4/4

100%

Choo Yee Kwan

4/4

100%

Suresh Menon

4/4

100%

Dato’ Azian Mohd Noh
(ceased as a member on 24 June 2019)

2/2

100%

Name of Directors
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Objective
To ensure the Company invests and manages its capital resources in a professional and prudent manner, achieves the
targeted returns while assuming an appropriate level of risk, maintain a sufficient level of liquidity for claim events and
maintain conformity with all regulatory requirements.
Quorum
Quorum necessary for transaction of business shall be a majority of the members at any one time.
Secretary
Company secretary or his/her representative within the Secretarial Unit shall act as the Secretary to the BIC.
Voting
Decision is by majority of members, with casting vote to the BIC Chairman.
Authority
The BIC shall have the authority to:
a.

Have full, free and unrestricted access to any records, information, documents, internal auditors, external auditors and
employees of the Company in order to perform its duties and discharge its responsibilities; and

b.

Obtain independent professional advice and expertise at the Company’s expense on any matter within its terms of
reference.

Duties and responsibilities
a.

To review and, if appropriate, approve from time to time the investment strategy of the Company.

b.

To review, and if appropriate, recommend changes to the Company’s Investment Policy to be
in line with the Company’s investment strategy.

c.

To review the performance of the portfolio of capital resources.

d.

To determine from time to time the asset allocation target for the portfolio of capital resources.

e.

To carry out such other responsibilities as may be delegated by the Board from time to time.
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Training and education to the Board
During the financial year, the Directors have attended the following training programmes:

Director

Training attended

Description of training

Md Yusof Hussin

1. FIDE Programme – Module A
(Insurance)
(19 – 22 February 2019)

•

The FIDE Core Programme is designed with specific focus
on financial sector issues and challenges; and stresses
on honing the skills, and enhancing the knowledge and
expertise of directors.

2. FIDE Programme – Module B
(Insurance)
(5 – 8 March 2019)

•

The FIDE Core Programme is designed with specific focus
on financial sector issues and challenges; and stresses
on honing the skills, and enhancing the knowledge and
expertise of directors.

3. Briefing on Financial Condition Report
(18 March 2019)

•

Training on key issues covered by the Financial Condition
Report.

4. RAM Sharing Session on Credit Rating
(29 April 2019)

•

The sharing session covers the Malaysian economic
outlook and leverage/rating methodology.

5. Global and Malaysia Renewable
Energy Outlook
(1 November 2019)

•

The sharing session covers the Global and Malaysia
renewable energy outlook.
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Director

Training attended

Mohamed Rashdi 1. BNM-FIDE Forum Dialogue with the
Mohamed
Deputy Governor on the Draft Risk
Ghazalli
Management in Technology (RMiT)
Policy
(8 April 2019)

Description of training
•

The dialogue provides an important platform for FIDE
Forum members Directors to engage directly with
BNM to discuss matter that concern them and provide
feedback with respect to the content of the draft RMiT
policy.

2. Rethinking Strategy
(23 April 2019)

•

To understand key trends on how digital innovation is
reshaping the financial services industry going forward
and its implications on Malaysian financial institutions.

3. RAM Sharing Session on Credit Rating
(29 April 2019)

•

The sharing session cover the Malaysian economic
outlook and leverage/rating methodology.

4. BNM FIDE Forum Dialogue: Key
Aspects of Fintech and Regulation
(19 September 2019)

•

The Forum is to discuss the following:(i) Key trends on how digital innovation is reshaping
the financial services industry going forward and its
implications on Malaysian financial institutions.
(ii) Focus areas in harnessing the benefits of innovation
and “Red flags” where board oversight can be better
exercised.
(iii) Imperative role of the board in facilitating sustainable
innovation and growing digital capacity in their
respective organisations.

5. Digital to the Core
(4 October 2019)

•

To understand how to bring digital change and take it to
the very core of businesses.

6. Understanding Fintech and Its
Implications for Insurance Companies
(9 October 2019)

•

This programme seeks to update directors on the latest
fintech developments and its implication for the insurance
industry. Directors will be provided with examples of
fintech’s disruptive technology in content delivery,
distribution and payments of insurance products; and
how it is changing the entire ecosystem of how insurance
businesses are done.

7. Global and Malaysia Renewable
Energy Outlook
(1 November 2019)

•

The sharing session covers the Global and Malaysia
renewable energy outlook.

8. Types of Security: Recovery Options
(14 November 2019)

•

The contents of the talk covers the following:(i) Types of security/creditor.
(ii) Corporate lifecycle (the curve chart).
(iii) Security enforcement/options.
(iv) Case studies.
(v) Latest developments in respect of 2016 Companies
Act and case law.
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Training attended

Ariffin Hew
1. Open Source Leadership Programme
(retired on
(11 – 12 March 2019)
24 October 2019)
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Description of training
•

The Open Source Leadership is a global study spanning
28 countries and includes the responses of approximately
16,000 seniors to mid-level executives. The study is
designed to explore the form of leadership required to
tackle the daunting challenges and exciting opportunities
of today’s transparent, free, and empowered workforce.
It also explores the drivers of motivation for superior
performance in a highly connected, fast-moving 21st
century.

2. RAM Sharing Session on Credit Rating
(29 April 2019)

•

The sharing session cover the Malaysian economic
outlook and leverage/rating methodology.

3. FIDE Elective: Understanding Fintech
and Its Implications for Banks
(1 August 2019)

•

This programme seeks to update directors on the
latest in fintech developments and its implications for
the banking industry. Directors will be provided with
examples of fintech’s disruptive technology both in the
payments and crowdfunding space; in record keeping
and improvement of processes with the development of
blockchain, and how it is changing the entire ecosystem
of how businesses are done.

4. BNM FIDE Forum Dialogue: Key
Aspects of Fintech and Regulation
(19 September 2019)

•

The Forum is to discuss the following:(i) Key trends on how digital innovation is reshaping
the financial services industry going forward and its
implications on Malaysian financial institutions.
(ii) Focus areas in harnessing the benefits of innovation
and “Red flags” where board oversight can be better
exercised.
(iii) Imperative role of the board in facilitating sustainable
innovation and growing digital capacity in their
respective organisations.

5. Digital to Core
(4 October 2019)

•

To understand how to bring digital change and take it to
the very core of businesses.
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Director

Training attended

Description of training

Suresh Menon

1. FIDE Programme – Module A
(Insurance)
(19 – 22 February 2019)

•

The FIDE Core Programme is designed with specific focus
on financial sector issues and challenges; and stresses
on honing the skills, and enhancing the knowledge and
expertise of directors.

2. RAM Sharing Session on Credit Rating
(29 April 2019)

•

The sharing session cover the Malaysian economic
outlook and leverage/rating methodology.

3. (i) Presentation by United Nation
Resident Coordinator for Malaysia
on United Nation Sustainable
Development Goals

•

The session covers sharing of blueprint for peace and
prosperity for people and the planet, now and into the
future comprising 17 Sustainable Development Goals
(SDGs).

•

The session covers challenges in embracing technological
disruption and ways for to mitigate lending risk to SMEs.

4. FIDE Elective: Understanding Fintech
and Its Implications for Banks
(1 August 2019)

•

This programme seeks to update directors on the
latest in fintech developments and its implications for
the banking industry. Directors will be provided with
examples of fintech’s disruptive technology both in the
payments and crowdfunding space; in record keeping
and improvement of processes with the development of
blockchain, and how it is changing the entire ecosystem
of how businesses are done.

5. FIDE Programme – Module B
(Insurance)
(22 – 25 October 2019)

•

The FIDE Core Programme is designed with specific focus
on financial sector issues and challenges; and stresses
on honing the skills, and enhancing the knowledge and
expertise of directors.

6. Technology Day comprising sessions
with BNM, SC, Microsoft Malaysia and
IT Consultant.
(5 November 2019)

•

A half day programme with prominent speakers sharing
recent development on the following topics:
(i) Innovation within Financial Services and the
Regulatory Impact by Director, Financial Development
and Innovation, Bank Negara Malaysia;
(ii) Digitisation of the Malaysian Capital Market by
Assistant General Manager, Securities Commission
Malaysia;
(iii) The Big Technology Themes for Malaysia Financial
Services by Research Director, IDC Market Research;
and
(iv) Artificial Intelligence (AI) and Big Data Trends by
National Technology Officer, Microsoft Malaysia.

7. Global and Malaysia Renewable Energy •
Outlook
(1 November 2019)

The sharing session covers the Global and Malaysia
renewable energy outlook.

8. Types of Security: Recovery Options
(14 November 2019)

The contents of the talk covers the following:(i) Types of security/creditor.
(ii) Corporate lifecycle (the curve chart).
(iii) Security enforcement / options.
(iv) Case studies.
(v) Latest developments in respect of 2016 Companies
Act and case law.

(ii) Presentation by SME Corp
on Challenges in Embracing
Technological Disruption and Ways
to Mitigate Lending Risks to SMEs
(28 July 2019)

•
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Director

Training attended

Description of training

Choo Yee Kwan

1. FIDE Programme – Module A
(Insurance)
(21 – 22 February 2019)

•

The FIDE Core Programme is designed with specific focus
on financial sector issues and challenges; and stresses
on honing the skills, and enhancing the knowledge and
expertise of directors.

2. FIDE Forum: Reading the Signs: The
Next Financial Crisis and Potential
Impact on Asia.
(14 March 2019)

•

Forum on the global and socio economic, political and
market-based trends about the next financial crisis and
the possible impact on Asia.

3. Briefing on Financial Condition Report
(18 March 2019)

•

Training on key issues covered by the Financial Condition
Report.

4. RAM Sharing Session on Credit Rating
(29 April 2019)

•

The sharing session cover the Malaysian economic
outlook and leverage/rating methodology.

5. Digital to the Core
(4 October 2019)

•

To understand how to bring digital change and take it to
the very core of businesses.

6. Global and Malaysia Renewable Energy •
Outlook
(1 November 2019)

The sharing session covers the Global and Malaysia
renewable energy outlook.

7. Types of Security: Recovery Options
(14 November 2019)

•

The contents of the talk covers the following:(i) Types of security/creditor.
(ii) Corporate lifecycle (the curve chart).
(iii) Security enforcement/options.
(iv) Case studies.
(v) Latest developments in respect of 2016 Companies
Act and case law.

1. FIDE Programme – Module A
(Insurance)
(19 – 22 February 2019)

•

The FIDE Core Programme is designed with specific focus
on financial sector issues and challenges; and stresses
on honing the skills, and enhancing the knowledge and
expertise of directors.

2. FIDE Programme – Module B
(Insurance)
(5 – 8 March 2019)

•

The FIDE Core Programme is designed with specific focus
on financial sector issues and challenges; and stresses
on honing the skills, and enhancing the knowledge and
expertise of directors.

3. Briefing on Financial Condition Report
(19 March 2019)

•

Training on key issues covered by the Financial Condition
Report.

4. RAM Sharing Session on Credit Rating
(29 April 2019)

•

The sharing session covers the Malaysian economic
outlook and leverage/rating methodology.

5. Global and Malaysia Renewable Energy •
Outlook
(1 November 2019)

The sharing session covers the Global and Malaysia
renewable energy outlook.

Datuk
Che Mokhtar
Che Ali
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Director

Training attended

•

The FIDE Core Programme is designed with specific focus
on financial sector issues and challenges; and stresses
on honing the skills, and enhancing the knowledge and
expertise of directors.

2. Briefing on Financial Condition Report
(18 March 2019)

•

Training on key issues covered by the Financial Condition
Report.

3. RAM Sharing Session on Credit Rating
(29 April 2019)

•

The sharing session cover the Malaysian economic
outlook and leverage/rating methodology.

4. Khazanah megatrends Forum on
“Building our Collective Brain”
(7 – 8 October 2019)

•

Forum discussion on four main perspectives:(i) Macro and Markets.
(ii) Firms and Transformation.
(iii) Growth and Development.
(iv) People and Leadership.

5. FIDE Programme – Module B
(Insurance)
(23 – 25 October 2019)

•

The FIDE Core Programme is designed with specific focus
on financial sector issues and challenges; and stresses
on honing the skills, and enhancing the knowledge and
expertise of directors.

6. Global and Malaysia Renewable Energy •
Outlook
(1 November 2019)

The sharing session covers the Global and Malaysia
renewable energy outlook.

7. Types of Security: Recovery Options
(14 November 2019)

•

The contents of the talk covers the following:(i) Types of security/creditor.
(ii) Corporate lifecycle (the curve chart).
(iii) Security enforcement/options.
(iv) Case studies.
(v) Latest developments in respect of 2016 Companies
Act and case law.

1. Board Orientation Programme
(9 January 2019)

•

Broad understanding of Danajamin’s business and
operations.

2. FIDE Programme – Module A
(Insurance)
(19 – 22 February 2019)

•

The FIDE Core Programme is designed with specific focus
on financial sector issues and challenges; and stresses
on honing the skills, and enhancing the knowledge and
expertise of directors.

3. FIDE Programme – Module B
(Insurance)
(5 – 8 March 2019)

•

The FIDE Core Programme is designed with specific focus
on financial sector issues and challenges; and stresses
on honing the skills, and enhancing the knowledge and
expertise of directors.

4. Pension & Investment World Pension
Summit 2019
(22-24 October 2019)

•

The Programme focuses on ‘Shifting Powers + Sustainable
Investment: Separating the signal from the noise’.

Elakumari Kantilal 1. FIDE Programme – Module A
(Insurance)
(19 – 22 February 2019)

Muhamad Shahril
Othman

Description of training
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Director

Training attended

Description of training

Mohamed Nazri
Omar
(Retired on
30 April 2020)

1. Spokesperson Media Training Corepro
Sdn Bhd
(20 February 2019)

•

To help in preparing the Management Team in Threat
Assessment to facilitate the formulation of a Crisis
Communication Plan.

2. Foundation CEO Forum 2019, Perdana
Leadership Training
(4 April 2019)

•

The programme brought together the best minds of
business and industry to provide insights and ideas and
more. Covering topics both big and micro, from green
business GLCs, to human capital in the digital age.

3. CB1 Masterclass – Professionalism,
Ethics & Regulations Asian Banking
School
(8 April 2019 & 10 September 2019)

•

The programme provided extensive, detailed and
critical knowledge of the banking sector to enable the
development of sound professional judgement and
the ability to make informed decisions in relevant work
situations.

4. Cambridge Summer School
Programme – Leading into Digital
Futures
(28 July – 2 August 2019)

•

The objectives of the programme:(i) Enhance leadership capacity for making strategic
decisions taking institutions into digital futures.
(ii) Develop strategic direction to drive key aspects of
digital transformation as a key decision maker.
(iii) Develop leadership strategy to successfully scale
transformative innovation across ecosystems.

5. Corporate Governance Charles River
Centre
(18 October 2019)

•

This programme focused on the role of the board of
directors and senior executives of Danajamin as it pertains
to their oversight of the affairs of those corporations
whose bonds and sukuks Danajamin has guaranteed, as
well as the role of Management in assisting the Board in
fulfilling its fiduciary and other responsibilities.

6. Meaningful Conversations &
Constructive Feedback Human
Equation Sdn Bhd
(25-26 June 2019)

•

This programme is designed to equip delegates with
communication and influencing skills to be able to
conduct meaningful conversations and give feedback in
a constructive manner.

7. RAM Sharing Session on Credit Rating
(29 April 2019)

•

The sharing session cover the Malaysian economic
outlook and leverage/rating methodology.

8. BNM FIDE Forum Dialogue: Key
Aspects of Fintech and Regulation
(19 September 2019)

•

The Forum is to discuss the following:(i) Key trends on how digital innovation is reshaping
the financial services industry going forward and its
implications on Malaysian financial institutions.
(ii) Focus areas in harnessing the benefits of innovation
and “Red flags” where board oversight can be better
exercised.
(iii) Imperative role of the board in facilitating sustainable
innovation and growing digital capacity in their
respective organisations.

9. Digital to the Core
(4 October 2019)

•

To understand how to bring digital change and take it to
the very core of businesses.
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REMUNERATION STRUCTURE
Board
In an effort to ensure that remuneration levels commensurate with the responsibilities, risks and time commitment of the Board/
Board Committees for effective management and operations of the Company, the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors
(“NEDs”) has been structured to take into account the following:
(a)

Reflection of the responsibilities in terms of intensity of work, time commitment and effort;

(b)

Recognition of the different roles played by individual NEDs (e.g. as Chairman of the Board or Board Committees);

(c)

Based on the NEDs’ roles and contributions and should not be differentiated based on knowledge and experience;

(d)

Remuneration levels should not compromise an NED’s independence; and

(e)

May reflect the complexity size and business of the Licensed Financial Institutions (“LFIs”).

As at 31 December 2019, the remuneration of the Board and Board Committees as approved by the shareholders at the Tenth
AGM held on 24 June 2019 is as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Directors’ Fees
Board of Directors

(RM)

Chairman

15,000 per month

Member

6,000 per month

Meeting allowances

The Chairman is entitled to either a company car
with a value of up to RM400,000 with a driver or car
allowance of RM7,000 per month, with a driver to be
provided by the Company.

(iv)

Board of Directors

(RM)

Chairman

5,000 per meeting

Member

3,500 per meeting

Board of Committee

(RM)

Chairman

5,000 per meeting

Member

3,500 per meeting

Benefits for the Chairman

Other Claimable Benefits
a)

Medical benefits:
• The Chairman is entitled for a full coverage of
medical benefits for self and spouse.
• The Non-Executive Directors are entitled for
medical benefits with a coverage of up to
RM20,000 per annum. Medical coverage is
inclusive of dental and is extended to family
members (i.e. spouse and children, subject to
a maximum age of 21 years old and provided
that the child is not gainfully employed).

b)

Business travel and accommodation.

The details of Directors’ Remuneration are set out in Note 26(b) to the financial statements.
REMUNERATION POLICY
MD/CEO
The Board, through BRNC, annually reviews the performance of the MD/CEO as a prelude to determining his annual remuneration,
bonus and other benefits in kind. In discharging this duty, BRNC evaluates the performance of the MD/CEO against the objectives
set by the Board, thereby linking his remuneration to performance.
The basic salary of the MD/CEO is reviewed annually by BRNC and approved by the Board. The Company operates a bonus
scheme for all employees including its MD/CEO. Bonus payable to the MD/CEO is reviewed by the BRNC and approved by the
Board. The MD/CEO is not entitled to fees.
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Company
The Company’s continued success depends on the commitment of our people to embrace and live our values, the commitment
of the Company to fulfil its people promise of a competitive total rewards program, a performance driven, yet collegial working
environment and the opportunity to grow alongside our company.
Recognising the importance of having the right people with the right skills at all times, the Company’s remuneration strategy has
been structured to attract, reward and retain high calibre and talented employees.
Our remuneration policy serves to achieve the following imperatives:
•

To ensure alignment to the long-term objectives and business strategies of the Company, its Core Values, whilst
promoting a prudent risk culture;

•

To give the appropriate recognition to the various Divisions and individuals that contribute to making the organisation
more competitive, efficient and sustainable against pre-agreed expectations; and

•

To ensure market relevance.

Our remuneration framework is made up of the following components:
a)

Basic salary – a core component where a job is priced against market. Internally, the job is sized taking into account,
amongst others, the level of responsibility and complexity of the role; and

b)

Annual performance bonus – a variable and discretionary pay component that is based on the overall performance
of the Company and that of the individual.

Our fixed remuneration is defined by the salary scale that differentiates between job levels. Positions in Danajamin are matched
to job levels based on factors such as knowledge, role impact, and level of accountability. To ensure market relevance, the salary
band is benchmarked against relevant financial institutions.
This variable component of remuneration is paid through the annual performance bonus. It is determined based on performance
delivered for the financial year at the Company and individual level. The variable remuneration is solely cash-based.
The remuneration framework is applicable to all employees of the Company across levels and functions, with oversight by the
Board. All matters pertaining to design and review of job grade, salary scale, the overall annual performance bonus and the
overall increment to the base salary is recommended by the BRNC and approved by the Board.
To maintain the independence of officers in control functions, comprising the Chief Risk Officer, Head of Enterprise Risk
Management & Compliance, and Head of Internal Audit, these positions report directly to the Board Risk and Board Audit
Committees respectively. The said Board Committees undertake decisions on appointment, KPI-setting and performance review
of the said roles. The Board has oversight for decisions on overall rewards and remuneration.
The Company deems the Management team and certain employees as Material Risk Takers. They are as follows:

Material
Risk Takers

The Chief
Executive Officer

Heads of
Function

Heads of
Division

Other Material
Risk Takers

No. of
individual

1

2

8

3
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Other Material Risk Takers are defined as employees who are not members of Management but who:
•

can materially commit or control significant amounts of Danajamin’s resources or whose actions are likely to have a
significant impact on its risk profile; or

•

are among the most highly remunerated employees in Danajamin.

The Company’s Performance Management System is the foundation of our remuneration framework, which underscores
the following:
•

Aligns deliverables against Danajamin’s long-term aspirations, business strategy and immediate-year’s Corporate KPI;

•

Disincentivises behaviours that contradict Danajamin’s Core Values;

•

Reinforces expected individual roles and accountabilities;

•

Discourages risk-taking that is inconsistent with our risk appetite and

•

Fosters a risk and compliance culture both in the spirit and letter of regulatory requirements.

The above imperatives are embedded in the various stages of the Performance Management cycle from performance planning
to performance review.
To ensure that the Company continues to deliver on its mandate and achieve its business imperatives, performance planning and
performance reviews for the CEO and senior management team are subject to deliberation and recommendation by the BRNC
prior to escalation to the Board for its approval.
The Corporate Scorecard incorporates:
•

Financial metrics such as Profit Before Tax;

•

Client-centric metrics such as innovation in product application, investor base, issuer diversity and issuance; and

•

People metrics such as culture and engagement, and learning and growth

These are later embedded into the individual scorecards of Management based on their respective functional role.
The Corporate Scorecard also includes risk-based metrics i.e. risk sharing and portfolio quality. Similar to the other metrics, these
metrics are cascaded into the individual scorecard of relevant members of Management.
During the annual performance review exercise, the overall achievement of the Corporate Scorecard is first reviewed and
assessed by the BRNC, followed by the deliberation and approval of the full Board. The corporate scorecard achievement has a
direct bearing on the size of Company’s bonus pool.
Individual performance ratings are calibrated through a moderation exercise performed by Management that reviews the relative
performance of employees of the same job grade. The final rating derived from the moderation exercise is translated into a
bonus quantum guided by a bonus matrix.
In line with the practice of high-performance organisations, poor performers will not be accorded any bonus payment.
The Performance Improvement Plan provides structure to managers to ensure that employees are given sufficient opportunities
to succeed, whilst also holding them accountable for past performance.
Indemnifying Directors and Officers
The total amount of insurance premium paid for the
directors and officers of the Company for the financial year ended
31 December 2019

RM100,000

(2018: RM124,658)
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STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Internal Control Framework
The Board is primarily responsible to ensure that the Company maintains an adequate system of internal controls, and that there
are effective and efficient operations and risk management policies to ensure compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.
The Company has in place formal policies which govern the management and control of financial and non-financial risks. The
adoption of these policies enables a consistent approach to the management of risks throughout the Company while the Board
and Management are committed to maintain a risk-conscious culture in the Company.

Enterprise Risk Management Framework
One of the building blocks used to identify and evaluate significant risks is the Enterprise Risk Management (ERM)
Framework which was implemented in 2010 and is continuously enhanced to reflect best practices. The ERM Framework
establishes systematic monitoring and reporting requirements of each division within the Company, and is aimed at
embedding sound risk management culture within the Company to ensure that the Company continues to expand its
business with the appropriate risk management culture, discipline and practices.
Given the importance of better operational risk monitoring and management, in 2017 the ERM Framework was further
enhanced with the creation of a standalone register for Operational Risk for more effective risk management. As a
standalone register, there is now greater emphasis on identification and evaluation of operational risks. This is important
as operational risk is a relatively large risk component as compared to other risks in the greater ERM Framework.
This enhancement is consistent with BNM’s Operational Risk Guidelines and was approved by the Board Risk Committee
in November 2017 and successfully implemented since Q1 2018.

Credit Risk Management
Credit Risk Management Framework is guided by comprehensive credit policies which are complemented by stringent
underwriting standards and procedures. All proposals are subject to a robust credit evaluation process supplemented
with an independent credit assessment by Credit Risk Division. The approval process involves the Management and/or
Board Committees based on Board approved delegated authority. At minimum, annual credit reviews are conducted for
each individual obligor with increased review frequency if warranted.
The frequency and depth of reporting provides pre-emptive opportunities to manage credit risk in a timely manner.

Compliance Framework
The Company strives to operate within its compliance principles which is driven down by the Board and Management
to all staff to foster a strong compliance culture in the Company and the way we do business. The Company is governed
by the FSA, Companies Act 2016, BNM licensing conditions and regulatory requirements and guidelines as well as
other relevant and applicable Acts and standards issued by regulators to the Company. The Compliance Framework also
establishes systematic monitoring and reporting requirements for the Chief Compliance Officer along with the Board,
BRC, senior management and staff to understand, comply and manage compliance risks in the Company.
Since the enhancement of the monitoring and reporting process in 2016 to promote accountability, senior management
has been providing assurance to the Board on the adequacy and effectiveness of compliance risk management as well
as to improve operational efficiency.
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The ERM & Compliance Division performs regular reviews of the Company’s ERM and Compliance frameworks on a continuous
basis.

Risk and Compliance Governance and Oversight
The Management Risk Committee (MRC) is responsible to oversee the risk and compliance management functions
and practices of the Company, while the BRC oversees the management of the same to ensure that these are
functioning effectively.

Key Policies and Procedures
Policies and procedures are established in the Company to manage the day-to-day operations, and are communicated
and made available to all staff. The policies and procedures are reviewed and updated regularly to ensure they remain
relevant to the current business environment and in compliance with the current applicable laws and regulations. These
policies and procedures are then approved by the Board and Management respectively to formalize their application
within the Company.

These cover key areas of risks such as:

a.

Financial Guarantee Insurance (FGI), Financing Facilities Guarantee (FFG) and Investor Guarantee
Programme operations

b.

Credit Risk Management

c.

Portfolio Risk Management

d.

Investments

e.

Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment and Stress Testing

f.

Information Technology

g.

Anti-money laundering and countering the financing of terrorism

h.

Related party transactions

i.

Outsourcing

j.

Business Continuity Management

k.

ERM and Compliance
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Internal Audit and Internal Control Activities
The Company has an in-house Internal Audit function which is guided by its Audit Charter and reports functionally to the BAC.
The Internal Audit’s primary role is to assist the BAC in the discharge of their duties and responsibilities by independently
reviewing and reporting on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s risk management, internal control and governance
processes.
The Internal Auditors perform regular reviews of the Company’s operational processes and system of internal controls. Priority of
auditable areas and frequency of reviews are determined by adopting a risk-based approach, and leveraging on the Company’s
risk management framework. The annual internal audit plan is reviewed and approved by the BAC. Results of the audits conducted
are then reported to the BAC. While the Management is responsible to ensure that corrective actions on reported observations
are adequately taken within the stated time frame, the Internal Audit function will monitor and update the BAC on the extent to
which the corrective actions have been implemented.
The BAC holds regular meetings to deliberate on findings and recommendations for improvement highlighted by both
the Internal and External Auditors as well as regulatory authorities on the state of the Company’s internal control system.
The minutes of the BAC meetings are subsequently tabled to the Board for notation.
In addition to audit assignments, the Internal Audit function participates on a consultative basis in projects, the development of
new systems and information technology related initiatives.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
The Directors submit herewith their report together with the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year
ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
The Company is principally engaged in the business of providing financial guarantee insurance.
There have been no significant changes in the nature of the principal activity during the financial year.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
RM’000
Net profit for the financial year

3,156

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other than as disclosed in the financial
statements.
In the opinion of the Directors, the results of the operations of the Company during the financial year were not substantially
affected by any items, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature.

DIVIDENDS
The dividends paid by the Company since 31 December 2018 were as follows:
RM’000
In respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2018:
- single-tier final dividend of 1.79 sen paid on 1 July 2019

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the current financial year.

ISSUE OF SHARE CAPITAL
There were no issue of new ordinary shares during the financial year.

17,900
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
DIRECTORS
The Directors in office during the financial year and during the period from the end of the financial year to the date of this report
are as follows:
Md Yusof Hussin (Chairman)
Mohamed Rashdi Mohamed Ghazalli
Suresh Kumar T.A.S Menon
Choo Yoo Kwan @ Choo Yee Kwan
Datuk Che Mokhtar Che Ali
Elakumari Kantilal
Muhamad Shahril Othman
Mohamed Nazri Omar
Dato’ Azian Mohd Noh
Ariffin Hew @ Hew Siak Tow

Retired on 30 April 2020
Retired on 24 June 2019
Retired on 24 October 2019

Pursuant to then Article 63 of the Company’s Articles of Association (“Articles”), Dato’ Azian Mohd Noh retired from office at the
Tenth Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 24 June 2019 (“the Tenth AGM”), following the expiry of her directorship
tenure. Ariffin Hew retired from office on 24 October 2019 and Mohamed Nazri Omar retired on 30 April 2020 following the
expiry of their directorship tenure.

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS
During and at the end of the financial year, no arrangement has subsisted to which the Company is a party, being arrangements
with the object or objects of enabling the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director has received or become entitled to receive any benefits (other than
Directors’ remuneration, allowances and benefits-in-kind as disclosed in Note 26 to the financial statements) by reason of a
contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the Director or with a firm of which the Director is a member,
or with a company in which the Director has a substantial financial interest.
According to the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings, none of the Directors who held office as at the end of the financial year
had any interest in shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its related corporations during the financial year.
Introduction
The Company is the nation’s first Financial Guarantee Insurer, licensed under the Financial Services Act, 2013 (“FSA”),
regulated and supervised by Bank Negara Malaysia (“BNM”). The Company does not have any subsidiary and the Company is
not a subsidiary of another corporation.
As a licensed entity, the Company adopts practices that are consistent with the policy document issued by BNM on Corporate
Governance (BNM/RH/PD029-9) (“CG Guidelines”). Through the Company’s policies and procedures as well as periodic audit
reviews, the Board of Directors of Danajamin Nasional Berhad (“Board”) ensures that good governance is practised throughout
the Company in all aspects of its business dealings, and that integrity and transparency are displayed with the objective of
safeguarding shareholders’ investments and ultimately enhancing shareholders’ value. The Board recognises that good corporate
governance practices will undoubtedly contribute towards the success of the Company and its overall performance.
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OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION
(a)

(b)

Before the financial statements of the Company were made out, the Directors took reasonable steps:
(i)

to ascertain that proper actions have been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of
allowance for doubtful debts, and satisfied themselves that all known bad debts have been written off and adequate
allowance had been made for doubtful debts; and

(ii)

to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise in the ordinary course of business, their values as
shown in the accounting records of the Company had been written down to an amount which they might be expected
so to realise.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this report or the
financial statements of the Company which would render:
(i)

the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of allowance for doubtful debts in the financial statements of the
Company inadequate to any substantial extent; and

(ii)

the values attributed to current assets in the financial statements of the Company misleading.

(c)

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances which have arisen which would render adherence
to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Company misleading or inappropriate.

(d)

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this report or the
financial statements of the Company which would render any amount stated in the financial statements misleading.

(e)

At the date of this report, there does not exist:

(f)

(i)

any charge on the assets of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year which secures the
liabilities of any other person; or

(ii)

any contingent liability of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year other than those arising
in the normal course of business of the Company.

In the opinion of the Directors:
(i)

no contingent or other liability of the Company has become enforceable or is likely to become enforceable within the
period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which will or may affect the ability of the Company to meet
their obligations as and when they fall due; and

(ii)

for the purpose of this section, contingent or other liabilities do not include liabilities arising from contracts of financial
guarantee insurance underwritten in the ordinary course of business of the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR
There is a significant event during the year for which the adjustment has been made to the claims liabilities in N ote 13 to the
financial statements.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER THE FINANCIAL YEAR
There is a subsequent event after the financial year for which the adjustment has been made to the premium liabilities in N ote
12. Another event after the year is as disclosed in Note 34 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS
The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers PLT (LLP0014401-LCA & AF 1146), have expressed their willingness to continue in office.
The details of Auditors’ Remuneration are set out in Note 26(c) to the financial statements.
Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors dated 8 May 2020.

MD YUSOF HUSSIN
NON-EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN

ELAKUMARI KANTILAL
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
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STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS
Pursuant to Section 251(2) of the Companies Act 2016

We, Md Yusof Hussin and Elakumari Kantilal, being two of the Directors of Danajamin Nasional Berhad, state that, in the
opinion of the Directors, the financial statements set out on pages 80 to 141 are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2019 and of its financial performance and cash flows for the financial year
ended on that date in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and
the provisions of the Companies Act 2016.
Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors dated 8 May 2020.

MD YUSOF HUSSIN
NON-EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN

ELAKUMARI KANTILAL
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Kuala Lumpur

STATUTORY DECLARATION
Pursuant to Section 251(1) of the Companies Act 2016

I, Poorani Ramachandran (MIA number CA37460), being the officer primarily responsible for the financial management of
Danajamin Nasional Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the accompanying financial statements set out on
pages 80 to 141 are in my opinion correct and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true by
virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.

POORANI RAMACHANDRAN
Subscribed and solemnly declared by the abovenamed Poorani Ramachandran at Kuala Lumpur in the Federal Territory on
8 May 2020.
Before me,

COMMISSIONER FOR OATHS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Danajamin Nasional Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia) [Registration No. 2009011011656 (854686-K)]

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements of Danajamin Nasional Berhad (“the Company”) give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2019, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the financial year
then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the
requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.
What we have audited
We have audited the financial statements of the Company, which comprise the statement of financial position as at
31 December 2019, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows
for the financial year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies,
as set out on pages 80 to 141.
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements” section of our report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Independence and other ethical responsibilities
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, Conduct and Practice) of the
Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws
and the IESBA Code.
Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon
The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors’ Report,
but does not include the financial statements of the Company and our auditors’ report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements of the Company does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Company, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements of the Company or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Danajamin Nasional Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia) [Registration No. 2009011011656 (854686-K)]

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements
The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements of the Company that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and
the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements of the Company that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements of the Company, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.
Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Company as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with approved standards
on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
(a)

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Company, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

(b)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

(c)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Directors.

(d)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements of the Company or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

(e)

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Company, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the Company represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Danajamin Nasional Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia) [Registration No. 2009011011656 (854686-K)]

OTHER MATTERS
This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of the
Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content
of this report.

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS PLT
LLP0014401-LCA & AF 1146
Chartered Accountants
Kuala Lumpur
8 May 2020

ONG CHING CHUAN
02907/11/2021 J
Chartered Accountant
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As At 31 December 2019

2019
RM’000

2018
RM’000

1,680
1,269
2,759
843,345
1,611,096
300,276
3,775
23,773
2,479
2,311

2,833
1,221
–
1,027,689
1,316,367
366,400
16,039
11,985
2,880
2,173

2,792,763

2,747,587

378,388
80,443
2,811
3,376
10,403
8,870
505,655

425,946
–
–
10,062
12,310
887
505,589

989,946

954,794

1,000,000
751,114
19,106
32,597

1,000,000
761,872
23,092
7,829

TOTAL EQUITY

1,802,817

1,792,793

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

2,792,763

2,747,587

Note

ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Right-of-use assets
Available-for-sale securities
Deposits and placements with licensed banks
Insurance receivables
Reinsurance assets
Tax recoverable
Other assets
Cash and cash equivalents

4
5
6 (a)
7
8
9
10
11

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Premium liabilities
Claims liabilities
Lease liabilities
Insurance payables
Other liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Subordinated Sukuk

12
13
6 (b)
14
15
16
17

TOTAL LIABILITIES
Share capital
Retained earnings
Contingency reserve
Available-for-sale fair value reserve

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

18
19
20
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2019

Gross earned premiums
Premiums ceded to reinsurance
Net earned premiums
Investment income
Realised gains
Other operating income

Note

2019
RM’000

2018
RM’000

21 (a)
21 (b)

52,835
(10,497)

89,971
(8,193)

22
23
24

42,338
100,666
8,835
9,091

81,778
94,525
1,851
6,452

160,930

184,606

Change in gross/net claims liabilities
Net claims incurred

25

(80,443)
(80,443)

–
–

Management expenses
Finance cost

26
27

(43,341)
(24,197)

(42,987)
(24,000)

Profit before taxation
Taxation

28

12,949
(9,793)

117,619
1,585

3,156

119,204

Net profit for the financial year
Other comprehensive income:
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss:
Available-for-sale fair value reserve:
Net gain arising during the financial year
Net gain transferred to profit or loss upon disposal
Tax effect thereon

41,511
(8,922)
(7,821)

8,827
(1,535)
(2,472)

Other comprehensive income for the financial year, net of tax

24,768

4,820

Total comprehensive income for the financial year

27,924

124,024

0.32

11.92

Basic earnings per share (sen)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2019

Non-Distributable
Share
capital
RM’000

AFS
fair value Contingency
reserve
reserve
RM’000
RM’000

Distributable
Retained
earnings
RM’000

Total
RM’000

At 1 January 2019
Net profit for the financial year
Dividend paid for the financial year ended 31 December 2018
Available-for-sale (“AFS”) fair value reserve:
Net gain arising during the financial year
Net gain transferred to profit or loss upon disposal
Tax effect thereon (Note 16)
Transfer from contingency reserve

1,000,000
–
–

7,829
–
–

23,092
–
–

761,872
3,156
(17,900)

1,792,793
3,156
(17,900)

–
–
–
–

41,511
(8,922)
(7,821)
–

–
–
–
(3,986)

–
–
–
3,986

41,511
(8,922)
(7,821)
–

At 31 December 2019

1,000,000

32,597

19,106

751,114

1,802,817

At 1 January 2018
Net profit for the financial year
Dividend paid for the financial year ended 31 December 2017
Available-for-sale (“AFS”) fair value reserve:
Net gain arising during the financial year
Net gain transferred to profit or loss upon disposal
Tax effect thereon (Note 16)
Transfer from contingency reserve

1,000,000
–
–

3,009
–
–

29,432
–
–

647,728
119,204
(11,400)

1,680,169
119,204
(11,400)

–
–
–
–

8,827
(1,535)
(2,472)
–

–
–
–
(6,340)

–
–
–
6,340

8,827
(1,535)
(2,472)
–

At 31 December 2018

1,000,000

7,829

23,092

761,872

1,792,793

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2019

2019
RM’000

2018
RM’000

12,949

117,619

1,598
1,947
–
132
977
(8,835)
155
500
(100,821)
24,197

1,553
–
3
–
754
(1,854)
35
–
(94,560)
24,000

(67,201)

47,550

(175,000)
343,302
55,000
(272,156)
79,126
65,624
12,264
400
(47,558)
(6,686)
80,443
(383)
11,985
(33,404)

(528,294)
176,371
50,000
201,325
98,551
90,234
5,191
(1,668)
(99,884)
(5,829)
–
2,465
–
–

45,756

36,012

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

(474)
(1,175)

(1,292)
(552)

Net cash outflows from investing activities

(1,649)

(1,844)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets written off
Amortisation of intangible assets
Net gain from disposal of AFS securities
Net amortisation of premiums for AFS securities
Allowance for doubtful debts
Interest income
Finance cost

Purchase of AFS securities
Proceeds from disposal of AFS securities
Proceeds from maturity of AFS securities
(Increase)/decrease in deposits and placements with licensed banks
Interest income received
Decrease in insurance receivables
Decrease in reinsurance assets
Decrease/(increase) in other assets
Decrease in premium liabilities
Decrease in insurance payables
Increase in claim liabilities
(Decrease)/increase in other liabilities
Income tax refunded
Income tax paid
Net cash inflows from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2019

2019
RM’000

2018
RM’000

Profit paid on Subordinated Sukuk
Dividends paid
Cash payment for principal portion of lease liability
Interest portion of lease liability

(23,934)
(17,900)
(1,938)
(197)

(24,132)
(11,400)
–
–

Net cash outflows from financing activities

(43,969)

(35,532)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

138

(1,364)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

2,173

3,537

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

2,311

2,173

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
Cash and bank balances

2,311

2,173

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2019

1

GENERAL INFORMATION
Danajamin Nasional Berhad (“the Company”) is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia.
The Company is principally engaged in providing financial guarantee insurance (“FGI”). There were no significant changes
in the nature of the principal activity during the financial year.
The address of the registered office and the principal place of business of the Company are Level 18,
Menara Allianz Sentral, No. 203, Jalan Tun Sambanthan, Kuala Lumpur Sentral 50470 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.
The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on
8 May 2020.

2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The following accounting policies have been used consistently in dealing with items which are considered material in
relation to the financial statements. These accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.
2.1

Basis of preparation
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Malaysian Financial Reporting
Standards (“MFRS”), International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in
Malaysia.
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared under the historical cost convention unless otherwise
indicated in the summary of significant accounting policies below.
The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”) and rounded to the nearest thousand (RM’000)
unless otherwise stated.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the MFRS requires the use of certain accounting estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reported financial year. It also requires the Directors to exercise their judgement in the process of applying the
Company’s accounting policies. Although these estimates and judgement are based on the Directors’ best knowledge
of current events and actions, actual results may differ from those estimates.
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions used that are significant to the financial statements and areas involving
a higher degree of judgement and complexity are disclosed in Note 3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2019

2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)
(a)

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to existing standards that are applicable to
the Company and are effective:
The Company has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2019:
•

MFRS 16 ‘Leases’
MFRS 16 ‘Leases’ supersedes MFRS 117 ‘Leases’ and the related interpretations.
Under MFRS 16, a lease is a contract (or part of a contract) that conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
MFRS 16 eliminates the classification of leases by the lessee as either finance leases (on balance sheet)
or operating leases (off balance sheet). MFRS 16 requires a lessee to recognise a “right-of-use” of the
underlying asset and a lease liability reflecting future lease payments for most leases.
The right-of-use asset is depreciated in accordance with the principle in MFRS 116 ‘Property, Plant and
Equipment’ and the lease liability is accreted over time with interest expense recognised in profit or loss.
For lessors, MFRS 16 retains most of the requirements in MFRS 117. Lessors continue to classify all leases
as either operating leases or finance leases and account for them differently.
The Company adopted MFRS 16 using the simplified retrospective approach and measured the rightof-use assets equals to the lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 with no restatement of comparative
information, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease
recognised in the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018. The comparative information
continued to be reported under the previous accounting policies governed under MFRS 117, Leases and
IC Interpretation 4, Determining whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2019

2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)
(a)

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to existing standards that are applicable to
the Company and are effective (continued):
The Company has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2019 (continued):
In applying MFRS 16 Leases for the first time, the Company has used the following practical expedients
permitted by the standard:
•

the use of a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics.

The Company has also elected not to reassess whether a contract is, or contains a lease at the date of
initial application. Instead, for contracts entered into before the transition date the Company relied on its
assessment made applying MFRS 117 ‘Lease’ and IC Interpretation 4 ‘Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease’.
The adoption of MFRS 16 Leases has resulted in changes in the Company’s accounting policies. The effect
arising from these changes on the statement of financial position of the Company are as follows:

31 December
2018
RM’000

Effect on
adoption of
MFRS 16
RM’000

1 January
2019
RM’000

Assets
Right-of-use assets

–

4,749

4,749

Liabilities
Lease liabilities

–

(4,749)

(4,749)

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities on 1 January 2019 was 4.15%
per annum.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2019

2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)
(a)

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to existing standards that are applicable to
the Company and are effective (continued):
The Company has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2019 (continued):
The reconciliation between the operating lease commitments disclosed applying MFRS 117 at
31 December 2018 to the lease liabilities recognised at 1 January 2019 is as follows:

Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 31 December 2018
Discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
at the date of initial application
Lease liability recognised as at 1 January 2019

•

Note

RM’000

30

5,101
(352)
4,749

IC Interpretation 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’
IC Interpretation 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’ (effective 1 January 2019) provides
guidance on how to recognise and measure deferred and current income tax assets and liabilities
where there is uncertainty over a tax treatment.
If an entity concludes that it is not probable that the tax treatment will be accepted by the tax authority,
the effect of the tax uncertainty should be included in the period when such determination is made.
An entity shall measure the effect of uncertainty using the method which best predicts the resolution of
the uncertainty.
IC Interpretation 23 will be applied retrospectively.

Other than that, the adoption of other amendments listed above did not have any impact on the current period
or any prior period and is not likely to affect future periods.
(b)

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to existing standards that are applicable to
the Company but not yet effective:
(i)

Financial year beginning on/after 1 January 2020
MFRS, interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
•
•
•
•

The Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (Revised 2018)
Amendments to MFRS 101, Presentation of Financial Statements – Definition of Material
Amendments to MFRS 108, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors –
Definition of Material
Amendments to MFRS 3, Business Combinations – Definition of Business
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2019

2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)
(b)

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to existing standards that are applicable to
the Company but not yet effective (continued):
(ii)

Financial year beginning on/after 1 January 2021
•

MFRS 17 ‘Insurance Contracts’ replaces MFRS 4 ‘Insurance Contracts’
MFRS 17 applies to insurance contracts issued, to all reinsurance contracts and to investment
contracts with discretionary participating features if an entity also issues insurance contracts.
For fixed-fee service contracts whose primary purpose is the provision of services, an entity has
an accounting policy choice to account for them in accordance with either MFRS 17 or MFRS 15
‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’. An entity is allowed to account financial guarantee
contracts in accordance with MFRS 17 if the entity has asserted explicitly that it regarded them as
insurance contracts.
Insurance contracts, (other than reinsurance) where the entity is the policyholder are not within the
scope of MFRS 17.
Embedded derivatives and distinct investment and service components should be ‘unbundled’
and accounted for separately in accordance with the related MFRSs. Voluntary unbundling of other
components is prohibited.
MFRS 17 requires a current measurement model where estimates are remeasured at each reporting
period. The measurement is based on the building blocks of discounted, probability-weighted cash
flows, a risk adjustment and a contractual service margin (“CSM”) representing the unearned profit
of the contract. An entity has a policy choice to recognise the impact of changes in discount rates
and other assumptions that related to financial risks either in profit or loss or in other comprehensive
income.
Alternative measurement models are provided for the different insurance coverages:
a)
b)

Simplified Premium Allocation Approach if the insurance coverage period is a year or less.
Variable Fee Approach should be applied for insurance contracts that specify a link between
payments to the policyholder and the returns on the underlying items.

The requirements of MFRS 17 align the presentation of revenue with other industries. Revenue is
allocated to the periods in proportion to the value of the expected coverage and other services that
the insurer provides in the period, and claims are presented when incurred. Investment components
are excluded from revenue and claims.
Insurers are required to disclose information about amounts, judgements and risks arising from
insurance contracts.
The Company has not fully assessed the impact of MFRS 17 on its financial statements, and will
complete this process prior to the effective date of 1 January 2021.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2019

2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(a)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are initially stated at cost and subsequently stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment initially
recognised includes its purchase price, import duties, non-refundable purchase taxes and any cost that is directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. Cost also includes borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably.
Repairs and maintenance are recognised as expenses in profit or loss during the financial year in which they are
incurred.
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment are computed on a straight-line basis over the following estimated
useful lives:
Motor vehicles
Renovation
Computer hardware
Furniture and fittings
Office equipment

60 months
60 months
30 months
60 months
60 months

Depreciation on assets under construction commences when the assets are ready for the intended use.
The residual values and useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.
At the end of the reporting period, the Company assesses whether there is any indication of impairment.
If such indications exist, an analysis is performed to assess whether the carrying amount of the asset is fully
recoverable. A write down is made if the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount. Refer to accounting
policy Note 2.2(e)(iv) on impairment of non-financial assets.
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the net carrying
amount is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2019

2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(b)

Lease
The Company as a Lessee
Accounting policies applied from 1 January 2019
From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as right-of-use (“ROU”) assets and a corresponding lease liability
at the date on which the leased asset is available for use by the Company (i.e. the commencement date).
Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Company allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases
of properties for which the Company is a lessee, it has elected the practical expedient provided in MFRS 16 not
to separate lease and non-lease components. Both components are accounted for as a single lease component
and payments for both components are included in the measurement of lease liability.
(i)

Lease term
In determining the lease term, the Company considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic
incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension options (or
periods after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to
be extended (or not terminated).

(ii)

Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are initially measured at cost comprising the following:
•
•
•
•

The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability
Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received
Any initial direct costs, and
Decommissioning or restoration costs.

ROU assets that are not investment properties are subsequently measured at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss (if any). The ROU assets are generally depreciated over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Company is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the ROU asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.
In addition, the ROU assets are adjusted for certain remeasurement of the lease liabilities. ROU assets are
presented as a separate line item in the statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2019

2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(b)

Lease (continued)
(iii)

Lease liabilities
Lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that
date. The lease payments include the fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any
lease incentive receivable.
Lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Company, the lessee’s incremental borrowing is
used. This is the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of similar value to the ROU assets in a similar economic environment with similar term, security
and conditions.
Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability for each period.
The Company presents the lease liabilities as a separate line item in the statement of financial
position. Interest expense on the lease liability is presented within the finance cost in the statement of
comprehensive income.

(iv)

Reassessment of lease liabilities
A reassessment of the lease liability takes place if the cash flows change based on the original terms and
conditions, for example upon change in lease term due to the Company exercises an option (purchase/
termination/extension) in a different way than the Company had previously determined was reasonably
certain. The lease liability will be remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate.

Accounting policies applied until 31 December 2018
Operating leases
Leases of assets where a significant (substantially all) portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not
transferred to the Company as a lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating
leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2019

2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(c)

Intangible assets and amortisation
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Internally generated intangible assets are not capitalised, and expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the
financial year in which the expenditure is incurred.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
lives are amortised on a straight line basis over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at each financial year-end.
Computer software are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software.
Computer software are amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives of thirty (30) months.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss when the asset
is derecognised.

(d)

Investments and financial assets
(i)

Available-for-sale (“AFS”)
AFS securities are investments that are not classified as held-for-trading or held-to-maturity or loan and
receivables. They are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at fair value. Interest
from the AFS securities, calculated using the effective yield method, is recognised in profit or loss, while
dividends on AFS instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the Company’s right to receive payment
is established.
Except for impairment losses, any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value adjustments are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income (i.e. AFS fair value reserve).
When the AFS security is derecognised, the cumulative fair value gains or losses previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are transferred to profit or loss as net realised gains or losses on AFS
security.

(ii)

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. The Company’s loans and receivables comprise deposits and placements with
licensed banks, other assets and cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position.
These financial assets are initially recognised at fair value. After initial measurement, loans and receivables
are measured at amortised cost, using the effective yield method, less allowance for impairment. Gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the financial assets are derecognised or impaired, as well
as through the amortisation process.
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2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(e)

Impairment of assets
(i)

Impairment of financial assets carried at amortised cost
The Company assesses at the end of the reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss
event (or events) have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in profit or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and where observable data indicate that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.
The amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The asset’s carrying amount
is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss. If ‘loans and receivables’ or a
‘held-to-maturity investment’ have a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment
loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the
debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss.
When an asset is uncollectible, it is written off against the related allowance account. Such assets are
written off after all the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of the loss has been
determined.

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets carried at cost
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on securities carried at cost (e.g. equity instruments
or which there is no active market or whose fair value cannot be reliably measured) has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for similar securities.
Such impairment losses shall not be reversed.
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2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(e)

Impairment of assets (continued)
(iii)

Impairment of financial assets classified as available-for-sale
In the case of AFS securities, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the financial asset below
its cost is considered in determining whether the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for AFS
securities, the cumulative loss, measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on the financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss, is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss.
If, in subsequent periods, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available for sale increases and
the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised in profit
or loss, that portion of impairment loss will be reversed in profit or loss. Impairment losses previously
recognised in profit or loss for an investment in an equity instrument classified as AFS will not be reversed
through profit or loss.

(iv)

Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired, whether there is an indication that a non-financial asset
may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Company makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and the value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset
(or cash-generating unit) exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset (or cash-generating unit) is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are charged to profit or loss
immediately.
A subsequent increase in the recoverable amount of an asset is treated as reversal of the previous
impairment loss and is recognised to the extent of the carrying amount of the asset that would have been
determined (net of amortisation and depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised. The reversal
is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

(f)

Fair value of financial instruments
Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell as asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value for investments traded in an active market is based on quoted market price at the end of the
reporting date. Where current market prices are not available, the price of the most recent transaction may
be used provided that there has not been significant change in economic circumstances since the time of
the transaction. If conditions have changed, the price will be adjusted to reflect the change in conditions by
reference to current prices for similar financial instruments.
If the market for the investments is not active, fair value may be established by using a valuation technique,
which includes but is not limited to using recent arm’s length market transactions between knowledgeable,
willing parties, if available, references to the current fair value for of another instrument that is substantially the
same, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models. A valuation technique should, where possible,
incorporate observable market data about market conditions and other factors that are likely to affect the
investments’ fair value.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(g)

Guarantee fee and security
The Company provides financial guarantee insurance over bond and sukuk issuances by companies incorporated
in Malaysia.
Bond issuers will pay a guarantee fee to Danajamin in return for the Company’s guarantee to cover the
outstanding principal and one coupon payment due to bondholders upon a default. The guarantee fee is
calculated based on a percentage of the nominal value of the outstanding guaranteed bonds in issue and is
paid annually in advance.
The Company mitigates the risks associated with its provision of financial guarantee insurance by:
•
•
•

Securing its exposures against tangible security to be provided by the obligor;
Establishing designated accounts with specific disbursement conditions which are controlled by Facility/
Security Agents; and/or
Imposing various financial and non-financial covenants on the obligor in ensuring financial discipline.

The Company is also able to impose additional conditions as it deems fit upon the occurrence of a breach in
covenant or a material adverse event.
(h)

Other revenue recognition
The Company charges other guarantee related fees such as upfront fees and processing fees arising from
Financial Guarantee Insurance (“FGI”) contracts separately from the guarantee premium.
Upfront fee is charged by the Company on various work performed for deal assessments prior to new issuance of
FGI contract. Upfront fee is recognised upon the Company committing to provide financial guarantee contract
and obligors accepting the Company’s offer to provide such commitment. The upfront fee is recognised over
the period which the Company is committed to provide the FGI contract, and is based on the earlier of validity
period of the Company’s commitment or expected drawdown/issuance of debt facilities. The upfront fee is
non-refundable. There is no element of financing as the payment is typically due within 30 days under current
business practices.
Processing fees may include extension fee and additional fee charged by the Company on separate additional
services including reassessment of obligors and granting approval for extension. The processing fees are
recognised when the Company satisfies the performance obligations at a point in time or over time, and
evaluation is performed on a case by case basis in accordance with the terms and conditions in the letter of
offer or FGI contract.
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument. The calculation
includes significant fees and transaction costs that are integral to the effective interest rate, as well as premiums
or discounts.
Gains or losses arising on disposal of financial assets are credited or charged to profit or loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(i)

Financial guarantee insurance results
The financial guarantee insurance results are determined after taking into account commissions, unearned
premiums and claims incurred.
Gross premiums
Gross premiums are recognised in a financial year in respect of risks assumed during the financial year.
No insurers licensed under the FSA effective since 30 June 2013 (previously under the Insurance Act, 1996) are
allowed to accept reinsurance of the Company’s FGI risks. However, the Company cedes insurance risk in the
normal course of business for some of its financial guarantees to entities other than insurers licensed under the
FSA.
Unearned premium reserve
Unearned premium reserve (“UPR”) in respect of FGI policy is determined as an amount calculated on the
basis that the premiums written are earned in proportion with the expiration of the exposure. This method is
applied consistently to premiums, reduced by the percentage of accounted gross direct commission expenses
to corresponding premiums.
Unexpired risk reserve
At each reporting date, the Company reviews its unexpired risks and a liability adequacy test is performed to
determine whether there is any overall excess of expected claims and deferred acquisition costs over unearned
premiums. This calculation is based on the present value of expected loss arising from the Company’s guarantee
obligations and an allowance for a provision of risk margin for adverse deviation. If these estimates show that
the carrying amount of the unearned premiums are inadequate, the deficiency is recognised in profit or loss by
setting up a provision for premium deficiency.
Claim liabilities
Claims liabilities relate to the FGI’s obligation, whether contractual or otherwise, to make future payments in
relation to all claims that have been incurred as at the valuation date, with appropriate allowance for direct and
indirect claims-related expenses that the FGI expects to incur when settling these claims. Upon receipt of a
notice of claim, the FGI is obligated to make relevant payments of interest and principal, to investors, in respect
of a guaranteed debt obligation. The amount of this obligation, including allowance for appropriate related
expenses the FGI expects to incur when paying the interest and principal, determines the claim liabilities.

(j)

Reinsurance
The Company cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business for some of its financial guarantees.
Reinsurance assets represent balances due from companies where the insurance risks are ceded. Amounts
recoverable from reinsurers are in accordance with the related reinsurance contracts.
Ceded reinsurance arrangement does not relieve the Company from its obligation to bondholders. Premiums
are presented on a gross basis for ceded reinsurance.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(j)

Reinsurance (continued)
Reinsurance assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date or more frequently when an indication
of impairment arises during the reporting financial year. Impairment occurs when there is objective evidence
as a result of an event that occurred after initial recognition of the reinsurance asset that the Company may not
receive all outstanding amounts due to the terms of the contract and the event has a reliably measurable impact
on the amounts that the Company will receive from the reinsurer. The impairment loss is recorded in profit or
loss.

(k)

Premium receivables
Premium receivables are recognised when risks are assumed (including instalment premiums) and measured on
initial recognition at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
If there is objective evidence that the premium receivable is impaired, the Company reduces the carrying
amount of the premium receivable accordingly and recognises that impairment loss in profit or loss.
The Company gathers the objective evidence that a premium receivable is impaired using the process as
described in Note 2.2(e).

(l)

Fee receivables
Fee receivables are amounts due from obligors for services rendered in the ordinary course of business.
Fee receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment.

(m)

Financial guarantee insurance liabilities
FGI liabilities are recognised when contracts are entered into and premiums are charged. The FGI liabilities refer
to the claims and premium liabilities of the Company’s business, associated with the uncertainty of claims and
unexpired risks (with respect to unexpired FGI policies), resulting from the risks of increased claims losses and
under-estimation of premiums.
The value of the FGI liabilities is the aggregate of the values of the premium liabilities and the claim liabilities.
Premium liabilities
Premium liabilities refer to the greater of:
•
•

The aggregate of the unearned premium reserve (“UPR”); and
The best estimate value of the unexpired risk reserve (“URR”) at the valuation date and a provision of risk
margin for adverse deviation (“PRAD”). The URR is the reserve required to cover for future claims and
associated expenses that are expected to emerge during the unexpired period of the FGI guarantee.
It is an estimate of the future obligations of the FGI taking into account the likelihood and amount of
the interest and principal that the FGI expects to pay in the event of a default of an obligation with
allowance for expenses, including overheads and any cost of reinsurance expected to be incurred during
the unexpired period in administering these policies and settling the relevant claims, and the timing of the
payments.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(m)

Financial guarantee insurance liabilities (continued)
Valuation of financial guarantee insurance liabilities shall provide for reserves at a specified level of adequacy
with explicit prudential margins. In particular, the liability valuation should aim to secure an overall level of
sufficiency of reserves at the 75% confidence level. To secure this level of adequacy, the Company calculates
the best estimate value of its FGI liabilities and apply a PRAD.
Claims liabilities
Claims liabilities relate to expired periods of exposure and earned premiums. Claim liabilities are obligations,
whether contractual or otherwise, to make future payments in relation to all claims that have been incurred as
at the valuation date, with appropriate allowance for expected claims-related expenses.
The claims liability consists of two reserves. These being:
•
•

A reported but not admitted (“RBNA”) claims reserve, which is the reserve held in respect of claims
notified to the Company which the Company has not accepted; and
An incurred but not reported (“IBNR”) claims reserve, which is the reserve held in respect of defaults that
have occurred, but where the Company has not been notified of the default.

The financial positions of the companies insured are monitored on an ongoing basis and any default would be
highlighted immediately.
Details on the methodologies and assumptions in the valuation of FGI liabilities are outlined in Note 3.
Contingency reserve
As a FGI, the Company is required to establish and maintain a contingency reserve as a buffer against the risk
of excessive losses occurring during adverse economic cycles, in the manner prescribed in paragraph 44(6)
of Insurance (FGI) Regulations 2001 issued by BNM. The provision of this contingency reserve is shown via a
movement/transfer within the Statement of Changes in Equity.
(n)

Income taxes
Tax expense for the period comprises current tax and deferred tax. The tax expense or credit for the period
is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and
to unused tax losses. Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are
those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(n)

Income taxes (continued)
Deferred tax is provided on a temporary difference at the date of statement of financial position between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:
(i)

Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit not taxable profit or loss; and

(ii)

In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates,
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised except:
(i)

Where the deferred tax assets relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

(ii)

In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates,
deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each date of statement of financial position
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred
tax assets to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liabilities is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax is recognised as income or an expense and included in profit or loss for the financial year, except
when it arises from a transaction which is recognised directly in equity, the deferred tax is also recognised in
equity.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(o)

Employee benefits
(i)

Short term benefits
Wages, salaries, paid annual leave and sick leave, bonuses, social security contributions and non-monetary
benefits are recognised as expense in the financial year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees of the Company.

(ii)

Defined contribution plan
As required by law, the Company makes contribution to the Employees’ Provident Fund (“EPF”), a defined
contribution plan. The Company’s contributions to the EPF are charged to profit or loss in the financial
year to which they relate. Once contributions have been made, the Company has no further payment
obligations.

(p)

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and bank balances,
excluding deposits and placements with licensed banks which are held for investment purpose.

(q)

Insurance payables and other liabilities
Insurance payables and other liabilities are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition at fair value
less directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at amortised
cost using the effective yield method.

(r)

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
of the amount of obligation can be made.
Where the Company expect a provision to be reimbursed (for example, under an insurance contract), the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Where the
effect of the time value is material, the amount of the provision is the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as finance cost
expense.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(s)

Share capital
(i)

Classification
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Other shares, if issued, are classified as equity and/or liability
according to the substance of the contractual arrangement of the particular instrument.

(ii)

Share issue cost
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(iii)

Dividend distribution
Distributions to holders of an equity instrument is recognised directly in equity. The corresponding liability
is recognised in the period in which the shareholders’ right to receive the dividends are established or the
dividends are declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of the Company,
on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

(iv)

(t)

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the financial year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
financial year.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
The Company does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company
or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in the extremely rare case where there is a
liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be estimated reliably.
A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company. The
Company does not recognise contingent assets but disclose their existence where inflows of economic benefits
are probable, but not virtually certain.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(u)

Foreign currency transactions and balances
Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the Company operates (the “functional currency”). The financial statements are presented in Ringgit
Malaysia, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

(v)

Subordinated Sukuk and finance cost
Subordinated Sukuk is recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Subordinated Sukuk
is subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference between initial recognised amount and the nominal
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the Sukuk using the effective profit method.
Finance cost on the Subordinated Sukuk (i.e. Sukuk profit) is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it
is incurred.

3

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 2, Management is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources if estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are discussed below.
Valuation of financial guarantee insurance liabilities
The Company is subject to BNM’s Guidelines in valuing its FGI liabilities that is further described in Note 2.2(m).
The FGI liabilities comprise:
•
•
•

The best estimate value of the claim liabilities;
The best estimate value of the premium liabilities; and
The PRAD for each of the above best estimate values.

The best estimate value should reflect the statistical central estimate of the underlying distribution of the FGI liabilities.
The statistical central estimate is equal to the mean of reasonable expected outcomes.

104

Danajamin Nasional Berhad
Annual Report 2019

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2019

3

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (CONTINUED)
Valuation of financial guarantee insurance liabilities (continued)
The calculation of the best estimate claims liabilities and premium liabilities are subject to considerations of materiality.
(i)

Best estimates of claim liabilities
The claims liability consists of two reserves; reported but not admitted (“RBNA”) claims reserve and an incurred but
not reported (“IBNR”) claims reserve as described in Note 2.2(m).
The RBNA reserve is calculated by determining the reserve for each reported claim and then aggregating the
individual reserves. The reserve in respect of each reported claim is determined by calculating the best estimate of
future payments net of expected future recoveries, allowing for claims related expenses.
The IBNR is, in general, determined similarly to the RBNA where the best estimate of future payments net of expected
future recoveries is estimated while allowing for claims related expenses. However, adjustments may be made on a
case-by-case basis as the status of the default develops.
Incurred But Not Reported
(i)

Methodology
•
•
•

(ii)

Assumptions
•

(ii)

In general, the IBNR shall be the amount of outstanding principal due to the bondholders plus the value
of one coupon for the claim in question.
This amount may be reduced by the value of any cash collateral that has been deposited in the designated
accounts.
The IBNR may be adjusted on a case-by-case basis as and when necessary to reflect the latest
development of the default.

Other tangible collateral pledged to the Company will require time to realise, hence no value is ascribed
to those collateral when the IBNR is established.

Best estimates of premium liabilities
Premium liabilities relate to unexpired periods of exposure and unearned premiums. The best estimate premium
liabilities amount is the higher of:
•
•

the unearned premium reserve (“UPR”); and
the best estimate value of the unexpired risk reserve (“URR”) at the valuation date plus the PRAD for unexpired
risks.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (CONTINUED)
(ii)

Best estimates of premium liabilities (continued)
Unearned premium reserve
(i)

Methodology
•
•
•

(ii)

The UPR established reflect unearned portion of premiums received to date, plus future premiums
receivable under the FGI policies issued at the valuation date.
The UPR reserve is amortised over the term of the FGI policies.
A premium receivable is established in respect of future premiums receivable under the FGI policies
issued at the valuation date.

Assumptions
•

The claims profile of the portfolio is approximately uniform over the contract term.

Unexpired risk reserve
(i)

Methodology
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The URR is calculated using a stochastic credit reserving model.
For each FGI policy, a transition matrix is used to randomly simulate changes in the credit ratings of the
issuer on a yearly basis.
The probability of the issuer defaulting over a one year period is assigned based on the risk rating of the
issuer.
The model then randomly simulates on the issuer defaulting in the remaining term of the issuance using
the risk ratings and the corresponding probabilities of default.
The loss incurred is randomly simulated should the issuer default and the present value is determined.
The steps are repeated for each FGI policy and the present value of future defaults for each FGI policy is
accumulated to determine the portfolio losses.
The simulation is repeated 10,000 times to construct a distribution of portfolio losses and the average
outcome is calculated to determine the URR.

The best estimate URR reflects the aggregate value of expected claim on each FGI policy over the period from
the valuation date until the expiry of that policy.
The URR is significantly higher this financial year partially due to one account that was downgraded by
3 credit rating notches. The same account had its recovery rates adjusted lower due to imperfection on the
security of the intended collateral. The weak credit strength of the account as a result of both events is reflected
in the higher URR.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (CONTINUED)
(ii)

Best estimates of premium liabilities (continued)
Unexpired risk reserve (continued)
(ii)

Assumptions
The following assumptions have been adopted:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

(iii)

Best estimate of the provision of risk margin for adverse deviation (“PRAD”)
(i)

Methodology
•
•

•
•

(ii)

PRAD is determined for claims liability and the URR separately.
The claims liability PRAD depends on nature of claims notified. In the event where full provision has been
made against a particular claim, the corresponding PRAD will be set to zero as there is no potential for
future claims escalation.
The URR PRAD is determined using the distribution of portfolio losses calculated by the credit risk
reserving model and has been set at the 75% confidence level.
The approach for determining the URR PRAD will be reviewed as the size of the FGI portfolio grows.
Volatility in the PRAD as a percentage of the best estimate is expected at this stage in operations.

Assumptions
•

(iv)

Multiple FGI policies can be issued under the one FGI facility agreement.
The calculation of URR does not allow for FGI policies that are expected to be issued in the future.
Correlation between the bond issuer ratings is allowed for using an Asset Value Model approach.
The recovery rate is assumed to be described by the Beta distribution.
Correlation between the recovery rates on the different FGI facilities is not allowed.
The model assumes the average recovery rate is partially sensitive to the level of security provided.
The allowance for policy administration expenses is made outside the model. The policy administration
allowance is determined by multiplying the policy administration expense assumption by the UPR.
Claim handling expenses are implicitly allowed via the recovery rate assumption adopted.

The PRAD calculation does not allow for future FGI policies signed at the valuation date.

Reinsurance
The FGI liabilities is determined gross of reinsurance, with a reinsurance asset held on the statement of
financial position of the Company.
(i)

Methodology
•

(ii)

The methodology for determining is consistent with that adopted for the FGI liabilities.

Assumptions
•

No adjustment is made to the reinsurance asset to reflect the risk of the reinsurer defaulting as it is not
considered material to the Company’s operations.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Note

Motor
vehicles Renovation
RM’000
RM’000

Computer
Furniture
hardware and fittings
RM’000
RM’000

Office
equipment
RM’000

Total
RM’000

Cost
At 1 January 2019
Additions
Disposals/Write-offs

375
–
–

2,460
–
–

3,613
462
(157)

1,426
7
–

654
5
–

8,528
474
(157)

At 31 December 2019

375

2,460

3,918

1,433

659

8,845

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2019
Charge for the financial year
Charge borne by a related party
Disposals/Write-offs

23
73
1
–

1,626
483
9
–

2,571
720
14
(158)

1,027
213
4
–

448
109
2
–

5,695
1,598
30
(158)

At 31 December 2019

97

2,118

3,147

1,244

559

7,165

Net book value at 31 December 2019

278

342

771

189

100

1,680

Cost
At 1 January 2018
Additions
Transfer from intangible assets
Disposals/Write-offs

5
370
–
–

2,435
25
–
–

2,966
837
101
(291)

1,395
40
–
(9)

634
20
–
–

7,435
1,292
101
(300)

375

2,460

3,613

1,426

654

8,528

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2018
Charge for the financial year
Charge borne by a related party
Disposals/Write-offs

5
18
–
–

1,136
480
10
–

2,108
736
15
(288)

820
212
4
(9)

339
107
2
–

4,408
1,553
31
(297)

At 31 December 2018

23

1,626

2,571

1,027

448

5,695

352

834

1,042

399

206

2,833

At 31 December 2018

Net book value at 31 December 2018

5
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS
2019
RM’000

2018
RM’000

6,233
1,175
–
(132)

5,782
552
(101)
–

7,276

6,233

5,012
977
18
–

4,242
754
16
–

At 31 December

6,007

5,012

Net book value at 31 December

1,269

1,221

2019
RM’000

2018
RM’000

2,715
44

–
–

2,759

–

–

–

Note
Computer software
Cost
At 1 January
Additions
Transfer to property, plant and equipment
Write-offs

4
26

At 31 December
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January
Amortisation for the financial year
Amortisation borne by a related party
Write-offs

6

26
26

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES
(a)

Right-of-use assets

Carrying amounts of ROU asset by class of underlying assets:
Properties
Equipment

Addition to the ROU assets during the financial year
Depreciation charge of ROU assets by class of underlying assets:
Properties
Equipment
Charge borne by a related party

(1,895)
(52)
(43)

–
–
–

(1,990)

–
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6

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
(b)

Lease liabilities
2019
RM’000

2018
RM’000

Lease liabilities:
- Payables within 12 months
- Payables after 12 months

1,885
926

–
–

Total lease liabilities

2,811

–

Interest expense
Total cash outflow for leases

197
2,135

–
–

2019
RM’000

2018
RM’000

–
4,749

–
–

4,749
(2,135)
197

–
–
–

2,811

–

2019
RM’000

2018
RM’000

30,784
122,067
690,494

30,308
368,263
629,118

843,345

1,027,689

16,500
826,845

63,831
963,858

843,345

1,027,689

Recognition of liabilities arising from financing activities

Lease liabilities
At 31 December 2018
Effect of adoption MFRS 16
At 1 January 2019
Cash flows
Interest charge
At 31 December 2019

7

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES

At fair value
Unquoted in Malaysia:
Malaysian Government Securities (“MGS”)
Government Investment Issues (“GII”)
Corporate debt securities

Mature within 12 months
Mature after 12 months
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7

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES (CONTINUED)
Fair value hierarchy
The fair value analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have been
defined as follows:
•
•

Level 1:
Level 2:

•

Level 3:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Recurring fair value measurements
The available-for-sale securities, which are under Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, are measured using a valuation technique
based on assumptions that are supported by prices from observable current market transactions and for which pricing is
obtained via pricing agencies and other service provider. Where prices have not been determined in an active market,
instruments with fair values are based on broker quotes.

8

DEPOSITS AND PLACEMENTS WITH LICENSED BANKS
The deposits and placements are maturing within 12 months, and the carrying amounts approximate the fair values due to
the relatively short-term maturity of these balances.

9

INSURANCE RECEIVABLES

Premium receivables
Guarantee fee related receivables
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

2019
RM’000

2018
RM’000

299,780

364,346

996
(500)

2,054
–

496

2,054

Total insurance receivables

300,276

366,400

Receivable within 12 months
Receivable after 12 months

51,666
248,610

69,414
296,986

300,276

366,400

300,276

366,400

Gross/net amount of recognised financial assets
presented in the statement of financial position

There are no financial liabilities subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement and
financial instruments received as collateral as at 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).
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11

REINSURANCE ASSETS
2019
RM’000

2018
RM’000

Reinsurance assets

3,775

16,039

Receivable within 12 months
Receivable after 12 months

1,605
2,170

7,555
8,484

3,775

16,039

2019
RM’000

2018
RM’000

708
691
1,080

705
937
1,238

2,479

2,880

OTHER ASSETS

Deposits
Prepayments
Other receivables

The balances are receivable within 12 months, and the carrying amounts approximate the fair values due to the relatively
short-term maturity of these balances.

12

PREMIUM LIABILITIES
Note

Gross
RM’000

Reinsurance
RM’000

Net
RM’000

425,946
5,277
(52,835)

(16,039)
1,767
10,497

409,907
7,044
(42,338)

At 31 December 2019

378,388

(3,775)

374,613

Due within 12 months
Due after 12 months

93,056
285,332

(1,605)
(2,170)

91,451
283,162

378,388

(3,775)

374,613

Unearned premium reserve
At 1 January 2019
Premiums written during the financial year
Premiums earned during the financial year

21
21
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PREMIUM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
Note

Gross
RM’000

Reinsurance
RM’000

Net
RM’000

525,830
(9,913)
(89,971)

(21,230)
(3,002)
8,193

504,600
(12,915)
(81,778)

At 31 December 2018

425,946

(16,039)

409,907

Due within 12 months
Due after 12 months

13,909
412,037

(7,555)
(8,484)

6,354
403,553

425,946

(16,039)

409,907

Unearned premium reserve
At 1 January 2018
Premiums written during the financial year
Premiums earned during the financial year

13

21
21

CLAIMS LIABILITIES
The Company recognised net claims liabilities for the first time amounting to RM80,443,000 for the year ended
31 December 2019, representing the full exposure on an obligor inclusive of claim handling expenses less upliftment
from debt payment account (“DPA”) and debt service reserve account (“DSRA”).
DPA and DSRA accounts refer to the accounts that an obligor needs to build up its principal and coupon payment to
bondholders.
The claims liability reserve is recognised as a result of an obligor triggering a claims event for the year ended
31 December 2019.

Note
Provision for incurred but not reported
At 1 January
Claims incurred during the year
At 31 December

Gross/Net
RM’000
80,443

25

–
80,443
80,443

The Trustee has declared an Event of Default on 3 March 2020 and execute the Notice of Claim to the Company on
4 March 2020.
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INSURANCE PAYABLES
2019
RM’000

2018
RM’000

Reinsurance premiums payable

3,376

10,062

Payable within 12 months
Payable after 12 months

1,593
1,783

4,561
5,501

3,376

10,062

3,376

10,062

Gross/net amount of recognised financial liabilities
presented in the statement of financial position

There are no financial assets subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement and financial
instruments received as collateral as at 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

15

OTHER LIABILITIES

Provision for unutilised leave
Provision for loan interest subsidy
Provision for audit fees
Provision for bonus and related EPF
Amount due to a related party
Accrued expenses
Deferred income
Service tax payable
Advance premium
Other payables

2019
RM’000

2018
RM’000

186
117
153
4,668
76
2,335
–
4
1,469
1,395

188
111
222
5,089
23
1,370
1,433
3,285
–
589

10,403

12,310

The amount due to a related party is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment. The balances are
payable within 12 months, and the carrying amounts approximate the fair values due to the relatively short-term maturity
of these balances.
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DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the same tax authority. The following amounts, determined after
appropriate offsetting are shown in the statement of financial position:

Deferred tax liabilities (net)

2019
RM’000

2018
RM’000

(8,870)

(887)

1,606
(1,606)

1,653
(1,653)

Deferred tax assets
Before offsetting
Offsetting
After offsetting

–

–

Deferred tax liabilities
Before offsetting
Offsetting
After offsetting

(10,476)
1,606

(2,540)
1,653

(8,870)

(887)

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the financial year are as follows:
Property,
plant and
equipment
RM’000

Intangible
assets
RM’000

AFS
securities
RM’000

AFS
fair value
reserve
RM’000

Provisions
RM’000
1,293

Balance as at 1 January 2019
Credited/(Charged) to
income statement (Note 28)
Credited to equity

(11)

(57)

360

(2,472)

235
–

(126)
–

(158)
–

–
(7,821)

Balance as at 31 December 2019

224

(183)

202

(10,293)

(113)
–
1,180

Total
RM’000
(887)
(162)
(7,821)
(8,870)

Balance as at 1 January 2018
Credited/(Charged) to
income statement (Note 28)
Credited to equity

–

–

–

–

–

–

(11)
–

(57)
–

360
–

–
(2,472)

1,293
–

1,585
(2,472)

Balance as at 31 December 2018

(11)

(57)

360

(2,472)

1,293

(887)
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SUBORDINATED SUKUK
On 6 October 2017, the Company issued Subordinated Sukuk Murabahah of RM500 million which is a part of a Sukuk
Programme of up to RM2.0 billion for the issuance of Senior and Subordinated Sukuk Murabahah.
The Subordinated Sukuk has a tenure of 10 years, with a callable option made available from year 5 onwards.
The Subordinated Sukuk, which will be redeemed at its nominal value upon maturity, is subordinated unsecured obligations
of the Company.
Principal
RM500 million

Maturity date
6 October 2027

Profit rate
4.80% per annum

Profit payment
Accrued and payable semi-annually in arrears

Due within 12 months
Due after 12 months

Fair value

2019
RM’000

2018
RM’000

5,655
500,000

5,589
500,000

505,655

505,589

513,160

503,230

The estimated fair value is generally based on quoted and observable market prices at the date of the statement of financial
position and is within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Subordinated Sukuk
Profit expense payable

Non-cash
charges/
At
Profit 31 December
expense
2019
RM’000
RM’000

At
1 January
2019
RM’000

Cash
flows
RM’000

500,000
5,589

–
(23,934)

–
24,000

500,000
5,655

505,589

(23,934)

24,000

505,655
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SHARE CAPITAL
2019
RM’000

2018
RM’000

1,000,000

1,000,000

Ordinary shares issued and fully paid up:
At 1 January/31 December

In addition to the above issued and fully paid up share capital, there is an additional RM1,000,000,000 capital on call from
the Government of Malaysia.

19

RETAINED EARNINGS
Under the single-tier tax system which came into effect from the year of assessment 2008 onwards, companies are not
required to have tax credits under Section 108 of the Income Tax Act, 1967 for dividend payment purposes. Dividends paid
under this system are tax exempt in the hands of shareholders.
The Company may distribute single-tier dividends to its shareholders out of its retained earnings. Pursuant to Section 51(1)
of the Financial Services Act 2013, the Company is required to obtain BNM’s written approval prior to declaring or paying
any dividends. Pursuant to the RBC Framework, the Company shall not pay dividends if its Capital Adequacy Ratio position
is less than its Individual Target Capital Level (“ITCL”) or if the payment of dividend would impair its Capital Adequacy Ratio
position to below its ITCL.

20

CONTINGENCY RESERVE

Contingency reserve

2019
RM’000

2018
RM’000

19,106

23,092

Pursuant to paragraph 44(6) of Insurance (Financial Guarantee Insurance) Regulatory 2001, the Company is required to
maintain contingency reserves in respect of every policy which is in force at the end of the financial year, computed based
on a prescribed formula.
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NET EARNED PREMIUMS
Note
(a)

Net earned premiums

5,277
47,558

(9,913)
99,884

52,835

89,971

12

1,767
(12,264)

(3,002)
(5,191)

(10,497)

(8,193)

42,338

81,778

45,046
(39,769)

66,471
(76,384)

5,277

(9,913)

2019
RM’000

2018
RM’000

Gross written premium
Gross written premium during the financial year
Reversal of premium due to early redemption

22

12

Premiums ceded to reinsurance
Gross written premium ceded
Change in ceded unearned premium reserve

(i)

2018
RM’000

Gross earned premiums
Gross written premium
Change in gross unearned premium reserve

(b)

2019
RM’000

INVESTMENT INCOME

Interest income from AFS securities
Interest income from deposits and placements with licensed banks
Amortisation of premiums

39,644
61,177
(155)
100,666

36,641
57,919
(35)
94,525
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REALISED GAINS
2019
RM’000

2018
RM’000

8,835
–

1,854
(3)

8,835

1,851

2019
RM’000

2018
RM’000

9,057
34

6,427
25

9,091

6,452

Note

2019
RM’000

2018
RM’000

13
13

–
80,443

–
–

80,443

–

Net gain from disposal of AFS securities
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

24

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Guarantee related fees
Other income

25

NET CLAIMS INCURRED

Changes in gross/net claim liabilities:
At 1 January
At 31 December
Gross/net claims incurred

The Company recognised gross and net claims liabilities for the first time amounting to RM80,443,000 for the year ended
31 December 2019.
The Trustee has declared an Event of Default on 3 March 2020 and executed the Notice of Claim to the Company on
4 March 2020.
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MANAGEMENT EXPENSES
Note
Staff costs
Directors’ remuneration
Auditors’ remuneration
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Intangible assets written off
Allowance for doubtful debts
Rental of office
Repairs and maintenance
Postage, telephone and telefax
Printing and stationery
Professional fees
Other expenses

(a)

26(a)
26(b)
26(c)
4
5
5

2019
RM’000

2018
RM’000

28,876
1,894
238
1,598
1,947
977
132
500
–
1,472
163
250
1,925
3,369

28,095
2,248
359
1,553
–
754
–
–
1,835
901
165
223
4,107
2,747

43,341

42,987

19,582
79
3,444
1,510
4,261

18,952
79
3,430
1,298
4,336

28,876

28,095

Staff costs
Salaries and bonus
SOCSO contributions
EPF contributions
Training expenses
Other benefits (inclusive of interest subsidy and unutilised leave)

Included in staff costs are the remuneration, including benefits-in-kind, attributable to the CEO of the Company
during the financial year which amounted to RM1,408,000 (2018: RM1,357,000) as shown below:
Salary and
other
remuneration
RM’000

Benefits-inkind
RM’000

Bonus
RM’000

Total
RM’000

2019
Managing Director/CEO
Mohamed Nazri Omar

1,155

7

246

1,408

2018
Managing Director/CEO
Mohamed Nazri Omar

1,122

7

228

1,357

Mohamed Nazri retired as the Managing Director of Danajamin upon expiry of his directorship tenure on 30 April
2020. He continues to be the Chief Executive Officer of Danajamin.
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MANAGEMENT EXPENSES (CONTINUED)
(b)

Directors’ remuneration
The details of remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors during the financial year are as follows:

Fees
RM’000

Benefits-inOther
kind remuneration
RM’000
RM’000

Total
RM’000

2019
Non-Executive Directors
Md Yusof Hussin
Dato’ Azian Mohd Noh
(retired on 24 June 2019)
Mohamed Rashdi Mohamed Ghazalli
Ariffin Hew
(retired on 24 October 2019)
Suresh Menon
Choo Yee Kwan
Datuk Che Mokhtar Che Ali
Elakumari Kantilal
Muhamad Shahril Othman

388
105

21
–

–
–

409
105

207
192

–
–

–
–

207
192

198
229
189
190
175

–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–

198
229
189
190
175

1,873

21

–

1,894
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MANAGEMENT EXPENSES (CONTINUED)
(b)

Directors’ remuneration (continued)

Fees
RM’000

Benefits-inOther
kind remuneration
RM’000
RM’000

Total
RM’000

2018
Non-Executive Directors
Md Yusof Hussin
(appointed on 23 August 2018)
Dato’ Azian Mohd Noh
Mohamed Rashdi Mohamed Ghazalli
Ariffin Hew
Suresh Menon
(appointed on 11 May 2018)
Choo Yee Kwan
(appointed on 22 May 2018)
Datuk Che Mokhtar Che Ali
(appointed on 23 August 2018)
Elakumari Kantilal
(appointed on 23 August 2018)
Muhamad Shahril Othman
(appointed on 19 October 2018)
Dato’ Mohammed Haji Che Hussein
(retired on 13 May 2018)
Abdul Kadir Md Kassim
(retired on 13 May 2018)
Dato’ Albert Yeoh Beow Tit
(retired on 10 May 2018)
Philip Tan Puay Koon
(retired on 13 May 2018)
Datuk Ahmad Badri Mohd Zahir
(retired on 24 June 2018)

176

4

–

180

278
279
333
149

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

278
279
333
149

164

–

–

164

57

–

–

57

59

–

–

59

45

–

–

45

271

3

–

274

117

–

–

117

109

–

–

109

90

–

–

90

114

–

–

114

2,241

7

–

2,248
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MANAGEMENT EXPENSES (CONTINUED)
(c)

Auditors’ remuneration
The details of the auditor’s remuneration during the financial year are as follows:

Statutory audit
Non-audit services

27

2018
RM’000

226
12

222
137

238

359

2019
RM’000

2018
RM’000

24,000
197

24,000
–

24,197

24,000

2019
RM’000

2018
RM’000

FINANCE COSTS

Finance cost – Sukuk profit
Interest on lease

28

2019
RM’000

TAXATION

Current year tax
Deferred tax expense:
Origination and reversal of temporary difference (Note 16)
Tax (expense)/income

(9,631)

–

(162)

1,585

(9,793)

1,585

The Company was exempted from income tax at the statutory level, except for dividend income, pursuant to Section
127(3A) of the Income Tax Act, 1967 from years of assessment 2014 to 2018. The exemption expired at the end of the prior
financial year and was not extended for another 5 five years.
The income tax is based on the statutory tax rate of 24% (2018: Nil) of the estimated assessable profit for the financial year.
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TAXATION (CONTINUED)
A reconciliation of income tax expenses applicable to profit before taxation at the statutory income tax rate to income tax
expense at the effective income tax rate is as follows:

29

2019
RM’000

2018
RM’000

Profit before tax

12,949

117,619

Taxation at Malaysian statutory tax rate of 24%
Tax effects of:
Statutory income exempted from tax
Expenses not deductible
Deferred tax income due to temporary differences

(3,108)

(28,229)

–
(6,685)
–

34,403
(6,174)
1,585

(9,793)

1,585

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the financial year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the financial year:

Net profit for the financial year
Weighted average number of shares in issue
Basic earnings per share (sen)

2019
RM’000

2018
RM’000

3,156
1,000,000

119,204
1,000,000

0.32

11.92

There has been no other transactions involving ordinary shares between the reporting date and the date of completion of
these financial statements.
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30

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Company (as lessee) has entered into non-cancellable operating lease commitments. These leases have remaining
non-cancellable lease terms of between less than 1 year and 3 years.
The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases contracted for as at the reporting date but not
recognised as payables, are as follows:

Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year and not later than 3 years

2019
RM’000

2018
RM’000

–
–

2,135
2,966

–

5,101

From 1 January 2019, the Company has recognised right-of-use assets for these leases, except for short-term and low-value
leases (see Note 2.1(a) and Note 6 for further information).

31

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure
Approved and contracted for:
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets - computer software

Approved but not contracted for:
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets - computer software

2019
RM’000

2018
RM’000

22
54

–
777

76

777

–
–

–
–

–

–
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FINANCIAL GUARANTEE PORTFOLIO
The financial guarantee contracts outstanding and approved underwriting limit based on sector is tabulated as follows:

Guaranteed
amount
RM’000

2019
Facility
amount
RM’000

Guaranteed
amount
RM’000

2018
Facility
amount
RM’000

150,000
367,000
320,000
450,000
502,250
532,000
420,000
690,000
789,500

150,000
367,000
320,000
450,000
502,250
582,000
570,000
850,000
789,500

150,000
735,000
180,000
555,000
796,875
696,000
420,000
610,000
789,500

150,000
735,000
180,000
555,000
796,875
762,000
450,000
850,000
789,500

4,220,750

4,580,750

4,932,375

5,268,375

Sector
Agriculture
Power
Education
Consumer products
Oil and gas
Real estate
Property development
Toll and highways
Construction & building materials

33

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
The related parties of, and their relationship with the Company, are as follows:
Related parties

Relationship

Credit Guarantee Corporation Malaysia Berhad
Minister of Finance (Incorporated)
Bank Negara Malaysia
Key management personnel

Shareholder
Shareholder
Related party of shareholder
The key management personnel of
the Company includes the Board of
Directors, CEO and Management

Key management personnel are those people defined as having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Company, either directly or indirectly. The key management personnel of the Company
include all the Directors of the Company and employees of the Company who make certain critical decisions in relation to
the strategic direction of the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Company had the following transactions
and balances with related parties during the financial year:
(a)

Significant related party balances

Note
Other liabilities
Amount due to a related party
(b)

2018
RM’000

76

23

2019
RM’000

2018
RM’000

8,514
1,384
1,894

7,692
1,252
2,248

11,792

11,192

Key management personnel’s remuneration

Salaries and benefits
Employer’s EPF contributions
Directors’ remuneration

34

15

2019
RM’000

26(b)

SUBSEQUENT EVENT AFTER FINANCIAL YEAR
In the first quarter of 2020, the rapid spread of the Covid-19 has been declared a pandemic. Globally, increasing measures
are being taken to contain it and these have led to a significant volatility in the financial markets, resulting in an adverse
impact on the global business and economic activity.
There is an increasing likelihood that the Covid-19 and the continuous efforts could cause undesirable effects on the
Malaysian economy. The Company has taken a number of measures to monitor and prevent the effects of the Covid-19
virus such as safety and health measures for our people (like social distancing and working from home). We will continue to
follow the various government’s instituted policies and advice and in parallel will do our utmost to continue the Company’s
operations in the best and safest way possible without jeopardising the health of our people.
Based on a preliminary assessment, the Covid-19 may impact the cash flows of certain obligors of the Company and
their ability to meet the build-up of the guarantee fees and/or service coupon/profit payments in 2020 based on their
respective financial guarantee contracts on a timely basis. In addition, there could be potential requests by obligors for
temporary exemptions in meeting the covenants in the financial guarantee contracts such as deferment in building up of
the coupon, principal and/or guarantee fees build-up. This may lead to deterioration in the obligors’ credit ratings and
hence, an increase in premium liabilities in 2020. At this stage, the impact on the Company’s businesses and results is
limited. The Company is closely monitoring the developing situation and the potential impact of the spread of Covid-19 on
its operations.

Danajamin Nasional Berhad
Annual Report 2019

127

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2019

35

REGULATORY CAPITAL REQUIREMENT
The Risk-Based Capital (“RBC”) Framework as prescribed by Bank Negara Malaysia (“BNM”) came into effect on 1 January
2015. Under the prescribed RBC Framework, the Company needs to maintain a capital adequacy level that commensurate
with the risk profiles. The Company is required to maintain a minimum Capital Adequacy Ratio (“CAR”) of 130%. The
Company has been in compliance with the said requirement.
The capital structure of the Company as at 31 December 2019, as prescribed under the RBC Framework is shown below:

Tier 1 Capital
Paid-up share capital
Retained earnings

Tier 2 Capital
Contingency reserve
Available-for-sale fair value reserve
Subordinated Sukuk
Other Tier 2 capital instruments

Total capital available

36

2019
RM’000

2018
RM’000

1,000,000
751,114

1,000,000
761,872

1,751,114

1,761,872

19,106
32,597
500,000
–

23,092
7,829
500,000
24,717

551,703

555,638

2,302,817

2,317,510

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT (“ERM”) FRAMEWORK
The Risk Management framework is to ensure that the Company operates within the risk appetite set by the Board,
and to ensure that managing risk becomes an integral part of the Company’s risk culture. The Risk Management Function
spearheads the implementation of the Risk Management framework for the Company with input from the respective
divisions.
(a)

Capital Management Framework
The Company is governed under the RBC Framework as prescribed by BNM effective 1 January 2015. The Company’s
capital management policy is to maintain a strong capital position with sufficient buffer to meet its guaranteed
obligations and regulatory requirements through the Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process developed
according to industry practices. The Company is also governed by the capital requirements as measured by the
local rating agencies to maintain its “AAA(fg)” rating, and works closely with the local rating agencies on the capital
requirements to ensure that the rating is maintained.

128

Danajamin Nasional Berhad
Annual Report 2019

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2019

36

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT (“ERM”) FRAMEWORK (CONTINUED)
(b)

Risk and Compliance Governance Frameworks
The Board Risk Committee provides the oversight on the risk and compliance management functions and practices
of the Company to ensure these are functioning effectively. In managing the Company’s risk and compliance
management frameworks, the following Management Committees comprising the CEO and key members of the
Management team have been instituted:
•
•
•
•

Management Committee (“MC”)
Information Technology Steering Committee (“ITSC”)
Management Underwriting Committee (“MUC”)
Management Risk Committee (“MRC”)

The MC is responsible for providing leadership, direction and strategic oversight with regard to all matters of the
Company. The ITSC is responsible for matters relating to information technology covering all areas ranging from
system requirements, resources and security. The MRC is responsible to oversee all risk management functions and
practices of the Company. The MC and ITSC report to the Board of Directors while MUC and MRC report directly
to the BUC and BRC respectively. The MUC oversees the credit risk aspects by evaluating the risk profile of all
underwriting proposals and ensuring rewards commensurate with any risk taken.
(c)

Regulatory Framework
The Company is governed by the FSA as well as guidelines from BNM. All the Company’s risk related policies are
concurred by the BRC and approved by the Board.

(d)

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the potential loss arising from claims on the financial guarantee insurance provided by the Company
resulting from the defaults by obligors or counterparties in meeting their contractual obligations on a timely basis.
Credit risk arises not only from obligors but also from investments in private debt securities undertaken by the
Company. In mitigating this credit risk, the Company has instituted a set of underwriting and investment policies
governing the underwriting and investment criteria, a robust credit evaluation and approval process.
The credit risk objectives of the Company are set by the Board, and are implemented and monitored within a structured
approval process, including adherence to credit policies, maximum group exposure limits, maximum industry limits
and portfolio monitoring.
The credit risk management framework exists to provide a structured and disciplined process to support these
objectives. The integrity of the credit risk function is maintained by the independence of the credit chain and is
supported by comprehensive risk analysis and monitoring process.

(e)

Operational risk
The Company manages operational risk via the establishment and implementation of the operational risk framework
approved by the BRC. On a continuous basis, ERM and Compliance Division monitor operational risks via risk and
controls self-assessment reviews, operational risk register reviews and other ad-hoc reviews, in alignment with BNM’s
Guidelines on Operational Risk.
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INSURANCE RISK
Sensitivity analysis
Sensitivity analysis to the best estimate URR by the parameters as at 31 December 2019 are computed based on the
following key assumptions:

Change in assumptions

Impact on
gross URR
RM’000

Impact on
gross
premium
liabilities*
RM’000

(40,000)
63,900
(14,000)
19,400

(27,700)
–
(27,800)
42,200

Impact on
net
Impact on
premium
profit
Impact on
liabilities* before tax*
equity#
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000

31 December 2019
Improve in credit rating by 1 grade
Worsen in credit rating by 1 grade
Increase in recovery rate by 5%
Decrease in recovery rate by 5%

(30,600)
–
(27,400)
40,900

(30,600)
–
(27,400)
40,900

(23,256)
–
(20,824)
31,084

31 December 2018
Improve in credit rating by 1 grade
Worsen in credit rating by 1 grade
Increase in recovery rate by 5%
Decrease in recovery rate by 5%

(63,800)
76,300
(29,000)
29,200

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

*

There is an impact on the gross premium liabilities, net premium liabilities and profit before tax as the aggregate
gross URR as at 31 December 2019 of RM378.4 million is higher than the gross UPR of RM350.7 million
(2018: RM425.9 million).

#

The impact on the equity is net of tax.
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FINANCIAL RISKS
Financial risk management objectives and policies
The financial risks which the Company is exposed to are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Company carries
out its financial risk management through internal control procedures, standard operating procedures, investment
strategy and adherence to all rules and regulations as stipulated by the guidelines issued by BNM.
(a)

Credit risk
Credit exposure
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets.
Credit exposure by credit rating
The table below provides information regarding the credit risk exposure of the Company by classifying assets
according to the Company’s credit ratings of counterparties.

31 December 2019
Available-for-sale securities:
Malaysian Government Securities
Government Investment Issues
Corporate debt securities
Deposits and placements with licensed banks
Insurance receivables
Other assets *
Cash and cash equivalents

Neither
past-due nor
impaired
RM’000

Impaired
RM’000

Total
RM’000

30,784
122,067
690,494
1,611,096
300,776
1,789
2,311

–
–
–
–
(500)
–
–

30,784
122,067
690,494
1,611,096
300,276
1,789
2,311

2,759,317

(500)

2,758,817

31 December 2018
Available-for-sale securities:
Malaysian Government Securities
Government Investment Issues
Corporate debt securities
Deposits and placements with licensed banks
Insurance receivables
Other assets *
Cash and cash equivalents

*

Exclude prepayments

30,308
368,263
629,118
1,316,367
366,400
1,943
2,173

–
–
–
–
–
–
–

30,308
368,263
629,118
1,316,367
366,400
1,943
2,173

2,714,572

–

2,714,572
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FINANCIAL RISKS (CONTINUED)
(a)

Credit risk (continued)
Credit exposure by credit rating (continued)
The table below provides information regarding the credit exposure of the Company by classifying assets according to
the latest available Rating Agency of Malaysia’s (“RAM”) credit ratings of counterparties. AAA is the highest possible
rating.
Neither past-due nor impaired
Weighted
average
%

Government
A2 guaranteed
RM’000
RM’000

AAA
RM’000

AA1
RM’000

AA2
RM’000

AA3
RM’000

A1
RM’000

Unrated
RM’000

Impaired
RM’000

Total
RM’000

4.23

–

–

–

–

–

–

30,784

–

–

30,784

4.71
4.79

–
36,344

–
67,453

–
208,036

–
–

–
170,275

–
–

122,067
208,386

–
–

– 122,067
– 690,494

3.98

437,238
300,276
–
348
–

–
–
–
–
–

652,067
–
–
601
–

231,536
–
–
1,362
–

290,255
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–

–
–
1,789
–
–

– 1,611,096
500 300,776
–
1,789
–
2,311
(500)
(500)

774,206

67,453

860,704

232,898

460,530

–

361,237

1,789

– 2,758,817

31 December 2019
Available-for-sale securities:
Malaysian Government
Securities
Government Investment
Issues
Corporate debt securities
Deposits and placements
with licensed banks
Insurance receivables
Other assets *
Cash and cash equivalents
Allowance for impairment

*

Exclude prepayments
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FINANCIAL RISKS (CONTINUED)
(a)

Credit risk (continued)
Credit exposure by credit rating (continued)
Neither past-due nor impaired
Weighted
average
%

Government
A2 guaranteed
RM’000
RM’000

AAA
RM’000

AA1
RM’000

AA2
RM’000

AA3
RM’000

A1
RM’000

Unrated
RM’000

Total
RM’000

–

–

–

–

–

–

30,308

–

30,308

4.48
–
4.59 431,286

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

368,263
197,832

–
–

368,263
629,118

4.24 162,885
366,400
–
715

–
–
–
–

324,900
–
–
245

788,651
–
–
1,213

36,820
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

3,111 1,316,367
– 366,400
1,943
1,943
–
2,173

961,286

–

325,145

789,864

36,820

–

596,403

5,054 2,714,572

31 December 2018
Available-for-sale securities:
Malaysian Government
Securities
Government Investment
Issues
Corporate debt securities
Deposits and placements
with licensed banks
Insurance receivables
Other assets *
Cash and cash equivalents

*

Exclude prepayments

4.23
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FINANCIAL RISKS (CONTINUED)
(a)

Credit risk (continued)
Collateral
The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty.
Guidelines are implemented regarding the acceptability of types of collateral and the valuation parameters. Credit
risk is also mitigated by entering into collateral agreements. Management monitors the market value of the collateral,
requests additional collateral when needed and performs impairment valuation, when applicable.
Market value
Nature of collateral

Commercial land
Industrial land
Oil palm plantation/agricultural land
Commercial property
Plant and machinery
Quoted shares
Special assets

(b)

2019
RM’000

2018
RM’000

1,495,311
126,332
686,400
1,056,883
–
413,671
–

1,344,011
270,470
686,400
1,098,609
1,100,000
612,738
612,304

3,778,597

5,724,532

Impaired financial assets
At 31 December 2019, based on individual and collective assessment of receivables, there are impaired receivables
of RM500,000 (2018: Nil). No collateral is held as security for any past due or impaired assets. A reconciliation of the
allowance for impairment losses for insurance receivables is as follows:
2019
RM’000

2018
RM’000

At 1 January
Charge for the year:
- Insurance receivables

–

–

500

–

At 31 December

500

–
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FINANCIAL RISKS (CONTINUED)
(c)

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk arises when the Company does not have the availability of funds to meet its obligations as and when
they fall due.
The Company’s funds shall be managed and invested with prudence. The investments chosen shall always take
into consideration the liquidity requirements of the Company to meet any potential claim liabilities at all times.
The Company’s portfolio of investments shall always conform to the limits and regulations as may be determined by
BNM for financial guarantee insurers from time to time.
Maturity profiles
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the financial assets and financial liabilities of the Company based
on remaining contractual obligations, including interest/profit payable and receivable. Reinsurance assets and
premium liabilities have been excluded from the analysis as they are not contractual obligations.
Carrying
value
RM’000
31 December 2019
Available-for-sale securities:
Malaysian Government
Securities
Government Investment
Issues
Corporate debt securities
Deposits and placements
with licensed banks
Insurance receivables
Other assets *
Cash and cash equivalents

Claim liabilities
Lease liabilities
Insurance payables
Other liabilities
Subordinated Sukuk

*

Exclude prepayments

Up to a > 1 year to > 3 years to
year
3 years
5 years
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000

> 5 years
RM’000

Total
RM’000

30,784

1,112

11,808

20,348

–

33,268

122,067
690,494

5,079
41,811

10,162
164,076

10,162
393,685

158,597
253,966

184,000
853,538

1,611,096
300,276
1,789
2,311

1,643,196
51,666
1,789
2,311

–
78,552
–
–

–
62,062
–
–

–
107,996
–
–

1,643,196
300,276
1,789
2,311

2,758,817

1,746,964

264,598

486,257

520,559

3,018,378

80,443
2,811
3,376
10,403
505,655

80,443
2,001
1,593
10,403
24,000

–
965
1,783
–
547,934

–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–

80,443
2,966
3,376
10,403
571,934

602,688

118,440

550,682

–

–

669,122
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FINANCIAL RISKS (CONTINUED)
(c)

Liquidity risk (continued)
Carrying
value
RM’000
31 December 2018
Available-for-sale securities:
Malaysian Government
Securities
Government Investment
Issues
Corporate debt securities
Deposits and placements
with licensed banks
Insurance receivables
Other assets *
Cash and cash equivalents

Insurance payables
Other liabilities
Subordinated Sukuk

*

Exclude prepayments

Up to a > 1 year to > 3 years to
year
3 years
5 years
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000

> 5 years
RM’000

Total
RM’000

30,308

1,112

12,224

21,046

–

34,382

368,263
629,118

15,879
83,010

90,720
131,028

115,179
350,537

308,542
240,630

530,320
805,205

1,316,367
366,400
1,943
2,173

1,181,859
69,414
1,943
2,173

161,813
95,922
–
–

–
65,199
–
–

–
135,865
–
–

1,343,672
366,400
1,943
2,173

2,714,572

1,355,390

491,707

551,961

685,037

3,084,095

10,062
10,877
505,589

4,561
10,877
23,934

5,074
–
48,000

427
–
523,934

–
–
–

10,062
10,877
595,868

526,528

39,372

53,074

524,361

–

616,807
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FINANCIAL RISKS (CONTINUED)
(d)

Market risk
(i)

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the potential for financial loss arising from movement in interest rates.
Investment decisions shall always take into consideration the appropriate and prevailing risk in the marketplace.
The focus on maximising returns shall always be bounded by a tempered approach to risk that is acceptable for
the Company’s funds. There shall be no over concentration of investments in single counterparties, and there
shall be appropriate investment diversification to mitigate these risks.
The following tables provide the sensitivity analysis, showing the impact on the profit after tax and equity given
the change in variables.
Impact
on profit
after tax
RM’000

Impact on equity
Up to > 1 year to > 3 years to
a year
3 years
5 years
> 5 years
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000

Total
RM’000

31 December 2019
Change in variable
+25 basis points
-25 basis points
+50 basis points
-50 basis points

–
–
–
–

(10)
14
(21)
25

(446)
462
(896)
921

(2,535)
2,582
(5,054)
5,182

(5,866)
6,081
(11,544)
12,365

(8,857)
9,139
(17,515)
18,493

–
–
–
–

(38)
43
(79)
84

(773)
781
(1,542)
1,566

(3,967)
4,018
(7,893)
8,078

(9,520)
9,847
(18,732)
20,026

(14,298)
14,689
(28,246)
29,754

31 December 2018
Change in variable
+25 basis points
-25 basis points
+50 basis points
-50 basis points
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FINANCIAL RISKS (CONTINUED)
(d)

Market risk (continued)
(ii)

Foreign currency risk
The Company is currently not exposed to any currency risk as all transactions were transacted in Ringgit Malaysia
denominated currency.

(iii)

Price risk
The Company is currently not exposed to any equity and properties, and hence not affected by price risk.

(e)

Insurance risk
Insurance risk arises when the accumulated guarantee premiums charged are insufficient to cover the cost of claims
arising from the issuer’s underwritten commitment .
In minimising the insurance risk, the Company’s portfolio is spread over a diversified mix of businesses, and the
Company observes specific guidelines governing the prudential limits on exposure to a single company/group and
to an industry or business sector. Besides, the Company adopts a risk-based pricing model developed according
to the principles of its premium pricing policy, ensuring that the premium fee determined is adequate to cover the
underlying risk costs. Insurance risk is managed by the Risk Management function together with other divisions,
primarily the Client Coverage Division which is in charge of the initial underwriting process and the Client Solutions
Division that undertakes the continuous surveillance process on all obligors.

(f)

Operational risk
Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people, systems or from
external events. The risk is managed through established operational risk management processes, proper monitoring
and reporting of the business units’ adherence to established risk policies, procedures and limits by independent
control and support units, and oversight provided by the Management and the Board.
The operational risk management processes encompass appropriate documentation of processes and procedures
within the framework of system of internal controls, regular disaster recovery and business continuity planning and
simulations, self-assessment of risk and controls and internal audit.
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INSURANCE FUNDS
The Company’s activities are organised by funds and segregated into Shareholders’ Fund and Insurance Fund in
accordance with the FSA.
The Company’s statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income have been further analysed by
Shareholders’ Fund and Insurance Fund.
Statement of Financial Position
Shareholders’ Fund
2019
2018
RM’000
RM’000

Insurance Fund
2019
2018
RM’000
RM’000

Total
2019
2018
RM’000
RM’000

ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Right-of-use assets
Available-for-sale securities
Malaysian Government Securities
Government Investment Issues
Corporate debt securities
Deposits and placements with licensed banks
Insurance receivables
Reinsurance assets
Tax recoverable
Other assets
Cash and cash equivalents

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
1,680
–
1,269
–
2,759
–
843,345
–
30,784
–
122,067
–
690,494
– 1,611,096
–
300,276
–
3,775
–
23,773
–
2,479
–
2,311

2,833
1,680
1,221
1,269
–
2,759
1,027,689
843,345
30,308
30,784
368,263
122,067
629,118
690,494
1,316,367 1,611,096
366,400
300,276
16,039
3,775
11,985
23,773
2,880
2,479
2,173
2,311

2,833
1,221
–
1,027,689
30,308
368,263
629,118
1,316,367
366,400
16,039
11,985
2,880
2,173

TOTAL ASSETS

–

– 2,792,763

2,747,587 2,792,763

2,747,587

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Premium liabilities
Claim liabilities
Lease liabilities
Insurance payables
Other liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Subordinated Sukuk
Amount due (from)/to Shareholders’/
Insurance funds

378,388
80,443
2,811
3,376
10,403
8,870
–

425,946
–
–
10,062
12,310
887
–

378,388
80,443
2,811
3,376
10,403
8,870
505,655

425,946
–
–
10,062
12,310
887
505,589

(2,275,875) (2,290,553) 2,275,875

2,290,553

–

–

TOTAL LIABILITIES

(1,770,220) (1,784,964) 2,760,166

2,739,758

989,946

954,794

–
–
–
–
–
–
505,655

–
–
–
–
–
–
505,589

Share capital
Retained earnings
Contingency reserve
Available-for-sale fair value reserve

1,000,000
751,114
19,106
–

1,000,000
761,872
23,092
–

–
–
–
32,597

– 1,000,000
–
751,114
–
19,106
7,829
32,597

1,000,000
761,872
23,092
7,829

TOTAL EQUITY

1,770,220

1,784,964

32,597

7,829 1,802,817

1,792,793

– 2,792,763

2,747,587 2,792,763

2,747,587

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

–
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INSURANCE FUNDS (CONTINUED)
Statement of Comprehensive Income
Shareholders’ Fund
2019
2018
RM’000
RM’000

Insurance Fund
2019
2018
RM’000
RM’000

Total
2019
2018
RM’000
RM’000

Gross earned premiums
Premiums ceded to reinsurance

–
–

–
–

52,835
(10,497)

89,971
(8,193)

52,835
(10,497)

89,971
(8,193)

Net earned premiums
Investment income
Realised gains
Other operating income

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

42,338
100,666
8,835
9,091

81,778
94,525
1,851
6,452

42,338
100,666
8,835
9,091

81,778
94,525
1,851
6,452

–

–

160,930

184,606

160,930

184,606

–

–

(80,443)

–

(80,443)

–

Change in gross/net claims liabilities
Management expenses
Finance cost – Sukuk profit

(3,194)
(24,000)

(3,364)
(24,000)

(40,147)
(197)

(39,623)
–

(43,341)
(24,197)

(42,987)
(24,000)

Profit before taxation
Taxation

(27,194)
–

(27,364)
–

40,143
(9,793)

144,983
1,585

12,949
(9,793)

117,619
1,585

Net (loss)/profit for the financial year

(27,194)

(27,364)

30,350

146,568

3,156

119,204

Other comprehensive income/(loss):
Items that may be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss:
Available-for-sale fair value reserve:
Net gain arising during the financial year
Net gain transfer to profit or loss upon disposal
Tax effect thereon

–
–
–

–
–
–

41,511
(8,922)
(7,821)

8,827
(1,535)
(2,472)

41,511
(8,922)
(7,821)

8,827
(1,535)
(2,472)

Other comprehensive income for the
financial year, net of tax

–

–

24,768

4,820

24,768

4,820

(27,194)

(27,364)

55,118

151,388

27,924

124,024

41,834
–
(41,834)

35,532
–
(35,532)

3,922
(1,649)
(2,135)

480
(1,844)
–

45,756
(1,649)
(43,969)

36,012
(1,844)
(35,532)

138
2,173
2,311

(1,364)
3,537
2,173

138
2,173
2,311

(1,364)
3,537
2,173

Total comprehensive (loss)/income
for the financial year
Information on Cash Flows by Funds
Cash flows from:
Operating activities
Investing activities
Financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
At beginning of the financial year
At end of the financial year

–
–
–

–
–
–
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ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURE UNDER AMENDMENTS TO MFRS 4 INSURANCE CONTRACTS
The Company’s business activities are predominantly insurance as the liabilities connected with the Company’s insurance
businesses made up of more than 90% of the Company’s total liabilities. Hence, the Company qualifies for the temporary
exemption from applying MFRS 9 Financial Instruments and will defer and adopt MFRS 9 together with MFRS 17 Insurance
Contracts for the financial year beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
The following additional disclosures, required by Amendments to MFRS 4 for entity qualified and elected the temporary
exemption from applying MFRS 9, present the Company’s financial assets by their contractual cash flows characteristics,
which indicate if they are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding (“SPPI”):

As at 31 December 2019
Fair value at end of reporting date
Fair value changes during the financial year
Gross carrying amounts under MFRS 139 by credit risk rating grades
as defined in MFRS 7

Financial assets with
SPPI cash flows
(RM’000)

All other financial
assets
(RM’000)

2,458,541

–

32,589

–

2,458,541

–

–
–

–
–

Financial assets defined in MFRS 9 B5.5.22, to separately disclose the
following financial assets that do not have low credit risk:
•
•

Fair value
Gross carrying amount

(a)

Insurance receivables and reinsurance assets have been excluded from the above assessment as they are under the
scope of MFRS 17 ‘Insurance Contracts’.

(b)

Tax recoverable has been excluded from the above assessment as it is under the scope of MFRS 112 ‘Income Taxes’.

(c)

Other than the financial assets included in the table above and assets that are within the scope of MFRS 17 ‘Insurance
Contracts’ and MFRS 112 ‘Income Taxes’, all other assets in the statement of financial position are non-financial
assets.
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ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURE
(CONTINUED)

UNDER

AMENDMENTS

TO

MFRS

4

INSURANCE

CONTRACTS

Financial assets with SPPI cash flows

AAA
RM’000

AA1
RM’000

AA2
RM’000

AA3
RM’000

A1
RM’000

A2
RM’000

Government
guaranteed
RM’000

Unrated
RM’000

Total
RM’000

–

–

–

–

–

–

30,784

–

30,784

–

–

–

–

–

–

122,067

–

122,067

36,344

67,453

208,036

–

170,275

–

208,386

–

690,494

437,238
–

–
–

652,067
–

231,536
–

290,255
–

–
–

–
–

–
1,789

1,611,096
1,789

348

–

601

1,362

–

–

–

–

2,311

473,930

67,453

860,704

232,898

460,530

–

361,237

1,789

2,458,541

31 December 2019
Available-for-sale
securities:
Malaysian
Government
Securities
Government
Investment Issues
Corporate debt
securities
Deposits and
placements with
licensed banks
Other assets *
Cash and cash
equivalents

*

Exclude prepayments

All financial assets with SPPI cash flows of the Company as at 31 December 2019 have low credit risk.
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Our 10-Year Journey
Established with a critical role to restore confidence in Malaysia’s financial market, Danajamin was
assigned the specific task to stimulate and further develop the Malaysian bond/Sukuk market in
order to restart sustainable economic growth.
The strategy was to enhance the credit worthiness of deserving companies by providing easier
and lower-cost access to the Malaysian bond market and taking on the responsibility of
being Malaysia’s first and only financial guarantee insurer.
The market response to the establishment of Danajamin was positive and
almost immediately demonstrated soon after our establishment by the seven
guarantee applications received from a variety of sectors such as the oil
and gas, property and construction, and the financial services sectors worth
RM1.7 billion.
We went on to play a major financial role in numerous deals after that
by facilitating the completion, enhancement and fulfilment of projects
which have since proven their economic value.
The confidence in the guarantees provided by Danajamin allowed
businesses to embark on significant and meaningful projects that in turn,
allowed them to grow while creating value for the nation’s economy.
Our guarantees were critical for some and a catalyst for others as a
much-needed boost that helped to revive the economy and begin a
fresh cycle of growth.

While our journey has not been easy, the results we achieved are the milestones of our performance
and represent a decade of success.
Our total guaranteed amount issued at the end of 2019 stood at a cumulative RM10.5
billion. Our client base has since expanded to 42 clients from a wide range of sectors
– from agriculture, oil & gas, property development, real estate and infrastructure to
education, among others.
Through risk-sharing participation with partner banks, Danajamin’s total market
impact stood at a cumulative RM22.7 billion.
Despite the challenges, our journey has been a fulfilling one and
the partnerships that we forged have benefitted corporations and
contributed to their success.
We are also proud to acknowledge that the trust and confidence
we nurtured had a role in accelerating Malaysia’s economic
growth and contributed in no small way to the aspirations of
the nation.
The opportunities that we continue to develop today serve
as springboards for greater benefits for the economy and
we will remain steadfast to our mandate and contribute
to the nation.
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EcoWorld

Led by respected property industry players, EcoWorld Development Group
Berhad (“EcoWorld Malaysia”) was established in 2013.
EcoWorld Malaysia has over 8,000
acres of landbank spread over the
Klang Valley, Iskandar Malaysia and
Penang, with property sales of RM19.8
billion achieved as at 15 June 2020.
Even though we are fortunate to
have had our growth funded by
our panel banks, rapid expansion
required us to source for alternative
funding options for Eco Botanic Sdn
Bhd to fund Eco Botanic, our 325
acres mixed-township development
located in Iskandar Puteri.
Despite
having
strong
sales
since its very first launch, as a
relatively
new
company,
Eco
Botanic Sdn Bhd did not have
the track record to obtain a
rating. As such, we explored
working with Danajamin in 2018
to obtain a guarantee for the
issuance of
unrated mediumterm notes (“MTN”) by Eco
Botanic Sdn Bhd, which opened access to a
wider pool of investors. To-date, with the combined support
of Danajamin, our panel bankers and shareholders,
Eco Botanic has achieved more than RM1.9 billion sales with
approximately 2,000 properties sold.
The decision to work with Danajamin was timely as the
regulation on unrated bonds had just been relaxed and
unrated bonds became tradeable and transferable, making
this instrument more attractive to investors.
The bond market also enabled fixed rate borrowing as a
good counter-balance against the largely floating rate loans
from banks.
The successful issuance of the RM120 million unrated
Danajamin Guaranteed MTN by Eco Botanic Sdn Bhd was

a significant achievement as it
clearly demonstrated the demand
for unrated bonds which further
diversified the market.
We were guided through the
entire issuance process together
with the Principal Adviser. With
Danajamin’s
financial
guarantee
providing added confidence to
the potential investors, this greatly
increased the opportunities for
investors to subscribe to it.
Further, the assistance provided
by Danajamin on the pricing of
the bond enabled us to obtain
funding at an acceptable all-in-cost,
whilst still being able to offer
a competitive coupon rate which
would be attractive to the bond
investors to ensure full subscription.
As a young property developer, the
Danajamin Guaranteed MTN certainly
helped diversify our funding pool to spur the growth of our
company.
The backing assisted us to part-finance the development
costs and working capital requirements for Eco Botanic.
The relationship that was built throughout the collaboration
also allowed the teams to work very well together in ensuring
timely issuance of the bonds.
Today, Eco Botanic is a vibrant township with excellent
infrastructure and lifestyle amenities all in place. Apart from
having provided quality homes and business premises for many
of our customers in Iskandar Malaysia, the strong economic
multiplier effect of our property development activities has
also generated a positive impact on many other subsectors of
the economy.
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GreatRealty
Great Realty Sdn Bhd was set up by Belleview Sdn Bhd as a wholly-owned
special purpose vehicle to redevelop an abandoned commercial property
project on prime land in the heart of Alor Setar.
What was once the longest abandoned project in
the state, which six other developers had failed to revive,
is today Aman Central mall; the largest, most prestigious
shopping mall in Kedah which attracts over a million shoppers
monthly.

Danajamin’s guarantee has definitely elevated the status of
Great Realty as a part of Belleview Group’s profile and has
enabled the sourcing of large-scale funding for assets that
require a longer repayment period and to undertake larger
projects.

With a total development cost of RM450 million, the lack of
shopping mall data in Kedah kept it off the radar of major
financiers who were skeptical about the large project size and
the cashflow ability to meet repayment.

Aman Central is a game changer project in Kedah and one of
the most successful rescue projects in Malaysia, made possible
by Danajamin’s successful fund-raising guarantee.

As it was increasingly unlikely for the banks to finance the
project, it was absolutely critical for Great Realty to tap into
the capital market to raise funding through Sukuk issuance.
Danajamin provided guidance on how to structure mid and
long-term financing models that would enable the project
cashflow to withstand a longer-term repayment profile.
With
Danajamin’s
AAA
ratings by RAM Ratings
and
Malaysian
Rating
Corporation,
the
Bond
Placement was attractive and
we enjoyed good pricing on
the coupon rate.
Now in the 7th year, our
journey with Danajamin has
always been filled with trust
and we are grateful for all
the professional advice and
guidance.

It is now recognised as a successful tourist and shopping
destination for Kedah, which has helped to create thousands
of jobs for Kedahans.
As we explore new project undertakings, we will continue our
journey with Danajamin to tap the capital market.
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Kapasi

Property developer, Syarikat Kapasi Sdn Bhd (“Kapasi”) is a subsidiary of Asian
Pac Holdings Berhad (“APHB”) that was acquired in the late 1990’s for its 23.5
acres of land.
The completion of the acquisition
of Kapasi unfortunately coincided
with the Asian Financial Crisis,
which saw APHB adversely
affected in both financial and
business aspects thus inevitably
saw the group voluntarily
seeking assistance under the
Corporate Debt Restructuring
(“CDR”) scheme. In undergoing
this exercise, the group was
able to complete repayment
of all its debts without any
shavings in 2007.
During this period, the
group continued with its
property
development
operations and from the
23.5 acres, Kapasi first
developed the KK Times
Square 1 project comprising
shops/offices on approximately
8.5 acres which was funded
internally. On completion, Kapasi
then
ventured
into
mall
ownership and management
in 2011 through the KK Times
Square 2 development, which
comprises The Loft Residence and
Imago Mall (“Imago”).
However, with the CDR stigma, most financial institutions
were reluctant to extend credit lines to the group
notwithstanding the successful development and sales of
most of its projects in Kuala Lumpur and Kota Kinabalu during
the period, which were mainly self-funded.
As the development of KK Times Square 2 required
relatively large financing due to the size of the development,
approximately RM900 million in GDV, APHB was introduced

to the bond/Sukuk market as
an alternative to the traditional
syndication route as the rates
and tenure were competitive.
Danajamin assisted us by
providing guidance throughout
the entire process, from
origination to implementation.
As a customer, this was a
memorable journey as it was
our first time tapping into the
debt capital market to raise the
medium-term notes (“MTN”),
within a very short time frame.
Many were sceptical with our
ability to complete the KK
Times Square 2 project, but
the funding assisted APHB to
complete the project and the
Imago opened with more than
90% tenancy in 2015.
Through the success of
Imago, Kapasi has become
one of the top mall owners
and managers in the country,
having transformed the retail
environment in Kota Kinabalu whilst
simultaneously creating jobs that have benefited over 95 per
cent of locals.
The mall has also allowed us to create initiatives that have
contributed to the environmental, economic and social
aspects of the local community. As part of our initiative to drive
local entrepreneurship, we continue to actively encourage the
inclusion of local-based retailers and provide a platform for
them to move up in the retail business.
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LBS
LBS dates back to 1960s when Dato’ Seri Lim Bock Seng - a young and
aggressive man with vision - founded the original construction business in
Petaling Jaya.
After a decade of rapid
growth, LBS set its sights
higher and ventured into the
property development sector
in 1992 where it started its
first project, the Jelapang
Maju Light Industrial Park in
Ipoh, Perak. After taking over
the baton from his father, Tan
Sri Lim Hock San has grown
and developed LBS into one
of the major players in property
development in Malaysia. LBS
thrived and was listed on the
Main Board of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad in 2002 with
business expanded to Zhuhai,
the People’s Republic of China.
In our vision to house
the nation, we maintain
our strategy of building
affordable housing that caters
to market demand, based
on the three core pillars
of Affordability, Connectivity
and
Community.
This
enables LBS to establish
strong presence and continues to
grow in the mass market segment,
but we required additional financing
to complete the projects. This is
where we looked into the emerging
Sukuk market.

As the guarantee scheme was still new
in the market then, we collaborated
with Danajamin that was established
in 2009 to tap into the capital market
to support our projects. With access
to large liquidity pool of the Malaysian
Islamic capital market, we could diversify
our source of funding, which lowered
the cost of financing as compared to
conventional financing programmes.
We were fortunate to have Danajamin
team’s guidance until the first successful
issuance of Danajamin Guaranteed
Sukuk in July 2010. As a result, LBS
managed to boost its growth capacity
with the issuance of RM135 million
Islamic Commercial Papers/Islamic
Medium-term
Notes
Programme
(“Sukuk Programme”) in 2019 and
subsequently, we achieved record high
sales of RM1.63 billion.
The successful fund-raising exercise
greatly bolstered LBS’ ability to complete
our projects in an efficient and
timely manner, which in turn
benefitted many buyers as they
were able to get vacant possession
of their homes promptly. This is
in line with our commitment to
enhance community living by
building and inspiring delightful
spaces.
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Masteel

Founded in 1971, Malaysia Steel Works (KL) Bhd (“Masteel”) is a pioneer
in the use of innovative technology to produce construction steel to
reduce Malaysia’s reliance on imported steel for the construction and
infrastructure sector.
With a steel production capacity of 750,000 million tonnes
per year, its principal activities are manufacturing and
marketing steel bars and prime steel billets for the domestic
and export market.
Despite generating hundreds of millions of profits in good
years, the capital intensive, cyclical nature of the industry
occasionally results in mismatch between its banks’ repayment
program and the Company’s cashflow.
By having access to Danajamin’s guaranteed Sukuk bonds, it
has improved our abilities to match our cashflow against our
debt repayments and to diversify a portion of our long-term
debts from floating-rates to fixed-rates in order to minimise
the Company’s interest rate risks.
Throughout our maiden foray, Danajamin provided
tremendous guidance and helped in the book-building
process while introducing Masteel to many blue chip
investors.
Danajamin has also guided and advised us on how to structure
the Sukuk and Kafalah Guarantee as well as organise and
provide the bulk of the guarantee for the issuance of Sukuk
instruments.
The proceeds raised by the Sukuk paper were primarily used
to fund the capital expenditure of our new steel melting
technology and retire our term loans.
The new steel melting technology has successfully reduced
our cost of production, which allowed us to remain
competitive in the industry.
Our journey with Danajamin has been overwhelmingly
positive, professional, and interactive. With the advantages of
the new steel-making technology, our company will continue
to leverage on this success to grow our market share and
profitability in the years ahead.
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Mydin
From a humble beginning as a wooden shop in Kota Bharu, Kelantan in 1957,
MYDIN has grown steadily over the years.
We currently operate 68 outlets nationwide which includes
hypermarkets, emporium, supermarkets, bazaar, franchise,
convenience shop and premium supermarkets. MYDIN has
recorded a sustainable sales turnover of RM2.5 billion in 2018
and 2019 while looking forward for exponential growth of
RM2.8 billion in 2020.
Following the establishment of our first hypermarket in USJ1
Subang Jaya in 2006, MYDIN’s rapid expansion was primarily
driven by our market insights and industry experience, as well as
the favorite store for families and bulk purchasers.
The expansion transformation from traditional store to
hypermarket and mall concept requires large capital. Gaining
trusts and meeting the scores set by the local banks posed a
challenge for MYDIN in securing loans and gain access to
financing facilities.
These have driven us to tap into the bond/
Sukuk market as it offers the financial
flexibility that complements MYDIN’s
long-term strategic business plan.
Danajamin was our first venture into
the capital market, where the
requirements and compliance are
broader than normal bank financing.
Over the years, it has continually and
consistently guided us in terms of
monitoring and maintaining the bond/
Sukuk.
The nine-year journey into the
capital market with Danajamin has
been very smooth and experience
worthy, with constant and diplomatic
communications from both sides.

MYDIN has since grown tremendously from our first fund raising
of RM350 million in 2011 to build 3 hypermarkets in Seremban,
Ulu Tiram and Johor Bharu.
We would not have been able to expand our hypermarket
business without the Sukuk financing and have since become
the largest Bumiputera owned wholesale and retail chain in
Malaysia with positive brand perceptions, which led to many
awards and achievements.
Today, MYDIN employs around 7,500 employees, some of
whom are persons with disabilities which has been MYDIN’s
sincere initiatives since the company’s establishment as a way of
giving back to the society.
MYDIN will be opening another two hypermarkets in Jengka,
Pahang and Tunjung, Kelantan in 2020/2021 as a continuity
business plan to increase its domestic retail market share.
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CORPORATE MILESTONES

29 JUNE
Issuance of the first Danajamin Guaranteed Bonds.
Issuer: Syarikat Kapasi Sdn Bhd

23 JULY
Issuance of the first Danajamin Guaranteed Sukuk.
Issuer: LBS Bina Sdn Bhd

2009

2010

2011

31 JULY

30 SEPTEMBER

Danajamin executes its first
guarantee for a structured
transaction.
Issuer: Mecuro Properties
Sdn Bhd

Danajamin signs strategic
collaboration agreement
with Credit Guarantee
and Investment Facility
to unlock the potential of
Corporate Bond market.

2012

2014

2013

2015

28 APRIL

13 MARCH

Danajamin guarantees its largest
issuance and fronting with
a AAA-rated bank – RM635
million.

Danajamin guarantees up to RM150 million of the
7-year RM250 million Unrated Medium Term Notes
Programmes (“Unrated Corporate Bond”). This is the
first Unrated Corporate Bond guaranteed by Danajamin.

Issuer: Perdana Petroleum
Berhad

Issuer: Eco Botanic Sdn Bhd

5 DECEMBER
Quill Retail Malls Sdn Bhd fully
redeemed its RM260 million FGI
facility. This marks Danajamin’s
7th full redemption to date.

Danajamin introduced an additional approach to
the Financial Guarantee Insurance facility where the
bonds/Sukuk are issued on a standalone basis and the
investors will have the option to decide on the extent of
protection required from Danajamin.

31 DECEMBER

DECEMBER

AUGUST

New product, Financial Guarantee Insurance For
Financing Facilities product approved by Bank Negara
for Pilot Phase, up to RM250 million.

Danajamin hits market impact of
RM15.2 billion.

2016

2017

2018

15 MAY

2 JUNE

1 APRIL

27 APRIL

29 AUGUST

30 JANUARY

Establishment of Danajamin.

Danajamin executes its first
co-guarantee transaction with
Maybank Islamic Berhad.

Danajamin hits
RM6 billion for
total guarantee
provided.

The first bonds guaranteed
by Danajamin were fully
redeemed.

Danajamin achieves two
“firsts” by applying a “dropoff” guarantee structure for
a “live” bond programme
which had been established
by the issuer in 2013

Danajamin
guarantees liquidity
support for a
structured transaction
in Malaysia that
securitises progress
billings of multiple
development
projects.

30 JUNE
Danajamin issues its
underwriting policy which
serves as a guideline
in evaluating applications for
financial guarantee insurance.

Issuer: Ranhill Capital Sdn Bhd
(Formerly known as Ranhill
Power Sdn Bhd)

17 JUNE
Danajamin executes its first
standalone & guaranteed
transaction.
Issuer: Ranhill Powertron II
Sdn Bhd

8 DECEMBER
Danajamin partners
Maybank and OCBC for its
first syndicated guarantee
transaction.
Issuer: Silver Sparrow Sdn Bhd

Issuer: 1 Warisan Sdn Bhd

28 AUGUST
Danajamin executes a
21-year programme
transaction – the longest
tenure to date.

Issuer: Northern Gateway
Infrastructure Sdn Bhd

6 OCTOBER

Issuer: West Coast
Expressway Sdn Bhd

Danajamin issues Tier-2 Subordinated
Sukuk amounting to RM500 million as part of
its Capital Management Plan.

8 DECEMBER

23 OCTOBER

Inaugural asset-backed
securitisation transaction
through a RM450 million
Sukuk Ijarah programme.
Issuer: Purple Boulevard
Berhad

Danajamin co-guarantees the issuance of RM639 million
Senior Sukuk Murabahah for the development of a new
teaching hospital and medical academic centre.
Issuer: TRIplc Medical Sdn Bhd

8 DECEMBER
Danajamin guarantees its first credit enhancement facility
to support the Islamic Medium Term Notes issued by a
property developer backed by progress billings of its first
affordable housing project.
Issuer: SkyWorld Capital Berhad

2019

Issuer: Exsim Development
Sdn Bhd

27 FEBRUARY
Danajamin marks its first
participation in ASEAN
Green Socially Responsible
Investment (“SRI”) Sukuk
Programme.
Issuer: Pasukhas Green Assets
Sdn Bhd

15 MAY
Danajamin celebrated its 10th year of
establishment with 38 issuances and a total
guarantee size of RM10.7 billion. The total
market impact of these deals, through risk
sharing collaboration with partner banks, stands
at RM21.2 billion.
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Growing together with the community through

Corporate
Social
Responsibility

Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) is an essential part of Danajamin’s ethos.
As we deliver our mandate to develop Malaysia’s corporate bond market, we seek
to impact the community around us through our CSR initiatives.
Danajamin is committed to improve the local community,
which is reflected in our CSR policy that focuses on improving
lives, living and livelihood for a stronger and inclusive
community. Our CSR initiatives are guided by Danajamin’s
four core values which are Passion, Care, Responsibility and
Clarity.
To achieve this, the Danajamin CSR Council – which operates
under the guidance of our Chief Executive Officer – was set
up in 2012 to empower a team of staff with the responsibility
of spearheading, formulating and executing Danajamin’s CSR
policy and programmes.
The Council ensures that our CSR policy is formulated in a
disciplined approach and programmes are implemented in a
strategic, sustainable manner that is aligned with Danajamin’s
culture.
Our initiatives under Education, forms the core of our CSR
programme which aims to improve access to education
and simultaneously complement the Malaysia’s Education
Blueprint 2013-2025. We believe that every child deserves
equal rights to quality education and life-changing
opportunities that will nurture their potential. This, in turn,
will cultivate a stronger and more sustainable society.

It is essential that values and work ethics must be nurtured at
the formative adolescent years. Therefore, the management
team at Danajamin has conceptualised a leadership
enrichment program that focuses on instilling core values,
leadership skills and work ethics among Malaysian youth.
Through this programme, our goal is to empower young
people from underserved communities with leadership
and soft skill sets by offering them access to high-impact
programmes. In comparison to conventional presentations
and internships, the format of this programme offers
opportunities for our staff to participate by offering handson coaching and mentoring. Danajamin saw the synergy
and alignment of purpose between the programme’s vision
to develop future leaders and its role to help deserving
Malaysian corporates access funding opportunities.
In addition to that, we also see Autism as a cause that is close
to our hearts. The drive behind our support for the Autism
community was inspired by our staff, who either had personal
experience or encounter with those under the spectrum. The
profound understanding on the importance to assist and
support these individuals from this community played an
important role in this initiative. Through Autism awareness,
we are able to foster a sense of community, inclusion, and
acceptance within our staff and the broader community.
To support our objectives in nurturing these communities,
we have carefully developed and cultivated two flagship CSR
programmes known as Danajamin100 and Danajamin Mighty
Run.
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GROWING TOGETHER WITH THE COMMUNITY THROUGH CSR

Building Leaders of Tomorrow
Shortlisted Form 4 students from PINTAR schools are inducted into the Danajamin100 programme and the selected students
will attend the following camps as part of the programme:

Recognising that youth is a major
component of the future of Malaysia,
Danajamin
Nasional
Berhad
has
appointed PINTAR Foundation, as the
project manager under PINTAR Service
Consultancy, for its flagship corporate
social
responsibility
programme,
Danajamin100 Leadership Programme
(“Danajamin100”) which was launched
in 2014.

A

Held at the Outward Bound School
in Lumut, Perak, it is designed to
test both their physical and mental
capacity, as well as hone their
teamwork skills.

D
The programme, run in partnership with PINTAR Foundation
focuses on youth development aimed at nurturing talented
secondary students within the underserved community to
nurture Malaysia’s future leaders. The holistic three-year
Danajamin100 programme maximises Form 4 students’
leadership abilities through a variety of well-designed
activities and training modules.

Danajamin100 leadership enhancement programme is
designed to develop future leaders, which is critical in
ensuring the sustainability of our nation’s development to a
developed country status.

OBS CAMP
(YEAR 1)

Since the inception of Danajamin100, four batches of
students have successfully completed the programme
and gone on to pursue their tertiary education in
universities across the country. Batch 5 on the other
hand, is slated for graduation at the end of 2020.
These participants have successfully graduated from
the programme after completing five camps, which
were designed to develop their soft skills, confidence
level, communication mastery skills, English proficiency
and efficient-effective lifestyles to excel in their life and
future career.
Danajamin’s collaboration with PINTAR Foundation enables
the programme to leverage on its expertise as well as
PINTAR’s existing Adoptive School Programme, which
provides long term, sustained mentorship and guidance that
plays a significant role in developing the student’s future.
Apart from academic and extra co-curricular performance,
students must exhibit values such as passion, clarity
of thought, care, and responsibility – values that we believe
to be crucial in the nation’s talent pool of future leaders.
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CAREER CAMP
(YEAR 3)

The focus here is on competencies related to interpersonal
communication, public speaking and personal development.
The camp highlights the challenges faced by young
graduates and provides ways to manage the situation should
it happen to them. In addition, the students undergo a career
aptitude assessment and are coached on areas such as career
planning and decision making.

Through these leadership and character development modules, Danajamin100 provides students with pragmatic experience
and opportunities to not only discover their strengths and passions, but to hone and sharpen their leadership and critical
thinking in the hope of producing outstanding principled and broad-minded students who will go on to be strong leaders in
their chosen fields.

BATCH 1
• SMK Munshi
Abdullah, Selangor
• SMK Gombak Setia,
Selangor
• SMK Pulau Indah,
Selangor
• SMK Juasseh,
Negeri Sembilan
• SMRA Repah,
Negeri Sembilan

BATCH 2

BATCH 3

BATCH 4

• SMK Chenderiang,
Perak

• SMK Ketereh,
Kelantan

• SMK Seri Kota,
Melaka

• SMKA Baling, Kedah
• SMK Ayer Hangat,
Kedah

• SMK Kuala Balah,
Kelantan

• SMK Jasin, Melaka
• SMK Hang Kasturi,
Melaka

• SMK Sungai Aceh,
Pulau Pinang
• SMK Hutchings,
Pulau Pinang

• SMK Long Ghafar
2, Kelantan
• SMK Padang
Enggang, Kelantan
• SMK Sungai Petai,
Kelantan

• SMK Kompleks
KLIA, Negeri
Sembilan
• SMK Desa
Cempaka, Negeri
Sembilan

BATCH 5
• SMK Ampang
Pecah, Selangor
• SAM Bagan
Terap, Selangor
• SMK Jeram,
Selangor
• SMK Pengkalan
Permatang,
Selangor
• SMK Batu Laut,
Selangor
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Feel the Spectrum

The Danajamin Mighty Run is our second flagship CSR Programme, held annually
to raise awareness on Autism Spectrum Disorder. Through the event, Danajamin
aims to nurture a caring community amongst the public by providing exposure and
understanding on Autism.
The event complements our mandate to lift the underserved
by nurturing their growth and empowering them to thrive
within our society. “Feel the Spectrum” was a theme
introduced in 2018 to provide a better understanding on
the Autism Spectrum Disorder. The theme, offered runners a
multisensory journey that relates to persons on the Spectrum.
The activities along the running route, revolves around four
senses (sight, hearing, smell and touch) from its brightly
coloured eye-catching wall made from paintings by those
on the spectrum, to being bombarded by a sound tunnel
followed by tactile interaction activities and the calming
scent of our fragrant path to end the run.
Often, persons on the spectrum may grow up, communicate,
think, feel, behave, and respond to their surroundings
differently due to heightened sensory experience. As a result,
they are often misunderstood and misjudged by the society.
With “Feel the Spectrum”, Danajamin Mighty Run aims to
promote acceptance among communities through awareness
and build an inclusive community for all. Part of the proceeds
from the Danajamin Mighty Run were contributed to National
Autism Society of Malaysia (“NASOM”).

Danajamin has been consistently collaborating with NASOM
since 2012 to help raise awareness on Autism. From being
the main sponsor for the Autism Walk in 2013, 2014 and 2015
to organising our very own Danajamin Mighty Run in 2016,
2017, 2018 and 2019.
For the past 8 years, Danajamin remains steadfast in
empowering the autism community through fund raising
events and promoting autism awareness to provide them
with opportunities to grow within the wider community.
Together with NASOM, we also seek to improve the quality
of life for people with autism and their families by providing
a conducive learning environment for autistic children. Our
initiatives include:
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AUTISM
WALK

2013

AUTISM
WALK

2014

FUNDRAISING ACTIVITIES

AUTISM
WALK

2015

DANAJAMIN
MIGHTY7
RUN

Danajamin Mighty Run (“DMR”) 2016-2019
Proceeds for all four DMR events went to NASOM to fund
various programmes and projects run by NASOM. In 2018,
YB Hannah Yeoh, Deputy Minister of Women, Family and
Community Development flagged off the 10km and 5km
categories.

DANAJAMIN
MIGHTY
RUN

2017

DANAJAMIN
MIGHTY
RUN

2018
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DANAJAMIN
MIGHTY
RUN

2019

Movie charity screenings (2013-2017)
Over 4 years, Danajamin co-sponsored charity movie
screenings of “Smurfs”, “Redha”, and “Thor: The Dark
World”. Funds raised went towards alleviating NASOM’s
operating costs.

Charity Run like this has allowed
people to contribute to those in
need. This is one of many ways
to help assist them (NASOM)
to continue providing effective
support and interventions for
children with autism.

Sheela Samivellu
Danajamin Mighty Run
participant
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SUPPORTING THE AUTISM COMMUNITY
Training and seminars for all the facilitators at NASOM
Centres
Funds raised were used for training and seminars in 2019 to
ensure that all trainers at NASOM centres are certified trainers
on the Special Education, Pre-Vocational and Occupational
Therapy.
Building the Snoezelen Room/Quiet Room at NASOM
Centre in Taman Rowther, Gombak in 2018
Funds raised were used to build the Snoezelen room which
provides a space for therapy, education, equipment to calm
and soothe or stimulate mental and physical effectiveness of
children and adults with autism.

Setting up of NASOM’s Early Intervention Centre in
Setapak, Kuala Lumpur in 2012
Danajamin helped set up NASOM’s new Early Intenvention
Centre in Setapak catering for young children with autism
aged 3-12 years old. The bright and cheerful resource room /
library is now a source of joy for the students of the Setapak
centre.
Beautification of NASOM Centre in Bandar Puteri, Klang
(2013-2017)
Danajamin staff helped with the spring cleaning of the
NASOM Centre in Bandar Puteri, Klang allowing staff to
directly interact with the community.

Ensuring the availability of the Snoezelen Room/Quiet
Room at DMR 2018 and 2019
Ensuring that a therapy room is available on-site for those on
the spectrum should any need arise. This is also done as an
example that could be emulated at other sporting events.
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SUPPORTING AUTISM AWARENESS
Celebrating our painters #feelthespectrum
Danajamin is partnering with other corporates who support
the autism community (Sunway Putra Mall, Ronald McDonald
House Charities) and NASOM to celebrate the young artists,
Art Jamila and Amira Daniea, who have both collaborated
with Danajamin on our DMR 2018 and 2019 event collateral
designs. With this celebration of talent in art making, we
hope to encourage more and more people to see autism
differently.

Multi-sensory activities along the DMR 2018 and 2019
running and walking routes
DMR 2018 and 2019 incorporated several multi-sensory
activities along the running route to provide a heightened
sensory experience. These activities provided some exposure
to participants on the challenges often faced by people on
the spectrum, who are highly sensitive to their environments.

To further support the cause, in 2018 and 2019, Danajamin also collaborated with artists on the spectrum.
Wan Jamila, known professionally as artjamila®, is an award-winning savant artist. She started drawing as a tool for
communication in 2006 at the age of 4 and became an artist at 14 years old in 2017. She combines doodling and naive
art into her scheme. Her art is crafted in great detail, just like a manuscript of historical events in the form of visual art.
Amira Daniea, is an autistic painter who discovered her passion for drawing and painting when she was 4 years old.
Following the discovery, Amira’s parents enrolled her in art classes to support her talent. Amira has since produced
more than 60 paintings on iconic buildings such as the KLCC Twin Tower, Paris’ Eiffel tower, Istanbul’s Blue Mosque and
the Tokyo City landscape.
Both, Art Jamila’s ‘Unity in Diversity’ and Amira Daniea’s KLCC painting were featured in all of Danajamin Mighty Run
collaterals in 2018 and 2019 respectively.

Y E A R S

162

Danajamin Nasional Berhad
Special Focus: 10th-year Anniversary

GROWING TOGETHER WITH THE COMMUNITY THROUGH CSR

Other CSR
Initiatives
Danajamin’s School Adoption Programme
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Health Screening & Health Talk, BLOOD DONATION AND TUPPERWARE PROGRAMME

Environmental Talk and Tree Planting
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OUR PEOPLE

Mohamed Nazri Omar

Adrian Tay

Rizwil Ismail

Director, ERM & Compliance

Joyce Teh

Gerald Goh

Chief Executive Officer

Director, Client Coverage

Amri Sofian

Deputy Director, Corporate
Strategy and Communications

Wee Yee Tat

Director, Client Solutions

Chief Corporate and
Investment Officer

Director, Investment

Jason Goay

Chief Risk Officer

John Baptist Jesu Doss
Deputy Director, Credit Risk

Kareena Kaur
Deputy Director,
Human Capital

Junaidah Abdul Rahim
Director, Legal

Poorani Ramachandran
Director, Finance

Raevathi Pathmanathan
Director, Internal Audit
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I’m especially proud
of the fact that in Danajamin,
we had manage to evolve
the product to meet the client’s
and market’s requirement. We’ve done
securitisation structure, we’ve done partial
guarantee and we’ve also done liquidity
support facility. I think this is the way we should
be, to keep evolving as we go into the future.
It is my believe that in the next 10 years
Danajamin can still play a great role in further
developing the capital market and assisting
corporates to raise the required financing
that would have a big impact in Malaysia’s
economic growth.

Mohamed Nazri Omar
Chief Executive Officer
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OUR PEOPLE

Every time I see a project of
our client, I would say that
this client has successfully
completed the project because
of Danajamin coming in to
actually guarantee the bonds
and Sukuk issued by them.
For me, that’s a proud moment.

Amri Sofian

Chief Corporate
& Investment Officer
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OUR PEOPLE

Throughout my 8 years here,
looking at the clients, what
strikes me is that we’ve got a
very good group of companies
you know that have learned to
work with us and they’ve grown
over the years. Many of them
have succeeded and gone on to
achieve even greater things.

Jason Goay

Chief Risk Officer
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Thank you for the wonderful years...

www.danajamin.com

DANAJAMIN NASIONAL BERHAD
Level 18, Menara Allianz Sentral
203, Jalan Tun Sambanthan
Kuala Lumpur Sentral
50470 Kuala Lumpur
+603 2265 0800
+603 2265 0900
danajamin@danajamin.com

